
 Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 Date: 27 March 2008 
 
 
TO: 
 
 
TO: 

All Members of the Executive 
FOR ATTENDANCE 
 
All Other Members of the Council 
FOR INFORMATION 

  

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the EXECUTIVE to be held in the GUILDHALL, 
ABINGDON on FRIDAY, 4TH APRIL, 2008 at 2.30 PM. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
Terry Stock 
Chief Executive  
 

 
Members are reminded of the provisions contained in the Code of Conduct adopted on 30 
September 2007 and Standing Order 34 regarding the declaration of Personal and Prejudicial 
Interests. 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 

A large print version of this agenda is available.  Any background papers 
referred to may be inspected by prior arrangement. Contact Steve Culliford, 
Democratic Services Officer on telephone number (01235) 540307; e-mail: 
steve.culliford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk.   
 
Please note that this meeting will be held in a wheelchair accessible venue. If you would like 
to attend and have any special access requirements, please let the Democratic Officer know 
beforehand and he will do his very best to meet your requirements. 
 
Open to the Public including the Press 
 
  
Map and Vision   
(Page 11) 
 

A map showing the location of the venue for this meeting, together with a copy the Council 
Vision is attached.   

 



Executive  Friday, 4th April, 2008 
   

 Page 2 
 

 
STANDING ITEMS  
 

1. Apologies for Absence  

  
 To receive apologies for absence.   

 
2. Minutes  

  
 To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Executive meeting held on 1 

February 2008, (previously circulated).   
 

3. Declarations of Interest  

  
 To receive any declarations of Personal or Personal and Prejudicial Interests in respect 

of items on the agenda for this meeting.   
 
Any Member with a personal interest or a personal and prejudicial interest in accordance 
with the provisions of the Code of Conduct, in any matter to be considered at a meeting, 
must declare the existence and nature of that interest as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent in accordance with the provisions of the Code. 
 
When a Member declares a personal and prejudicial interest he shall also state if he has a 
dispensation from the Standards Committee entitling him/her to speak, or speak and vote 
on the matter concerned. 
 
Where any Member has declared a personal and prejudicial interest he shall withdraw 
from the room while the matter is under consideration unless  
 
(a) his/her disability to speak, or speak and vote on the matter has been removed by a 

dispensation granted by the Standards Committee, or 

(b) members of the public are allowed to make representations, give evidence or 
answer questions about the matter by statutory right or otherwise.  If that is the 
case, the Member can also attend the meeting for that purpose.  However, the 
Member must immediately leave the room once he/she has finished; or when the 
meeting decides he/she has finished whichever is the earlier and in any event the 
Member must leave the room for the duration of the debate on the item in which 
he/she has a personal and prejudicial interest.   

 
4. Urgent Business and Chair's Announcements  

  
 To receive notification of any matters which the Chair determines should be considered 

as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters 
urgent, and to receive any announcements from the Chair. 
 

5. Statements and Petitions from the Public Under Standing Order 32  

  
 Any statements and/or petitions from the public under Standing Order 32 will be made 

or presented at the meeting.   



Executive  Friday, 4th April, 2008 
   

 Page 3 
 

 
6. Questions from the Public Under Standing Order 32  

  
 Any questions from members of the public under Standing Order 32 will be asked at the 

meeting. 
 

7. Referral under the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules or the Budget and 
Policy Framework Procedure Rules  

  
 None 

 
8. Referrals from the Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Other Committees  

 (Pages 12 - 14) 
 

 (1) Scrutiny Committee – 14 February 2008 
 
Implementation of Agresso 5.5 Financial Management System – Report of the 
Informal Agresso Working Group 
 
The Scrutiny Committee requested that the informal Agresso Working Group’s 
report (141/07) on the implementation of the Agresso 5.5 Financial Management 
System be forwarded to the Executive.  The report is attached.   
 

(2) West Area Committee - 20 March 2008 
 
Eastern Expansion of Swindon 
 
The West Area Committee discussed the possible eastern expansion of 
Swindon and has made the following recommendation to the Executive: 
 
Recommendation 
 
That this Chief Executive be instructed to establish urgent co-operation (in view 
of the 12th May 2008 deadline to the draft core strategy proposals) between 
Planning Officers and Communications Officers and the Western Vale Villages 
Consortium of Parish Councils, with regards to their opposition to the expansion 
to the east side of Swindon.   

 
9. Financial Monitoring: Virements and Permanent Budget Adjustments  

 (Page 15) 
 

 Members are requested to consider any significant budget variances and any requests 
for virement or permanent budget adjustment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Executive  Friday, 4th April, 2008 
   

 Page 4 
 

KEY DECISIONS  
 

10. Forward Plan  

 (Pages 16 - 20) 
 

 To receive the Forward Plan containing Executive decisions to be taken from April to 
July 2008.   
 
Recommendation 
 
that the Forward Plan be received.   
 

11. Community Grants  

 (Pages 21 - 46) 
 

 To receive and consider report 180/07 of the Strategic Director and Monitoring Officer.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary 
 
The purpose of this report is to set out the budget position for the Executive Committee 
in respect of Community Grants and to invite Members to consider and determine the 
grant applications received. The Executive currently considers grant applications bi-
annually. Executive considered applications in October 2007 and the next meeting, at 
which the consideration of grants is planned, will be in October 2008.  
 
The contact officer for this report is Lorna Edwards, Community Strategy Officer (Tel: 
01235 547626). 
 
Recommendations 
 
(a) Members are asked to note that the Executive’s budget for 2008/09 for Vale-

wide grants is £21,714 
. 

(b) Members are asked to consider and determine the following grant applications 
and agree the Council agenda and priority: 

 
(i) Ryder-Cheshire Volunteers, £2,000, towards running costs of supporting 

disabled people to pursue activities, Social Agenda, Access priority 
(ii) Oxfordshire Visual Arts Festival, £1,000, towards printing and distribution 

of the brochure, Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority 
(iii) Oxfordshire Children’s Information Service, £4,758, towards the cost of 

providing information and advice to parents, Social Agenda, Access 
priority 

(iv) Age Concern Oxfordshire, £2,330, towards  singing taster sessions, 
Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority 

(v) Oxfordshire Chinese Community & Advice Centre, £4,000, towards the 
Chinese New Year celebration and increased running costs 

(vi) Oxfordshire Association for the Blind, £5,000, towards the introduction of 
a mobile resource centre and training courses, Social Agenda, Access 
priority 



Executive  Friday, 4th April, 2008 
   

 Page 5 
 

(vii) My Life My Choice, £1,342.18, towards running self-advocacy groups, 
Social Agenda, Access priority 

(viii)  Oxfordshire Community & Voluntary Action, £5,000, towards a volunteer 
brokerage service, Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority 

(ix) Root and Branch, £1,000, towards the purchase of a kitchen range, Social 
Agenda, Access priority 

(x) Oxford Film & Video Makers, £3,650, towards events in the 
Summerscreen 2008 festival, Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality 
priority 

(xi) Oxfordshire Rural Education Initiative, £2,000, towards educational work, 
Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority 

(xii) Vitalise, £1,741.75, towards the provision of holiday breaks for disabled 
people and volunteering opportunities, Social Agenda, Access priority 

 
(c) Members are asked to consider an application from Abingdon Citizens Advice 

Bureau for a one-off grant of £6,000, towards roof repairs and; 
 
(d) to make an award, in exceptional circumstances,, from savings made in the 

Community  Strategy service budget; and  
 
(e) Members are asked to agree to the request from Area Committees to carry 

forward unspent grant budget from 2007/08.   
 
 

OTHER MATTERS  
 

12. Annual Audit and Inspection Letter  

  
 To receive and consider the Audit Commission's Annual Audit and Inspection Letter.  

This will be circulated to all Members of the Council after the publication of this agenda.   
 

13. Corporate Governance - Third Quarter 2007/08  

 (Pages 47 - 61) 
 

 To receive and consider report 181/07 of the Senior Management Team.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary  
 
The Corporate Governance Report looks at the key areas of: 

• Corporate Priorities 

• Best Value Performance Indicators 

• Progress against Service Prioritisation Plans 

• Key staffing data (sickness levels and turnover) 

• Progress with Business Process Improvement Reviews 

• Financial commentary 
 

At its meeting on 18th February the Senior Management Team (SMT) considered the 
third quarter 2007/08 Business Performance Report. This is an exception report which 
covers all of the aspects of corporate governance contained within this report. SMT 
agreed the exceptions (where performance / actions are not on target) to be reported to 



Executive  Friday, 4th April, 2008 
   

 Page 6 
 

the Executive and agreed the comments / actions which have been included in this 
report. The full versions of the individual reports are available on the Council’s website. 
They can be accessed through the ‘about your Council - performance’ area of the 
website. 
The contact officer for this report is Robert Woodside, Principal Performance 
Management Officer, telephone (01235 520202 ext 499).  Email address:  
robert.woodside@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  
 
Recommendation  
 
That the Senior Management Team’s Corporate Governance exception report and 
proposals be noted.   
 

14. Best Value Performance Indicator Report  

 (Pages 62 - 70) 
 

 To receive and consider report 182/07 of the Strategic Director.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary  
 
This report compares the Council’s performance for 2006/07 against that of the national 
top and bottom quartile data for 2006/07 which have been published by the Audit 
Commission. 
 
The Contact Officer for this report is Robert Woodside, Principal Performance 
Management Officer (01235 520202 ext 499). 
 
Recommendations 
 
That Members note the Council’s performance against the national top and bottom 
quartile results for 2006/07.   
 

15. Local Area Agreement 2  

 (Pages 71 - 96) 
 

 To receive and consider report 183/07 of the Deputy Director (Housing and Community 
Safety).   
 
Introduction and Report Summary  
 
This report provides information about Oxfordshire’s next local area agreement (LAA2). 
 
The contact officers for this report are Toby Warren, Head of Community Strategy, tel. 
01235 547695; and Paul Staines, Deputy Director, Housing and Community Safety, tel. 
01235 547621. 
 
Recommendations  
 
That the Executive: 
 
Endorse the priorities within Oxfordshire’s next local area agreement.  



Executive  Friday, 4th April, 2008 
   

 Page 7 
 

 
Give delegated authority for the Leader of the Council, in consultation with the Chief 
Executive, to agree targets for the priorities.  
 

16. Draft South West Spatial Strategy – Panel Report December 2007  

 (Pages 97 - 103) 
 

 (Wards Affected: Faringdon and The Coxwells; Shrivenham;)  
  

 To receive and consider report 184/07 of the Deputy Director (Planning and Community 
Strategy).   
 
Introduction and Report Summary  
 
The draft Regional Spatial Strategy for the South West (or South West Plan) covers the 
area which abuts the Vale’s western boundary. This area includes Swindon. The report 
of the panel, which carried out an examination in public of the draft South West Plan, 
was published in December 2007. This report to the Executive is a summary of the 
main points arising out of the Panel’s Report. 
 
In the draft South West Plan, Swindon is identified as a Strategically Significant City or 
Town (SSCT) and the location for a strategic urban extension of about 12,000 dwellings 
on the eastern side of the town (policy SR8). The Council commented on this and other 
matters in the draft South West Plan (see report 30/06 to SLAG dated 26 June 2006). 
In particular, the Council objected to policy SR8 principally on the basis that the figure 
of 12000 dwellings (representing an ambitious annual build rate of 600 dwellings) was 
unlikely to be achieved and objected to the reference to a new upper Thames reservoir 
on the basis that Thames Water has yet to formally bring forward a fully justified 
reservoir proposal and that the reference to a reservoir was therefore premature. Other 
comments related to the absence of strategic gaps to safeguard the character, identity 
and setting of the rural villages and communities surrounding the development and the 
number of vehicle movements onto the A420 likely to be generated as a result of the 
eastern development.  
 
The Panel Report, among other things, endorses the provision of 12,000 dwellings east 
of Swindon and identifies a new upper Thames reservoir as part of the key 
infrastructure. The Panel also accepted that highway improvements to cope with the 
vehicle movements should be part of the key infrastructure. The Panel includes no 
recommendation for strategic gaps. 
 
The issue of how an ambitious annual build rate of 600 dwellings will be achieved has 
not been addressed in any detail by the Panel and the Panel’s endorsement of a new 
reservoir in advance of its formal justification are therefore matters which remain of 
major concern to this Council.  
 
The Panel Report is submitted to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government and is published for information purposes only. The publication of the 
Panel Report is not, therefore, a further stage of consultation with the public. However, 
in order that the Secretary of State should be properly briefed it is considered that she 
should be made aware of the Council’s concerns. 
 
The contact officer for this report is Nick Burroughs, Principal Planning Officer 



Executive  Friday, 4th April, 2008 
   

 Page 8 
 

(Planning and Community), telephone (01235 520202 extn. 496).  Email address 
nick.burroughs@whitehorsedc.gov.uk. 
 
Recommendations  
 
that the Executive notes this report on the Panel Report into the draft Regional Spatial 
Strategy for the South West, 
 
that the Executive remains concerned that the rates of development proposed for the 
Swindon East expansion are ambitious and unlikely to be achieved, at the absence of 
appropriate strategic gaps and that because the ‘needs case’ for the new reservoir has 
yet to be made, the reference to the new reservoir is premature. 
 
that an appropriate summary of the Council’s concerns is sent to the Secretary of State 
for Communities and Local Government and the Member of Parliament for the 
Wantage Constituency.   
 

17. Planning Code of Conduct  

 (Pages 104 - 122) 
 

 To receive and consider report 185/07 of the Deputy Director (Planning and Community 
Strategy).   
 
Introduction and Report Summary  
 
At full Council on 4th December 2007 Members considered a revised draft of the Planning 
Code of Conduct.  Concerns were expressed about a new provision in the draft code 
which would establish the principle that local Members would be invited to observe and 
take part in pre-application discussions, in cases where a formal officers’ Development 
Team has been set up to take forward discussions in response to large, proposed 
developments in the Vale.  (The decision to set up a Development Team is taken by the 
Deputy Director in consultation with the Planning Service’s Management Team where it is 
considered that this will promote and assist the efficient handling of applications for major 
development proposals prior to their submission). 
 
Council resolved that the draft Code be referred back to the Strategic and Local Planning 
Advisory Group for the new provision to be given further consideration and, following its 
reconsideration by the Group, for the Code to be recommended back to the Council via 
the Development Control Committee, Executive and Standards Committee.  This report 
sets out the background to the proposed new provision and suggests an alternative 
wording for the relevant section of the draft code, to clarify the arrangements governing 
Member involvement.  A copy of the relevant paragraph of the original draft Code (4.6) is 
appended to the report.  The recommendations below have been considered and 
endorsed by the Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group.   
 
The Contact Officer for this report is Rodger Hood (Deputy Director – Planning & 
Community Strategy), telephone (01235) 540340. 
Email address: rodger.hood@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 
Recommendations  
 
that the wording of paragraph 4.6 of the draft Planning Code of Conduct dealing with 



Executive  Friday, 4th April, 2008 
   

 Page 9 
 

Member involvement in pre-application discussions be amended to read as follows: 
 
“4.6  In response to large proposed developments, where a formal officers 
Development Team has been set up, local ward members may be invited to attend, 
observe and take part in pre-application discussions at meetings of the Team.  A 
request to be involved in such discussions should be made by the ward member to the 
Deputy Director (Planning and Community Strategy) who will consider the request in 
consultation with the Chair and/or Vice Chair of the Development Control Committee 
and the Opposition Planning Spokesman.  The views of the applicant on ward member 
involvement in a development team will be sought to help inform the consultation.  In 
the event that a ward member is invited to become involved in pre-application 
discussions it is important that they restrict their involvement to receiving and gathering 
information about the proposals and providing views on the issues likely to be of 
concern in the locality.  It is also important that matters of a commercially confidential 
nature to the potential applicant are respected and that any commercial confidentiality 
is maintained.  Members should not engage in negotiations and should avoid giving any 
firm commitment or impression of a firm commitment that they hold any particular view 
about the merits of the proposal.  If it is known that a Ward Member has publicly 
expressed a particular view about a major development proposal prior to requesting 
involvement in Development Team pre-application discussions, this will be taken into 
account in the decision whether to grant their request to attend and participate”. 
 
that the draft Planning Code of Conduct with the proposed re-wording of paragraph 4.6, 
be recommended to the Development Control Committee, Executive and Standards 
Committee and  subsequently to Council.   
 

18. Decriminalised Parking Enforcement  

 (Pages 123 - 129) 
 

 To receive and consider report 186/07 of the Strategic Director.   
 
Introduction and Report Summary 
 
Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) in 2005, resolved to introduce Decriminalised 
Parking Enforcement (DPE) throughout Oxfordshire and accordingly, in early 2006 
started negotiations with the four rural District Councils with a view to establishing a 
single enforcement authority in each district area, with District Council’s undertaking 
enforcement under an agency agreement with OCC.  
 
The Executive received a report no 246/05 in March 2006 setting out the principles of 
DPE and authorised officers to commence negotiations with OCC. The purpose of this 
report is to update Members on the progress of the project. 
 
The Contact Officer for this report is Gordon Willcox, Section Head (Transportation) 
telephone 01235 540390. 
 
Recommendations 
 
That the Executive: 
 
note the progress of this project; 
 



Executive  Friday, 4th April, 2008 
   

 Page 10 
 

reaffirm its commitment to the principle of Civil Parking Enforcement and its willingness 
to undertake on-street enforcement in the Vale on behalf of OCC together with off-
street enforcement subject to reaching agreement with OCC on all operational, 
administrative and financial matters, given that any financial arrangements must accord 
with the Council’s medium term financial plan.   
 

19. Exclusion of the Public, including the Press  

  
 The Chair to move that in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 

Act 1972, the public, including the press, be excluded from the remainder of the 
meeting to prevent the disclosure to them of exempt information, as defined in Section 
100(I) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A, as amended, to the Act when the following items 
are considered: 
 
Item 20  Property Matters 

(Category 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information.)   

 
 
 

Exempt Information under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972  
 

20. Property Matters  

  
 To consider any property matters.   

 
 
 



Agenda Annex

Page 11



Vale of White Horse District Council    Report No 141/07 
        Wards Affected: None 

 
REPORT OF THE AGRESSO WORKING GROUP 

TO THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
14 FEBRUARY 2008 

 
Review of the Agresso 5.5 Financial Management System implementation 

 
 
1.0 Introduction 

 
1.1 The Agresso Working Group was set up by the Scrutiny Committee on 14 June 2007 

“to review the problems encountered during the Agresso 5.5 computer system 
implementation, in particular the following: 

a. The quality of the project management;  
b. The impact of the backlogs in terms of cost, inconvenience to Council tax 

payers, and suppliers of goods and services; 
c. The Council’s policy on Information Technology implementation”. 
 

1.2 The Working Group has met on three occasions since July 2007, has read a 
considerable amount of documentation and held discussions with key Vale of White 
Horse District Council (VWHDC), South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and 
Capita personnel. 

 
1.3 This short report lists the main findings of the Working Group. It should be noted that 

the Working Group decided at an early stage that it would be more productive to 
learn from the Agresso experience, rather than try to assign “blame” onto any 
particular individual or organisation. 

 
 

2.0 Background 
 

2.1 Implementation of a new accounting system is a challenging task for any 
organisation. In this instance the challenge was made much greater by the following 
factors: 

 
(1) The introduction of  the Agresso system was part of a much larger change 

being implemented at the same time;  
 

(2) A common  system was being introduced for two clients (SODC and VWHDC) 
who had historically two radically different accounting systems and working 
practices which meant considerable compromise was required to introduce a 
common system;  

 
(3) The implementation of the system was carried out by an external contractor 

(Capita) with the associated challenges of client/contractor interaction;  
 

(4) After the contract had been signed with Capita, Agresso released a new version 
(5.5) which it was decided to implement but without a full appreciation by the 
contractor or the clients of the scale of differences between v5.4 and v5.5;  

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 12



(5) The implementation timetable was driven by external factors (the expiry of 
existing software licenses at SODC) which meant the scope for delay was 
limited (unless SODC and VWHDC had chosen to have different “go-live” dates 
– a point discussed further below). 

 
 

3.0 Lessons  
 

 (1) Prior to signing a software contract of this magnitude, in future a formal (joint) 
client review meeting should be held involving all interested parties (in this 
case: contracts, legal, IT, accountancy) which should review the scope of the 
contract against the initial specification (in this instance it appeared that the 
“Best and Final Offer” which as contracted was different in crucial aspects from 
the initial specification). 

 
(2) Furthermore, in the case of a multi-client contract it is important that an internal 

VWHDC meeting is held to ensure all important VWHDC concerns have been 
addressed. 

 
(3) In multi client projects, the VWHDC should always appoint a senior officer to 

the project oversight team. 
 

(4) When software projects are being carried out by external contractors, the 
contract and/or Project Implementation Document (PID) should ensure that the 
VWHDC’s well established IT implementation procedures are followed. 

 
(5) The agreement of, and signing of, a PID is a crucial part of a project – in future 

no work should commence until this document (which defines tasks and 
responsibilities) has been signed off. 

 
(6) In particular, there should be a well documented system for distributing 

specified progress reports and charts to named officers and Councillors. In this 
instance it was clear that although the Contractor regularly produced an 
updated Gantt chart it was not distributed widely, which made it difficult to 
measure progress against the plan. 

 
(7) In the event that the Contractor wishes to use a different version (or type) of 

software from that specified in the contract, the VWHDC should ensure that it:- 
 

(a)  is aware of the extent of the changes involved; 
(b) seeks confirmation that the contractor has the appropriate experience 

and expertise to implement this new version, and if necessary require 
the Contractor to place appropriate sub-contracts onto specialist 
companies. 

 
(8) Training of staff is a vital part of any software project and should be carefully 

planned, trialled and timetabled. Should for any reason the training schedule 
slip, then serious consideration should be given to delaying the “Go Live” date 
(if appropriate contingency plans should exist in multi-client projects to allow for 
different “Go Live” dates at different clients).  

 
(9) In complex software projects the VWHDC should appoint either a senior (non-

involved but suitably qualified) officer or an expert consultant to act as a “critical 

Page 13



friend” and produce regular reports for Councillors (in this instance it was 
apparent that the Contractor convinced members and officers that the system 
was ready to go live when in reality a delay to improve staff training and 
understanding would have been worthwhile). Such reports should confirm 
compliance with the VWHDC’s own IT implementation procedures.   

 
(10) In the event of problems arising post-implementation, a senior VWHDC officer 

overview team should be convened at the earliest opportunity, and include the 
Communications Team.  

 
4.0 Impact of the Agresso Conversion 

 
4.1 There is no doubt that the conversion problems have had a significant impact  on 

staff morale in the VWHDC, has had an impact on some suppliers, and also incurred 
extra VWHDC officer resources to be devoted to devising and implemented a 
remedial programme.  However, there does not appear to have been a widespread 
impact on Council Tax payers. 

 
4.2 Whilst the Working Group is satisfied that the project will produce significant 

increases in productivity and consequent cost savings, it is concerned that the 
implementation problems have created short-term costs for the Council. It urges the 
officers to ensure as far as the contract permits, the contractor reimburses both extra 
direct expenditure (for example, un-refunded double payments) and indirect costs 
incurred (ie staff costs of the additional effort deployed to resolve the problems). 

 
 
 

COUNCILLORS  MATTHEW BARBER 
                 ANDREW CRAWFORD 

      JIM HALLIDAY 
              MELINDA TILLEY 

 
AGRESSO WORKING GROUP 

 
January 2008 

Page 14



Agenda Item 9

Page 15



Agenda Item 10

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL           Report No. 180/07 
        Wards affected – All 

 
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR & MONITORING OFFICER 

TO EXECUTIVE  
4 APRIL 2008 

 
Community Grants 

 
 
1.0 Introduction and Report Summary 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out the budget position for the Executive 

Committee in respect of Community Grants and to invite Members to consider and 
determine the grant applications received. The Executive currently considers grant 
applications bi-annually. Executive considered applications in October 2007 and the 
next meeting, at which the consideration of grants is planned, will be in October 2008.  

 
1.2 The contact officer for this report is Lorna Edwards, Community Strategy Officer (Tel: 

01235 547626). 
 
2.0 Relationship with the Council's Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
2.1 This report supports the Council’s Vision and Priorities.  It also supports the Vale 

Community Strategy.  It does not conflict with any Council strategy or any Council 
policy.  

 
3.0    Recommendations 
 

(a) Members are asked to note that the Executive’s budget for 2008/09 for Vale-wide 
grants is £21,714 

. 
(b) Members are asked to consider and determine the following grant applications and 

agree the Council agenda and priority: 
 

(i)  Ryder-Cheshire Volunteers, £2,000, towards running costs of supporting 
disabled people to pursue activities, Social Agenda, Access priority 
(ii)  Oxfordshire Visual Arts Festival, £1,000, towards printing and distribution of 
the brochure, Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority 
(iii)  Oxfordshire Children’s Information Service, £4,758, towards the cost of 
providing information and advice to parents, Social Agenda, Access priority 
(iv)   Age Concern Oxfordshire, £2,330, towards  singing taster sessions, Social 
Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority 
(v)   Oxfordshire Chinese Community & Advice Centre, £4,000, towards the 
Chinese New Year celebration and increased running costs 
(vi)   Oxfordshire Association for the Blind, £5,000, towards the introduction of 
a mobile resource centre and training courses, Social Agenda, Access priority 
(vii)   My Life My Choice, £1,342.18, towards running self-advocacy groups, 
Social Agenda, Access priority 
(viii)  Oxfordshire Community & Voluntary Action, £5,000, towards a volunteer 
brokerage service, Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority 
(ix)    Root and Branch, £1,000, towards the purchase of a kitchen range, Social 
Agenda, Access priority 

Agenda Item 11

Page 21



(x)    Oxford Film & Video Makers, £3,650, towards events in the Summerscreen 
2008 festival, Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority 
(xi)   Oxfordshire Rural Education Initiative, £2,000, towards educational work, 
Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority 
(xii)  Vitalise, £1,741.75, towards the provision of holiday breaks for disabled 
people and volunteering opportunities, Social Agenda, Access priority 

 
(c) Members are asked to consider an application from Abingdon Citizens  
     Advice Bureau for a one-off grant of £6,000, towards roof repairs and; 
 
(d)  to make an award, in exceptional circumstances,, from savings made i 
      the Community  Strategy service budget  
 
(e)  Members are asked to agree to the request from Area Committees to   
      carry forward unspent grant budget from 2007/08 
 

4.0 Community Grants  
 
4.1 The budget position of the Executive for Vale-wide community grants in 2008/2009 is 

shown below 
 

Budget 
b/f 

2007/08 
 

Budget  
2008/09 

 

Total 
Budget 
2008/09 

Environ- 
mental 

 Agenda 
Proportion 

Social 
Agenda 

Proportion 

Economic 
Agenda 

Proportion 

Discretion
ary 

Proportio
n 

£0 £21,714 £21,714 £7,599.90 £7,599.90 £4,342.80 £2,171.40 
 

 
5.0 Applications 
 
5.1 Applications for consideration under the Council’s Community Grants Scheme         
           have been received from the organisations listed below and there is a  

narrative providing additional details at Appendix A to the report. The total 
amount of grants requested is £33,821.93. 
 

(i)  Ryder-Cheshire Volunteers, £2,000, towards running costs of supporting 
disabled people to pursue activities, Social Agenda, Access priority 
(ii)  Oxfordshire Visual Arts Festival, £1,000, towards printing and distribution of 
the brochure, Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority 
(iii)  Oxfordshire Children’s Information Service, £4,758, towards the cost of 
providing information and advice to parents, Social Agenda, Access priority 
(iv)   Age Concern Oxfordshire, £2,330, towards  singing taster sessions, Social 
Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority 
(v)   Oxfordshire Chinese Community & Advice Centre, £4,000, towards the 
Chinese New Year celebration and increased running costs 
(vi)   Oxfordshire Association for the Blind, £5,000, towards the introduction of 
a mobile resource centre and training courses, Social Agenda, Access priority 
(vii)   My Life My Choice, £1,342.18, towards running self-advocacy groups, 
Social Agenda, Access priority 
(viii)  Oxfordshire Community & Voluntary Action, £5,000, towards a volunteer 
brokerage service, Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority 
(ix)    Root and Branch, £1,000, towards the purchase of a kitchen range, Social 
Agenda, Access priority 

Page 22



(x)    Oxford Film & Video Makers, £3,650, towards events in the Summerscreen 
2008 festival, Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority 
(xi)   Oxfordshire Rural Education Initiative, £2,000, towards educational work, 
Social Agenda, Town & Village Vitality priority 
(xii)  Vitalise, £1,741.75, towards the provision of holiday breaks for disabled 
people and volunteering opportunities, Social Agenda, Access priority 

 
5.2 Members are asked to consider and determine the grant applications and to agree the 

Council Agenda and priority. 
 

6.0 Application from Abingdon Citizens Advice Bureau 
 
6.1 The Bureau occupies part of Old Abbey House and under the terms of its lease with 

the District Council it has to make a contribution of 30% of the cost of building repairs.  
The Trustee Board is seeking an exceptional grant towards the cost of roof repairs. 
The Bureau is required to contribute £12,750.   

 
6.2 The Bureau has received a grant of £ 3,000 from St Michael & All Saints Churches 

Fund for towards the cost of the roof repairs. It has also made a proposal that £ 3,750 
should be paid by instalments over three years. The Trustee Board is therefore 
seeking an exceptional grant of £ 6,000. 

 
6.3 Officers are mindful that an award of £ 6,000 from the Executive’s Community Grants 

budget of £ 21,714 would restrict the ability of the Executive to support other 
community project and services. Officers have therefore looked at the allocations in 
other budgets, related to community strategy and development, to identify other 
sources of funding. An amount of £ 6,000 is available if expenditure is re-allocated and 
the balances from a number of budgets are transferred. 

 
6.4 Members are asked to agree to this reallocation of budget from Community Strategy to 

assist with the roof repairs. 
 

 7.0      Unspent grant budget 
 
7.1 At the end of 2007/08 three Area Committees have unspent grant budget as indicated 

below: 
 
North East Area Committee £2,313.65 
South East Area Committee £635.88 

Abingdon Area Committee £12,271.63 (last Committee meeting on 
25 March – final figure to be reported 
verbally) 

West Area Committee £0 
 
7.2 Those area committees with unspent grants budget have resolved to request that 

these amounts be carried forward into 2008/09.  The Executive is asked to agree their 
request. 

    
 

TOBY WARREN 
HEAD OF COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

 
TIM SADLER 

STRATEGIC DIRECTOR & MONITORING OFFICER 

Page 23



 
Background Papers: Applications and supporting documents 

Page 24



            Appendix A 
 
(i)   Applicant:  Ryder-Cheshire Volunteers (RCV), based in Kenilworth, Warwickshire 
 
Years in existence:  RCV as an organisation – 22 years.  RCV in the Vale of White Horse 
– 18 years 
 
Type of organisation:  Registered charity.  Company limited by guarantee. 
 
Project, service or event details:  A grant is requested towards the 2008/09 costs of 
RCV’s service which provides opportunities for disabled Vale residents to take up leisure 
and learning interests of their own choice and which they would otherwise be unable to 
pursue.  The aims are to improve quality of life, to reduce social isolation and to encourage 
integration into  mainstream society.  Local volunteers are recruited to help users on a one 
to one basis either at home or by taking them out.  A number of users are helped to 
independently access existing facilities/clubs should they not wish for volunteer help. 
 
Supports following Vale Community Strategy strands:   
Access to Services; Recreation, Culture & Leisure; Education & Lifelong Learning; Health & 
Wellbeing 
 
Area of the Vale covered:  Vale-wide 
 
Estimate of number of people the project/service/event will benefit: 58 
 
Charge to public for using the project/service/event?:  Users are not charged for RCV’s 
service but pay for the costs/fee of their individual activity. 
 
Total estimated project cost:  £ 21,963 
   
Registered for VAT?:  No   
 
Balances:  £ 20, 633 (31.03.07) 
 
Own Contribution:  RCV will stage local fundraising initiatives with the aim of raising funds 
totalling £500 approx. 
 
Grant Sought:     £2,000 
 
Previous Awards (Vale):    None 
 
Parish Council Support:  Appeals have been sent to the all Parish Councils in the Vale.  
Applications will be submitted to Abingdon, Faringdon & Wantage Town Councils. 
 
Other Support:  Although it is not a statutory requirement, Oxfordshire Social Services 
make an annual contribution to RCV’s work in the county via a service contract.  The 
proportion for the Vale will be £8,395 in 2008/09. 
 
£ 1,000 The Hon. Kathleen Laurence Charitable Trust 
£ 500  The Alchemy Foundation 
 
A funding request has been made to Zurich Cares in Swindon and the outcome is awaited.  
Zurich awarded a grant of £2,500 in 2006. 

Page 25



 
Officer recommendation (Toby Warren, Head of Community Strategy): 
 
Recommend support Yes 
Amount recommended  
Reasons:  
Meets CG Scheme criteria Yes 

Supports Council priority(ies) Cleaner, greener, safer & healthier 
community and environment 

Supports Vale Community Strategy 
strand(s) 

Access to Services; Recreation, Culture 
& Leisure; Education & Lifelong 
Learning; Health & Wellbeing 

Remaining budget £21,714 
Remaining Committee meetings 1 
Total amount recommended for 
other applications being considered 

 

Recommended conditions to grant 
award 

 

Other comments  

 
 
(ii)  Applicant: Oxfordshire Visual Arts Festival Ltd (“Artweeks”) 
  
Years in existence:  16 years 
 
Type of organisation:  Community arts organisation; company limited by guarantee 
 
Project, service or event details:  Oxfordshire Visual Arts Festival is seeking a grant 
towards the cost of printing and distributing the Artweeks brochure which informs a large 
number of people about the exhibits and allows them to participate by visiting the sites.   
 
Oxfordshire Artweeks is a festival of “open studios” for artists and crafts people throughout 
the county.  The aim is to establish a forum whereby the public could be invited to enjoy 
visual art away from the formality of a gallery setting, in a relaxed environment and with 
direct access to the artists. 
 
This formula has proved to be so successful that it has been replicated throughout the UK.  
In Oxfordshire there are now about 400 sites each year as well as special exhibitions and 
events, tours, talks, workshops and demonstrations to appeal to all ages.  Artweeks is the 
largest visual arts festival in the county.  Everyone is welcome to join in; entry for 
participants is non-selective and entry for visitors is free. 
 
Supports following Vale Community Strategy strands: Recreation, Culture & Leisure; 
Access to Services; Town & Village Vitality; Education & Lifelong Learning; Health & 
Wellbeing 
  
Area of the Vale covered:  Vale-wide 
 
Estimate of number of people the project/service/event will benefit: On average over 
73 local artists and groups participate/exhibit; 12,000 visitors are estimated. 
 
Charge to public for using the project/service/event?:  None.  Fees for artists exhibiting 
range from £25 (artist with non-selling work) to £300 (business/gallery)  

Page 26



 
Total estimated project cost: £81,500 (VAT not applicable) 
 
Balances:  £8,696 at 31/07/07 
 
Running costs:  £77,893 year ending 31/07/07    
 
Own Contribution:  Members subscriptions  £50,000 
  
Grant Sought:   £1,000  
 
Previous Awards (Vale):  £2,500 in 2004/05; £1,000 in 2005/06, 2006/07 and 2007/08       
 
Parish Council Support:  With over 200 parish councils in the county the 
 organisation feels it would be too onerous to administer in the context of their 
 work, however, they do have a funding strategy to assist with funding from 
 alternative sources. 
                                                                
 Other Support:  The four other district councils and Oxfordshire County Council: £1,000 
each; business sponsorship £6,000; Advertising £17,500.  
 
Officer recommendation (Toby Warren, Head of Community Strategy): 
 
Recommend support Yes 
Amount recommended  
Reasons:  
Meets CG Scheme criteria Yes 
Supports Council priority(ies) Cleaner, greener, safer & healthier 

community and environment 
Supports Vale Community Strategy 
strand(s) 

Recreation, Culture & Leisure; Access 
to Services; Town & Village Vitality; 
Education & Lifelong Learning; Health & 
Wellbeing 

Remaining budget £21,714 
Remaining Committee meetings 1 
Total amount recommended for 
other 
applications being considered 

 

Recommended conditions to grant 
award 

 

Other comments  

 
 
(iii)  Applicant:  Oxfordshire Children’s Information Service (OCIS), based in Witney 
 
Years in existence:  2001 
 
Type of organisation:  Registered charity. 
 
Project, service or event details:  Oxfordshire Children’s Information Service is an 
independent charity providing free advice and information services to parents and 
practitioners working with families on finding, using and paying for childcare.  It also offers 

Page 27



information about activities and a whole range of family support and health services 
available to children, young people and families. 
 
This grant application is for funding to support the work of Oxfordshire Children’s 
Information Service whilst allowing for more targeted work in the Vale.   
It will offer this service through: 
Enquiries to the helpline     Target 2,000 
Dissemination of printed materials   Target 1,500 
Outreach services with parents in the district  Target 15 events 
OCIS website & the Oxfordshire Services Directory. Target 200 OSD  records 
 
Supports following Vale Community Strategy strands:  
Access to Services; Recreation, Culture & Leisure; Safe & Supportive Communities; 
Education & Lifelong Learning; Health & Wellbeing  
 
Area of the Vale covered:  Vale-wide 
 
Estimate of number of people the project/service/event will benefit: 2,000 
 
Charge to public for using the project/service/event?:  None 
 
Total estimated project cost:  approximately £478,000 to provide the service 
for the whole of Oxfordshire; £4,758 towards core costs and to support 
targeted work in the Vale (VAT not applicable) 
   
Registered for VAT?: No   
 
Balances: £118,402 at 31/03/07 
 
Running costs:  £478,317 year ending 31/03/07 
 
Own Contribution:  OCIS core work is funded through Oxfordshire County Council, 
contract with Oxfordshire NHS Trusts and grants/Service Level Agreements with other 
district councils. 
 
Grant Sought:  £4,758 
 
Previous Awards (Vale):  £1,000 in 2007/08, £1,000 in 2006/07 
 
Parish Council Support:  OCIS has been advised to apply to all parish councils in the 
Vale 
 
Other Support:   
Oxfordshire County Council    £302,703 (31.03.07) 
Oxfordshire NHS Trusts    £83,604 (31.03.07) 
Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust   £ 5,807 (31.03.07) 
Oxford City Council, West & South Oxon  
District Councils, Cherwell District Council £12,250 in total (31.03.07) 
 
Officer recommendation (Toby Warren, Head of Community Strategy): 
 
Recommend support Yes 

Amount recommended  

Page 28



Reasons:  
Meets CG Scheme criteria Yes 
Supports Council priority(ies) Cleaner, greener, safer & healthier 

community and environment 
Supports Vale Community Strategy 
strand(s) 

Access to Services; Recreation, Culture 
& Leisure; Safe & Supportive 
Communities; Education & Lifelong 
Learning; Health & Wellbeing  

Remaining budget £21,714 
Remaining Committee meetings 1 
Total amount recommended for 
other applications being considered 

 

Recommended conditions to grant 
award 

 

Other comments  
 
 
(iv)  Applicant:  Age Concern Oxfordshire, based in Abingdon 
 
Years in existence:  Over 20 years 
 
Type of organisation:  Registered charity and company limited by guarantee  
 
Project, service or event details:  ActiveAge Singing is a pilot scheme for older people, 
intended to encourage the positive aspects of singing as part of a group, and to be a 
stepping-stone to new opportunities for community based social interaction.  This project 
incorporates a series of taster sessions and 2 ongoing weekly classes. 

• 10 taster sessions Vale-wide using a community development  approach to 
reach older people isolated either socially or rurally. 

• These will identify key locations where we will establish the  ongoing sessions. 
The format will combine elements of vocal exercise and reminiscence, using music 
spanning the years and genres in a fun, safe environment. 
 
The act of participatory singing has been shown to provide benefits including physical, 
emotional, social and cultural enhancement.  A demand for singing opportunities less 
formal than established clubs and societies has been identified in the consultation carried 
out by Age Concern in the Vale.  
 
The pilot project and taster programme will feed into self-sustaining static groups which will 
be firmly embedded within their community, encouraging volunteering, participation and 
ownership at a local level. 
 
Supports following Vale Community Strategy strands: 
Access to Services; Recreation, Culture & Leisure; Health & Wellbeing; Town & Village 
Vitality 
 
Area of the Vale covered:  Vale-wide 
 
Estimate of number of people the project/service/event will benefit:  210 
 
Charge to public for using the project/service/event?:  There will be no charge for the 
taster sessions to encourage participation and uptake. There will be a small charge of 

Page 29



£2.50 per session for the 10 week course to make it accessible and inclusive to older 
people on all levels of income. 
 
Total estimated project cost:  £4,684 (VAT not applicable) 
 
Balances: £661,498 at 31/03/07 (for the whole of Age Concern Oxfordshire, 
City & County 
 
Running costs: £1,741,820 year ending 31/03/07 (for the whole of Age 
Concern Oxfordshire, City & County  
 
Own Contribution:  Age Concern Oxfordshire will contribute £2,354 which is 
approximately 50% of the project cost. 
 
Grant Sought:  £2,330 
 
Previous Awards (Vale):  £5,000 in 2004/05; £4,500 in 2005/06; £2,000 in 2006/07 all 
towards the Sole Mates footcare project.  No application made in 2007/08. 
 
Parish Council Support:  Age Concern anticipates that funding from the  District Council 
for this pilot project will enable them to draw in money from other sources to roll out the 
programme to greater numbers of older people across the Vale.   
 
Other Support:  When the Vale-wide pilot sessions have been run and locations for 
ongoing sessions confirmed Age Concern will apply to relevant town or parish councils and 
other appropriate funding sources.  They intend to best serve the older people of the Vale 
by using this pilot to ascertain the most beneficial locations. 
 
Officer recommendation (Toby Warren, Head of Community Strategy): 
 
Recommend support Yes 
Amount recommended  
Reasons:  
Meets CG Scheme criteria Yes 
Supports Council priority(ies) Cleaner, greener, safer & healthier 

community and environment 
Supports Vale Community Strategy 
strand(s) 

Access to Services; Recreation, Culture 
& Leisure; Health & Wellbeing; Town & 
Village Vitality  

Remaining budget £21,714 
Remaining Committee meetings 1 
Total amount recommended for 
other applications being considered 

 

Recommended conditions to grant 
award 

 

Other comments  
 
 
(v)  Applicant:  Oxfordshire Chinese Community & Advice Centre (OCCAC), based in 
Princes Street, Oxford 
 
Years in existence:  17 years 
 

Page 30



Type of organisation:  Registered charity; the bilingual advice service carries the “Quality 
Mark” awarded by the Legal Services Commission and holds a certificate from the Office of 
the Immigration Services Commissioner to assist clients with immigration advice. 
 
Project, service or event details:  OCCAC has a Service Level Agreement  grant of 
£4,675 towards running costs which runs from 2007-2010.  
This will provide stability of funding, which will in turn assist OCCAC to explore new funding 
opportunities and attract grants for additional services of benefit to residents throughout the 
Vale. 
 
This application is for an additional grant towards: 
(a)  running the Chinese New Year celebration in 2008/09 (£2,000) 
The annual celebration is the most important celebration in the Chinese calendar and is 
attended by over 1,100 people.  It promotes a multicultural flavour and cross cultural 
harmony.  It is important that the celebration caters for the whole community and remains 
affordable for all, especially families from low income or vulnerable backgrounds. At the 
Chinese New Year celebration in 2007/08 over 100 volunteers assisted on the day and 70 
Chinese restaurants and takeaways sponsored the event.   
The total subsidy required for the event is £5,500. 
 
(b) the running costs of the advice centre (£2,000) 
13% of OCCAC’s clients are from the Vale district; with running costs of £128,000, 13% = 
£16,640. The current SLA grant of £4,675 represents 3.7% of running costs. 
 
Support for OCCAC’s bilingual advice service will benefit non-English speaking Chinese 
residents Vale-wide, helping them to gain equal access to services.  As added value, 
Chinese residents in the Vale will also benefit from other services provided by OCCAC, 
such as adult computing and English language training; vocational training (basic hygiene, 
first aid, health & safety etc); weekly day care and luncheon services for elderly Chinese; 
as well as cultural and community activities (e.g. Chinese New Year celebration).  These 
too support various strands of the Vale Community Strategy. 
 
Supports following Vale Community Strategy strands:  
Access to Services;  Health & Wellbeing;  Recreation, Culture & Leisure; 
Education & Lifelong Learning  
 
Area of the Vale covered:  Vale-wide 
 
Estimate of number of people the project/service/event will benefit: 950 
 
The Office for National Statistics estimated the Chinese resident population in mid-2005 as 
follows: 
Oxfordshire: 6,600: Cherwell: 600, Oxford: 4,200, South Oxfordshire: 600, Vale of White 
Horse: 900, West Oxfordshire: 300 
 
Charge to public for using the project/service/event?:  The bilingual advice service is 
provided free of charge to clients.  A small charge is applied in our luncheon scheme 
(range from £2 - £3.50 for elderly) and community activities, such as the Chinese New Year 
festival celebration (£6 adults; £3 children and elderly).  However, charges are kept at a 
minimum, and concessions apply, in order to promote affordable community activities, and 
to encourage participation from low-income families. 
 
Total estimated project cost: £128,000 (VAT not applicable) 

Page 31



 
Balances: £19,071.63 at 31/03/07 unrestricted funds  
 
Running costs:  £101,810.35 unrestricted funds year ending 31/03/07 plus 
 £153,201.14 restricted funds 
 
Own Contribution:  With the increase in premises and related expenses, OCCAC has 
committed itself to raising £28,000 a year from the community.  This is the absolute limit of 
their fundraising capability; without additional financial support from local authorities, 
increased overhead costs will have to be met from efficiency savings in staffing costs and 
community services, which will lead to service reduction. 
 
Grant Sought:  £4,000   
 
Previous Awards (Vale):   
£4,675 in 2007/08 (SLA) plus £1,000 one-off 
£4,675 in 2006/07 (SLA) plus £1,000 one-off 
£5,500 in 2005/06 (SLA) plus £1,500 one-off 
£5,500 in 2004/05 (SLA) plus £4,500 one-off 
£5,500 in 2003/04 
 
Parish Council Support:  OCCAC applied to all town or parish councils in the Vale district 
for support in 2007-8 and did not receive any positive responses so they have not pursued 
this avenue for 08/09. 
 
Other Support:  Oxford City Council may provide a grant of just over £44,500 p.a. for a 3-
year partnership agreement (2008-2011).  Oxfordshire County Council has agreed a grant 
of £23,952 for advice work services throughout the county. 
 
OCCAC has applied to various district councils, charitable trusts and commercial 
organisations each year, and experienced great difficulties in obtaining support as an ethnic 
minority group. 
 
Officer recommendation (Toby Warren, Head of Community Strategy): 
 
Recommend support Yes 
Amount recommended  
Reasons:  
Meets CG Scheme criteria Yes 
Supports Council priority(ies) Cleaner, greener, safer & healthier 

community and environment 
Supports Vale Community Strategy 
strand(s) 

Access to Services; Recreation, Culture 
& Leisure; Education & Lifelong 
Learning  
Health & Wellbeing  

Remaining budget £21,714 

Remaining Committee meetings 1 
Total amount recommended for 
other 
applications being considered 

 

Recommended conditions to grant 
award 

 

Other comments  

Page 32



 
(vi)  Applicant:  Oxfordshire Association for the Blind (OAB) 
 
Years in existence:  Since 1877 
 
Type of organisation:  Registered charity.   OAB is an entirely independent local (county) 
organisation – not affiliated to a larger organisation such as  RNIB. 
 
Project, service or event details:  OAB wishes to expand its service to blind and partially 
sighted residents (including information, advice, and equipment to enable residents to 
retain their independence and reduce isolation) with the introduction of a mobile resource 
centre and training courses.  OAB will continue to work with the statutory agencies to 
provide: 

• A welfare officer and volunteers supporting 3 self-help groups. 

• A resource centre providing telephone advice, information leaflets, an award winning 
quarterly newsletter, specialist equipment, often including free loan of expensive 
items, and counselling. 

• An advice service based at the John Radcliffe Hospital to support patients 
immediately following a consultation. 

• A supply of free radio/cassette/CD’s. 
 
Supports following Vale Community Strategy strands:  
Access to Services; Recreation, Culture & Leisure; Health & Wellbeing  
 
Area of the Vale covered:  Vale-wide 
 
Estimate of number of people the project/service/event will benefit: 990 
 
Charge to public for using the project/service/event?:  All OAB services are free, with 
the exception of items of specialist equipment which are for sale.  When a person is in 
financial hardship, OAB can often make an item available on loan. 
 
Total estimated project cost: £ 21,333 
 
Registered for VAT?:  No   
 
Balances: Information not available 
 
Own Contribution:  OAB are able to contribute £3,299 from its fundraising activities. 
 
Grant Sought:  £5,000 
 
Previous Awards (Vale): £2,957 in 2007/08,  £2,000 in 2006/07 
 
Parish Council Support:  OAB applied to all of the parish councils in the Vale area and to 
date have received £1,190. 
 
Other Support:  OAB has applied to the following Trusts for its work in the whole of 
Oxfordshire in 2008-09, with the following outcomes: 
 
Lennox Whyfold (pending), British Wireless for the Blind Fund (£3,300), Royal National 
Institute for the Blind (£30,000), Ulverscroft (unsuccessful), Marshall Grant (£2,000), St. 
Michael’s Charities (£2,800), Kathleen Hannay Trust (unsuccessful), CHK Trust (£5,000), 

Page 33



BT Connections (unsuccessful), National Lottery (Reaching Communities) (pending).  This 
totals £42,300.   
 
The proportion of OAB service users in the Vale area is 28% (994 people in the Vale, out of 
3,470 in Oxfordshire).  Therefore, approximately £11,800 of this amount is allocated to 
work in the Vale area. 
 
OAB has received £4,999  for 2008-09 from South Oxfordshire District Council, and £5,510 
from Oxford City Council; it has applied to Cherwell District Council and is awaiting the 
outcome. 
 
Officer recommendation (Toby Warren, Head of Community Strategy): 
 
Recommend support Yes 
Amount recommended  
Reasons:  
Meets CG Scheme criteria Yes 
Supports Council priority(ies) Cleaner, greener, safer & healthier 

community and environment 

Supports Vale Community Strategy 
strand(s) 

Access to Services; Recreation, Culture 
& Leisure; Health & Wellbeing  

Remaining budget £21,714 
Remaining Committee meetings 1 
Total amount recommended for 
other applications being considered 

 

Recommended conditions to grant 
award 

 

Other comments  

 
 
(vii)  Applicant:  My Life My Choice, based in Oxford 
 
Years in existence:  11 years 
 
Type of organisation:  Registered charity  
 
Project, service or event details:  My Life My Choice will run local self-advocacy groups 
in Abingdon and Wantage, as well as the Women’s Group and Men’s Group that are also 
based in Abingdon. These groups help support the social inclusion of people with learning 
difficulties into the community, and to be involved in how decisions are made.  The groups 
are fully accessible and people gain in confidence and self-esteem. 
 
The groups discuss the rights of individuals, including access to services, health, housing, 
leisure, transport, learning and social care.  The groups also give individuals the means to 
support each other in making decisions, and empowers individuals to make their decisions. 
 
This year My Life My Choice will be working with Oxfordshire PCT to take their Active 
Lifestyles project into the local groups.  This has resulted from their successful work with 
the Health Roadshows in 2007/08.  
 
Supports following Vale Community Strategy strands: 
Access to Services; Town & Village Vitality (including fostering a spirit of community); 
Health & Wellbeing 

Page 34



 
Area of the Vale covered:  The groups are based in Abingdon and Wantage but My Life 
My Choice provides the cost of transport to help everyone in the Vale to access meetings 
and events. 
 
Estimate of number of people the project/service/event will benefit: 65 
 
Charge to public for using the project/service/event?:  None 
 
Total estimated project cost:  £ 53,727.32 to run the 4 groups in the Vale 
 
Registered for VAT?: No   
 
Balances:  £ 51,829 (31.03.07) 
 
Own Contribution:  My Life My Choice will raise funds to cover the remaining balance of £ 
8,828.14 
 
Grant Sought:  £ 1,343.18 (this represents 2.5% of the total) 
 
Previous Awards (Vale):   2007/08 £ 1,000 

2006/07 £ 1,000 
2005/06  £ 1,000 

 
Parish Council Support:  Has applied to both Wantage and Abingdon Town Councils for 
£300 each. 
 
Other Support:  My Life My Choice works in all Oxfordshire local authority districts.  My 
Life My Choice receives funding from Oxfordshire County Council, Oxfordshire PCT, 
charitable funds, and the Learning Disabilities Development Fund.  My Life My Choice also 
has in kind support for meetings from the Said Business School. 
 
Officer recommendation (Toby Warren, Head of Community Strategy): 
 
Recommend support Yes 
Amount recommended  
Reasons:  
Meets CG Scheme criteria Yes 
Supports Council priority(ies) Cleaner, greener, safer & healthier 

community and environment 
Supports Vale Community Strategy 
strand(s) 

Access to Services; Health & Wellbeing; 
Town & Village Vitality  

Remaining budget £21,714 
Remaining Committee meetings 1 
Total amount recommended for 
other applications being considered 

 

Recommended conditions to grant 
award 

 

Other comments  
 
 
 

Page 35



(viii)   Applicant:  Oxfordshire Community and Voluntary Action (OCVA)/Volunteer 
Centre Oxfordshire, based in Floyds Row, Oxford 
 
Years in existence:  75 years  
 
Type of organisation:  Registered charity.  Company limited by guarantee.  
 
Project, service or event details:  Volunteer Centre Oxfordshire, a service of OCVA, is 
seeking a grant towards the continuation of its volunteer brokerage service to organisations 
in the Vale.  At present the Centre displays 86 volunteering opportunities for the Vale on 
the Do-it website, which need to be updated regularly.  The Centre will continue to support 
and develop the work that it does with groups, which includes outreach appointments. 
 
The Centre will continue to support and increase the number of individuals enquiring about 
volunteering in the Vale. It will also do more in depth work with agencies that refer 
vulnerable individuals to educate them on supporting people into volunteering. 
 
The Centre is part of a Local Consortium led by Oxfordshire Children’s and Voluntary Youth 
Service (OCVYS) to develop youth volunteering.  It is proposing to employ one person to 
develop local volunteering opportunities for young people, using funding from the V national 
charity. 
 
OCVA is expecting participation in volunteering to be one of the chosen indicators in the 
Oxfordshire Local Area Agreement for 2008-2011.  Oxfordshire County Council has 
advised that 3-year funding will be made available to support the volunteer centre, 
assuming that some match funding is provided by the district councils and the PCT.   
 
Supports following Vale Community Strategy strands:  Town & Village Vitality  
 
Area of the Vale covered:  Vale-wide 
 
Estimate of number of people the project/service/event will benefit:  In the Vale in 
2007/8 the Centre had contact with 68 individuals enquiring about volunteering positions 
and it is now advertising 86 volunteering opportunities on the Do-it website.  In the coming 
year, the Centre expects to advertise 10 additional opportunities making a total of 96, and 
to have contact with an additional 50 potential volunteers, making at total of 118. 
 
Charge to public for using the project/service/event?:  Volunteer-involving 
organisations wishing to advertise opportunities will be expected to be members of OCVA.  
This currently costs £25 a year but is free for groups with an annual income of less the 
£5,000.  The membership fee entitles them to the full range of OCVA services so is not 
included in the specific budget for this project.  OCVA does not charge the volunteers 
themselves, in the interests of equal opportunities and social inclusion. 
 
Total estimated project cost:   £ 58,639 for the countywide service 
    
Registered for VAT?: No   
 
Balances:  £ 381,238 (OCVA 31.03.07) 
 
Own Contribution:  Share of general OCVA funding  
 
Grant Sought:  £ 5,000 

Page 36



 
Previous Awards (Vale):   2007/08 £ 2,500 

2006/07 £ 2,500 
2005/06  £ 2,500 

 
Parish Council Support: The Centre has been recommended to apply to all parish 
councils in the Vale  
 
Other Support:  OCVA operates county-wide.  It receives funding from Oxford City 
Council, Oxfordshire County Council, Oxfordshire PCT and South Oxfordshire District 
Council.  Additionally, it has obtained a grant from the ‘Wantage Fund’ administered 
through The Oxfordshire Community Foundation to support our Information Points Project. 
 
Officer recommendation (Toby Warren, Head of Community Strategy): 
 
Recommend support Yes 
Amount recommended  
Reasons:  
Meets CG Scheme criteria Yes 
Supports Council priority(ies) Cleaner, greener, safer & healthier 

community and environment 

Supports Vale Community Strategy 
strand(s) 

Town & Village Vitality  

Remaining budget £21,714 
Remaining Committee meetings 1 
Total amount recommended for 
other applications being considered 

 

Recommended conditions to grant 
award 

 

Other comments  

 
 
(ix)   Applicant:  Root & Branch, based in Watchfield 
 
Years in existence:  5 years 
 
Type of organisation:  Registered charity . 
 
Project, service or event details:  Root and Branch is seeking a grant towards the cost of 
buying a kitchen range with six hobs.  
 
Every day clients have the opportunity to cook and share a healthy lunch.  This is a popular 
activity as many clients participate in cooking and everyone shares the communal lunch.  It 
is a hugely beneficial activity as it encourages people to eat a healthy lunch and helps 
clients to develop cookery skills; clients are also able to benefit from the sociable aspect of 
a communal lunch which is very important as many clients live at home by themselves and 
regularly eat by themselves. 
 
Root & Branch was recently awarded a three year National Lottery grant to employ a part-
time Healthy Eating Co-ordinator to teach clients how to cook nutritional meals.  This post 
is due to start in Spring 2008.  However, the kitchen is very dilapidated and the donated 
domestic cooker is not really up to the job of cooking for between 15 and 20 people per 

Page 37



day.  This means that they have had to limit the range of cooking they can do and regularly 
have to repair the shelves and cupboard doors. 
 
Root & Branch is in the process of applying to a number of trusts for funding to buy wood 
so that they can build the kitchen in their woodworking workshop.   
 
Supports following Vale Community Strategy strands:  Education & Lifelong Learning; 
Health & Wellbeing 
 
Area of the Vale covered:  Vale-wide 
 
Estimate of number of people the project/service/event will benefit:  50 
 
Charge to public for using the project/service/event?:  None 
 
Total estimated project cost:   £5,750 (£1,500  for the cooker) VAT not 
applicable 
 
Balances: £22,834 of which £7,107 was unrestricted, at 30/09/07  
 
Running costs: £83,634 of which £74,468 was unrestricted, year ending 
30/09/07 
 
Own Contribution:  Volunteers and staff will teach clients how to make and fit the kitchen 
units.  These will be made in the new woodworking workshops, using tools recently 
purchased from funding raised from numerous charitable trusts. 
 
Grant Sought:  £1,000 
 
Previous Awards (Vale):  2007/08 – £400 (lathe), 2005/06 – £350 (forge), 2004/05 – £500 
(garden) 
 
Parish Council Support:  Has applied to each parish council for a donation towards the 
cooker.  No responses received to date. 
 
Other Support:  Has recently applied to Oxfordshire Primary Care Trust for funding for 
wood to make the kitchen units, plumbing (sinks, taps etc.), a fridge and a freezer.  No 
response received to date. Will also apply to Oxfordshire Community Foundation. 
 
Officer recommendation (Toby Warren, Head of Community Strategy): 
 
Recommend support Yes 
Amount recommended  
Reasons:  
Meets CG Scheme criteria Yes 
Supports Council priority(ies) Cleaner, greener, safer & healthier 

community and environment 
Supports Vale Community Strategy 
strand(s) 

Education & Lifelong Learning 
(including promoting the benefits of 
learning) 
Health & Wellbeing (including health 
awareness education) 

Remaining budget £21,714 

Page 38



Remaining Committee meetings 1 
Total amount recommended for 
other 
applications being considered 

 

Recommended conditions to grant 
award 

 

Other comments  

 
 
(x)  Applicant: Oxford Film and Video Makers (OFVM), based in Catherine Street, 
Oxford 
 
Years in existence:   
 
Type of organisation:  A company limited by guarantee & not having a share capital; a 
registered charity 
 
Project, service or event details: OFVM is seeking a grant towards Summerscreen 2008, 
a film and digital media festival which will be held between 26th July – 3rd August 2008 in 
venues across the district.  The festival comprises workshops and open-air film screenings. 
 
Following on from the last few years’ successes, the programme for the Vale will be as 
follows;  

• Mini Movies - 3 days at Wantage Vale and Downland Museum (8 young people. 14 
– 17 year old). Cost £1,500 

• Mini Movies - 3 days at Sutton Courtenay youth club. (8 young people 14 – 17 year 
old). Cost £1,500 

• Memorial Park, Wantage, open air screening – Film Under the Stars (Sat Aug 2nd 
2008). Cost £650 

• Festival news - 5 days of news gathering workshops for students at Abingdon and 
Witney College. (£2,500 to be secured through other funding) 

 
The BBC will provide support and guidance of professional film makers for the Mini 
(minute) Movie workshops to help 8 young people to develop and produce films of one 
minute in length.  All films produced will be placed on the BBC website and screened at the 
‘Best of the Fest’ screening at the Phoenix Cinema on 3rd August.  The organisers will work 
with the Vale’s Arts Development Manager to identify and recruit young people who do not 
normally have these sorts of opportunities.  There is no charge for participation in the 
workshop. 
 
Over the last two years the Minute Movies workshops have been funded by the Community 
Foundation but their policy prevents them from providing support for a fourth year.  The 
workshops have always been oversubscribed. 
 
The Summerscreen 2008 festival also includes a free film screening in Memorial Park, 
Wantage.  This event proved very popular last year with 600 people turning up to view the 
film.   
 
Oxford Film and Video Makers (OFVM) acts as an information centre for film, video and 
digital media in Oxfordshire as well as the key centre for independent film makers to train, 
gain access to production support, gain screening opportunities and meet up with others 
with similar interests.  
 

Page 39



There is strategic importance in funding this organisation and this particular specialism in 
working with young people and fitting into a larger county wide picture. 
Supports following Vale Community Strategy strands: Recreation, Leisure & Culture; 
Town & Village Vitality; Education & Lifelong Learning 
 
Area of the Vale covered: Vale wide 
 
Estimate of number of people the project/service/event will benefit: 400 
 
Charge to public for using the project/service/event?:  None 
 
Total estimated project cost: £12,950 (no VAT applicable) for Summerscreen 2008 in 
the Vale, West Oxfordshire and Cherwell Districts; the costs in the Vale are £3,650. 
 
Balances:   £59,199 at 31/03/07 of which £3,000 is restricted 
  
Running costs:  £145,990 at 31/03/07 
 
Own Contribution:  £1,000 (venue and staff costs) 
     
Grant Sought:  £3,650 
 
Previous Awards (Vale): £500 in 2006/07; £1,500 in 2007/08 
      
Parish Council Support:  None sought 
 
Other Support: Youth Media Fund £1,45; Media box £2,500 
Applying to other district councils for activities in their area (£2,150 each from  
West and Cherwell); City Council Core funds organisation  
In kind support:  £1,500  (BBC – running workshops free of charge);                      £1,000 
(venue hosting the workshops provided free of charge) 
 
Officer recommendation (Toby Warren, Head of Community Strategy): 
 
Recommend support Yes 
Amount recommended  
Reasons:  
Meets CG Scheme criteria Yes 
Supports Council priority(ies) Cleaner, greener, safer and healthier 

community and environment 
Supports Vale Community Strategy 
strand(s) 

Recreation Leisure & Culture; Town & 
Village Vitality; Education & Lifelong 
Learning 

Remaining budget £21,714 

Remaining Committee meetings 1 
Total amount recommended for 
other applications being considered 

 

Recommended conditions to grant 
award 

 

Other comments  
 
 
 

Page 40



(xi)  Applicant:  Oxfordshire Rural Education Initiative (OREI), Millets Farm, Garford 
 
Years in existence:  8 years 
 
Type of organisation:  Association, funds currently held by Northmoor Trust. 
 
Project, service or event details:  Grant funding is being sought for the ongoing work of 
the OREI which employs an education link officer to assist in delivering a wide range of 
educational needs for school children covering such issues as food production, countryside 
management and the environment, together with other skills set out in the national 
curriculum. 
 
The project is managed by a voluntary steering group and it aims to ensure at least 2000 
children have the opportunity to visit farms in the county during 2008. 
 
Funds received will be used towards the cost of employment of the education link officer 
and the provision of support material. 
 
Supports following Vale Community Strategy strands:  Education & Lifelong Learning; 
Environment; Town & Village Vitality 
 
Area of the Vale covered:  Vale-wide 
 
Estimate of number of people the project/service/event will benefit:  500 
 
Charge to public for using the project/service/event?:  For the first time this year OREI 
are charging £2.75 per child for a half day visit to defray some of its overhead costs. 
 
Total estimated project cost:  £ 9,500 per annum 
   
Registered for VAT?: No   
 
Balances: Information not available 
 
Own Contribution:   Fees and charges £ 3,000 
 
Grant Sought:      £ 2,000 
 
Previous Awards (Vale):   2006/07 £1,000 

2004/05  £2,000 
 
Parish Council Support:  OREI has been advised to apply to all parish councils in the 
Vale  
 
Other Support: OREI successfully applied last year to Central Region Farmers Trust and 
OAST. 
 
Officer recommendation (Toby Warren, Head of Community Strategy): 
 
Recommend support Yes 

Amount recommended  
Reasons:  
Meets CG Scheme criteria Yes 

Page 41



Supports Council priority(ies) Cleaner, greener, safer & healthier 
community and environment 

Supports Vale Community Strategy 
strand(s) 

Education & Lifelong Learning; 
Environment; Town & Village Vitality 

Remaining budget £21,714 
Remaining Committee meetings 1 

Total amount recommended for 
other applications being considered 

 

Recommended conditions to grant 
award 

 

Other comments  
 
 
(xii)  Applicant: Vitalise, registered office in Kendal, Cumbria 
  
Years in existence:  45 years 
 
Type of organisation:  Registered charity and company limited by guarantee 
 
Project, service or event details:  Vitalise is seeking a grant towards the cost of 
subsidising care breaks for disabled residents from the Vale and the weeks given by 
volunteers.  The breaks are subsidised to ensure that they are accessible to those who 
really need them.   
 
Vitalise provides high quality breaks for disabled people in five fully accessible centres 
throughout the country supported by fully-trained nursing and core staff. The breaks are 
based on individual need and ensure that carers have a rest from their vital care role.  
Disabled people benefit from the stimulation of increased access to the arts, sport and 
outdoor activities and social interaction.  In addition, Vitalise recruits volunteers to help 
guests and make their holiday experience more enjoyable.  At the same time, this 
experience gives volunteers the opportunity to enhance their future employment prospects 
by developing new skills or exploring career options.    
 
The work of Vitalise is widely recognised by health professionals and local authorities as 
being vital to the success of care in the community, yet they receive no funding from central 
government. 
 
Supports following Vale Community Strategy strands:  Health & Wellbeing; Recreation, 
Culture & Leisure 
  
Area of the Vale covered:  Vale-wide 
 
Estimate of number of people the project/service/event will benefit: 16 (last year 5 
disabled people enjoyed 9 weeks of planned breaks and 13 other residents provided 17 
weeks of volunteering) 
 
Charge to public for using the project/service/event?:  Each guest pays a fee but 
Vitalise subsidises this with an average of £368 per guest per week; volunteers expenses 
cost £215 per week) 
 
Total estimated project cost: £6,967 (based on demand last year) 
 
Balances: £9,956,000 at 31/01/07 (unrestricted funds) 

Page 42



 
Running costs: £9,174,000 year ending 31/01/07   
 
Own Contribution:   Balance of the subsidy to cover any fundraising 
shortfall 
  
Grant Sought: £1,741.75 (25% of the cost of the subsidies) 
  
Previous Awards (Vale): £400 in 2006/07; £460 in 2005/06         
 
Parish Council Support:  None – see below.  
  
Other Support:  Vitalise operates an ongoing fundraising programme  
approaching individual trusts, local authorities, companies and individuals; 
they also operate a local and national events programme; occasionally  
they benefit from legacies.   
  
Officer recommendation (Toby Warren, Head of Community Strategy): 
 
Recommend support Yes 
Amount recommended  
Reasons:  
Meets CG Scheme criteria Yes 
Supports Council priority(ies) Cleaner, greener, safer & healthier 

community and environment 

Supports Vale Community Strategy  
strand(s) 

Health & Wellbeing; Recreation, Culture 
& Leisure 

Remaining budget £21,714 
Remaining Committee meetings 1 
Total amount recommended for 
other 
applications being considered 

 

Recommended conditions to grant 
award 

 

Other comments  

 
 

Page 43



         Appendix B 
 
 
Applicant:  Abingdon and District Citizens Advice Bureau 
 
Brief Outline of Project 
 
The Bureau occupies part of Old Abbey House and under the terms of its lease with the 
District Council it has to make a contribution of 30% of the cost of building repairs.  The 
Trustee Board is seeking an exceptional grant towards the cost of roof repairs. The Bureau is 
required to contribute £ 12,750.    
 
It is not possible for the Bureau to pay an amount of £ 12,750 from its income or reserves. In 
2008/09 the Bureau has budgeted for an income of £ 102,869 and expenses of £ 103,832 
resulting in a small deficit of £ 963. Its reserves as of 31st March 2007 were £ 20,296 
(Citizens Advice Bureau membership standards require that reserves cover at least three 
months running costs). 
 
The Bureau has received a grant of £ 3,000 from St Michael & All Saints Churches Fund for 
towards the cost of the roof repairs. It has also made a proposal that £ 3,750 should be paid 
by instalments over three years. The Trustee Board is therefore seeking an exceptional grant 
of £ 6,000. 
 
Officers are mindful that an award of £ 6,000 from the Executive’s Community Grants budget 
of £ 21,714 would restrict the ability of the Executive to support other community project and 
services. Officers have therefore looked at the allocations in other budgets, related to 
community strategy and development, to identify other sources of funding. An amount of £ 
6,000 is available if expenditure is re-allocated and the balances from a number of budgets 
are transferred. 
 
The Bureau receives a base grant of £80,535 p.a. towards core funding under a Service 
Level Agreement (SLA) with the Council.  The Bureau’s SLA grant will be increased in 
2008/09 by an estimated 3.3% as a result of contract inflation which increases the grant to an 
estimated £85,938.  . 
The Council is Bureau’s main funder because national funding bodies will not normally 
provide grants for running costs. The Bureau also receives funding from town and parish 
councils and local trusts and charities and is constantly seeking other sources of funding. 
 
The Bureau aims to ensure that individuals do not suffer due to lack of knowledge of their 
rights and responsibilities or of the services available to them or through an inability to 
express their needs effectively.  Main enquiry and casework areas are money, debt, 
employment, welfare benefits, housing, relationship breakdown, tax and consumer issues. 
 
The bureau works closely with the Wantage Independent Advice Centre and provides a 
service to all residents of the Vale of White Horse. 
 
In 2006/2007 the Bureau helped nearly 5,000 Vale residents.   
 
Financial Information 
 
Total Project Costs    £ 12,750 
 
Balances £ 20,296 at 31/03/07 

Page 44



 
Running costs Budgeted at £ 103,832 year ending 31/03/09 
 
Own Contribution    1,016 voluntary hours per month 
 
Grant Sought £ 6,000 
 
Previous Awards (Vale)   2007/08 £ 80,535 

2006/07 £ 80,535 
2005/06  £ 80,535 

      2004/05 £ 80,535 
2003/04 £ 76,700 

      2002/03 £ 74,825 
       
Town & Parish Council Support (08/09) Has applied to all the parish councils in the district; 

responses so far are shown below.   
 
Abingdon Town Council £ 10,000 
Appleton with Eaton £ 40 
Charney Bassett £ 30 
Childrey £ 50 
Chilton £ 40 
Cumnor £ 200 

Drayton £ 400 
Kennington £ 375 
Kingston Bagpuize with Southmoor £ 100 
Marcham £ 300 
North Hinksey £ 200 
St Helen Without £ 100 
Sutton Courtenay £ 600 

Wootton £ 500 
 
Other Support received in 2007/08, but for specific projects not core funding:  
   
Friends of Abingdon CAB £ 3,700 
Christ’s Hospital £ 45 
Inner Wheel Club £ 100 

 
Officer recommendation (Toby Warren, Head of Community Strategy): 
 
Recommend support Yes 
Amount recommended £ 6,000 
Reasons: This is an exceptional rather than 

recurring grant for a cost which is 
difficult for an organisation of this size to 
budget for 

Meets CG Scheme criteria Yes 
Supports Council priority(ies) Cleaner, greener, safer & healthier 

community and environment 
Supports Vale Community Strategy 
strand(s) 

Access to Services; Health & Wellbeing; 
Town & Village Vitality  

Remaining budget £ n/a 

Page 45



Remaining Committee meetings 1 
Total amount recommended for 
other applications being considered 

n/a 

Recommended conditions to grant 
award 

None 

Other comments This exceptional grant will not be 
funded from the Executive’s community 
grants budget 

 
 
       
       
 
 

Page 46



 

 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL      Report No. 181/07 
          Wards Affected – All 
  

REPORT OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM 
TO THE EXECUTIVE 

4 APRIL 2008 
 

Corporate Governance Report: Third Quarter 2007/08 (to 31 December 2007) 
 
 

1.0 Introduction and Report Summary  
 
1.1 The Corporate Governance Report looks at the key areas of: 

• Corporate Priorities 

• Best Value Performance Indicators 

• Progress against Service Prioritisation Plans 

• Key staffing data (sickness levels and turnover) 

• Progress with Business Process Improvement Reviews 

• Financial commentary 
At its meeting on 18th February the Senior Management Team (SMT) considered the 
third quarter 2007/08 Business Performance Report. This is an exception report which 
covers all of the aspects of corporate governance contained within this report. SMT 
agreed the exceptions (where performance / actions are not on target) to be reported 
to the Executive and agreed the comments / actions which have been included in this 
report. The full versions of the individual reports are available on the Council’s website. 
They can be accessed through the ‘about your Council - performance’ area of the 
website. 

 
1.2 The contact officer for this report is Robert Woodside, Principal Performance 

Management Officer, telephone (01235 520202 ext 499).  Email address:  
robert.woodside@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

 
2.0 Recommendation  
 

That the Senior Management Team’s Corporate Governance exception report and 
proposals be noted. 
 

3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
 This report relates to the Council’s Vision in that it supports all of its objectives and 

does not conflict with any Council Strategies. It supports all of the strands of the Vale 
Community Strategy. 

 
4.0 Exception Reports 
 
4.1 Corporate Priorities Report. 

SMT decided that 1 action and 4 local performance indicators needed to be highlighted 
from this report. Full details are included in Appendix A. 

 
4.2 Best Value Performance Indicator (BVPI) Report. 

SMT agreed that there are 8 BVPIs where progress should be reported to the Executive 
as exceptions. These are: 

• Benefits: BVPIs 78a, 78b, 79a, 79bi & bii  

Agenda Item 13

Page 47



 

 

• Community Safety: BVPIs 127a, 127b 

• % invoices paid on time: BVPI 8 
Full details of the performance of these indicators during the third quarter and the 
appropriate comments are included in Appendix B. 

 
4.3 Service Prioritisation Plan (SPP) Progress Report 

SMT tracks progress against all of the 24 SPPs included in the 2007/8 budget. Work 
on all of the SPPs was either ontrack or complete. There are no specific issues which 
need to be considered by the Executive. Worked up saving targets for the longer term 
SPPs included in the 2007/8 Budget were included in the 2008/9 Budget agreed in 
February 2008. 

 
4.4 Summary of Sickness and Turnover Report 

Sickness: Sickness is down slightly this quarter compared to the same quarter last 
year.  However sickness this quarter is higher than in quarter 2 but this is normal 
bearing in mind the months covered in quarter 3 (October to December) 
Turnover: Turnover is significantly lower this quarter compared to the same quarter 
last year and also slightly lower than quarter 2 this year 
 

4.5 Progress with Business Process Improvement Reviews 
At its meeting on 7th December 2007, the Executive agreed a continuing programme of 
service reviews under the over-arching Organisational Development Framework. It 
was also agreed that progress would be reported through the Quarterly Corporate 
Governance Report. This is the first time that this section has been included in this 
report and a summary of progress is included as Appendix C. The summary identifies 
internal and external costs and the service improvements that have been identified 
and/or achieved. Business Process Improvement (BPI) typically involves a review of a 
whole service area or set of specific processes, with the aim of identifying areas of 
‘waste’ that can be driven out by improving processes and technology and developing 
people. This should deliver improved services using fewer resources.  
 
At its meeting on 17th March 2008 the Senior Management Team (SMT) considered 
progress with the review programme and the fact that efficiency savings identified 
through the current Business Process Improvement programme have yet to be 
delivered. Following a presentation by the Head of Organisational Change, SMT 
decided that prior to the next meeting of SMT on 21st April 2008, Deputy Directors 
would identify which sections of their respective service areas have the potential to 
offer up savings through Business Process Improvement or other cost efficiency 
options. Organisational change will facilitate and assist Deputy Directors with this work 
and implement the Business Process Improvements. The overall efficiency savings 
required by the Vale are currently being negotiated as part of the new Oxfordshire 
Local Area Agreement. One of the 35 new National Indicators (NI) short listed to be 
included in the agreement is NI 179 Value for Money – total net value of on-going cash 
releasing value for money gains that have impacted since the start of the 2008-9 
financial year. A three year ‘stretch’ target of 10% is currently being considered. A 
report identifying the Value for Money savings that will need to be delivered and the 
Council’s updated BPI programme will be presented to the next meeting of the 
Executive. 

 
4.6 Financial Commentary to the end of  December 2007  

Third Quarter 2007/08 (to 31 December 2007) – projected net over spend £59,129 
The budget monitoring table attached (Appendix D) indicates a favourable movement 
since the second quarter budget monitoring report.  The report to the Executive on 7th 

Page 48



 

 

December identified budget pressures within service budgets of £74,000.   The 
predicted outturn at the end of the third quarter was initially an increased overspend 
particularly as a consequence of identifying budget pressures through the process of 
setting budgets for the new financial year.  On 18th February the Senior Management 
Team introduced ‘special measures’, instructing all budget holders to review their 
projected outturn expenditure to the third quarter and to hold off non-essential 
expenditure for the remaining weeks of the financial year in order to bring the 
predicted over spend down.  The result of this has been a significant reduction in the 
projected over spend and the Council’s chief finance officer will continue to monitor all 
spend in the closing weeks.  He is confident this will significantly improve the predicted 
overspend, hopefully to break-even point.   
 
Commercial Services – projected net under spend (£34,330) 
The DSO is continuing to report increased income from increased activity particularly 
as a consequence of the flooding.  This has helped to offset the budget pressures 
resulting from the need to transfer the Building Regulations Trading Account surplus to 
the balance sheet at year end and a reduced turnover of mobile homes sales causing 
the reduction in commission income. 
 
Contracts and Procurement - projected net under spend (£9,000) 
Under spends on the recycling, refuse collection and street cleansing services have 
helped to offset budget pressures elsewhere within Contracts and Procurement.  In 
recycling, the ‘Bring’ and ‘Mini’ recycling sites have not expanded as planned resulting 
in lower costs and recycling tonnages have exceeded the estimate with a consequent 
total favourable variance of (£43,000).  In refuse collection there has been a net saving 
from a lower number of abandoned vehicles to recover and from the reduced take-up 
of bulky waste collections (£28,000) which has offset the loss of income resulting from 
the withdrawal of the green sack scheme £10,000.  In street cleansing there have 
been savings from the vacant Principal Waste Officer post and a small saving on the 
contract payment is expected (£9,000). 
 
The Halls services are reporting a reduction of income of £25,000 for the year.  
Landscape, Horticulture, Parks and Open spaces are reporting budget pressures 
totalling £21,000 as a consequence of unbudgeted redundancy costs in the 
Horticultural service and an overspend due to maternity cover in Landscape services 
which have been offset by under spends on seasonal attendants in Parks and Open 
Spaces and the delay of a capital project resulting in lower revenue needs. 
 
Reprographics are reporting a budget pressure of £43,000 as a consequence of under 
recovery of costs.   
 
Sports Development and Recreation have an under spend (£18k) as a consequence 
of a vacant Community Sports Coach post and an under spend against a repairs and 
maintenance budget for the leisure centres. 

 
Democratic Services - projected net (under) spend (£11,100) 
This service was previously reporting an (under) spend of (£24,500).  An additional 
election was required to be held in March for which funding was available from within 
budget.   Any surplus on the elections budget will be returned to the balance sheet 
Election Equalisation Fund to fund future elections.  Budget pressures from the 
increased use of room rents and meeting expenses have been offset by holding a 
Members’ Support administration post vacant and staff shortages in the electoral 
registration service (£11,000). 

Page 49



 

 

 
Environmental Health - projected net (under) spend (£48,800) 
A higher than anticipated demand for school transport licensing has generated 
additional income of (£30,000).  A further saving has resulted as a consequence of 
delays in the air quality programme (£18,800) 
 
Housing and Community Safety - projected net over spend £45,600 
During the process of budget setting it was identified that ring fenced grant income for 
the Homeless Prevention team had been posted to the account without a 
corresponding expenditure budget which had resulted in a budget pressure for that 
team £40,000.   Additionally, an accrual was made for rent income in March 2007 
when the rent income was posted into 2006/07.  This resulted in an unachievable rent 
income target in 2007/08 by £20,000.   Another budget pressure of £17,600 has arisen 
in the temporary housing repairs budget as a consequence of essential repairs 
required to ensure that the accommodation is habitable.  The income for CCTV has 
also under achieved £17,800 as a consequence of a return of income to SODC for the 
costs in 2006/07 (approximately £10,000) and under achievement of the Service 
Prioritisation Plan to make savings by de-commissioning CCTV cameras 
(approximately £8,000)  which resulted in the saving not being achieved. 
 
Under spends of (£36,800) on salaries and (£4,000) on general budgets are being 
held to offset these budget pressures.  Partnership grants are under spending by 
(£5,000) and net temporary accommodation costs are under spending by (£4,000). 
 
Legal Services: £132,000 
(Land Charges (LG11): £116,000, Legal Services (LG21): £16,000) 
  
Land Charges  
The majority of this overspend (£116,000) is represented by a fall in income received 
by Local Land Charges.  The service responds to requests for information from 
prospective purchasers of property about charges and restrictions affecting property. 
 A search includes details about planning, building regulations, roads, traffic schemes 
and environmental matters.  The basic form of search (a ‘personal’ search) costs only 
£11 and this is fixed by law.  Local searches  provide a more comprehensive range of 
information and  cost over £115.00.  The level of fee for a local search is set locally 
and increased annually.  Other Oxfordshire Districts have gone through the exercise of 
completely re evaluating how their fees but have all had to cut them.  No further 
changes to fees are planned at this stage as the government is consulting on the fees 
that can be charged.   
  
The drop in income reflects a move away from the more expensive kind of search, 
partly as a result of the introduction of Home Information Packs (HIPs) for which a 
personal search is required.  However, the turnaround time for personal searches is 
shorter and the loss in income may also reflect a desire for a faster service, in line with 
target times set out in government guidance.  The Council is not currently able to 
provide such a fast service and waiting times for all kinds of search are currently much 
higher than they should be, following the retirement of a member of staff in December. 
 This is being addressed by additional temporary cover.   
  
The requirement for HIPs will be extended later this year and so the demand for the 
less expensive personal search wll rise.  At the same time, there are various other 
national changes afoot and so the nature of the service will change over the next year 
or so.  Good practice now is that searchers should be given access to unrefined data 

Page 50



 

 

held by the Council, as well as simply havng questions answered, as at present.  This 
and other changes represent unknowns and make financial planning challenging.  The 
target icnome for Land Charges has been reduced by £50,000 gross for 2008-2009 
and the actual incme will be closely monitored. Following a successful bid for 
increased resources, a new manager is being appointed.  It is hoped that the quality 
and speed of service will improve as a result.   
  
Legal Services  
Legal Services showed an overspend of £16,000 partly as a result of the use of 
agency staff and also an overspend on legal information resources.  The actual 
amount was kept low because fees income was over target.  All of these issues will be 
addressed in the coming year and it is hoped that better financial management in 
Legal Services will improve the recovery of fees income. 
 
Organisational Development and Support - projected net (under) spend 
(£87,920) 
Failure to fill a temporary 2 year Project Manager post in the first 6 months of the year 
has resulted in an under spend of £20,000 in the current year.  A bid has been 
approved by Council and included in the Medium Term Financial Plan to move the 
funding for the lost half year into 2009/10. 
Other savings have been achieved through a cancelled contract with Redstone and 
the reduced use of Oxfordshire partnership.  A saving of £30,000 was transferred to 
this budget by the virement of the administration post in the Chief Executive’s Strategy 
budget which has been vacant all year. 

 
Planning and Community Strategy - projected net (under) spend (£32,400) 
Expectations of additional planning fee income have been revised downwards slightly 
in light of reducing demand (£110,000).  Car park income continued to fall during the 
winter months to £120,000 below budget. 
 
Ridgeway Financial Services - projected net over spend £120,600 
There has been a substantial adverse movement of £94,000 as a consequence of 
concessionary fares bills being received in January for the months September to 
December 2007 from one major provider.  A budget pressure of £40,000 has been 
identified as a consequence of an agreed payment to Capita for maintaining a specific 
level of Council Tax collection which has been achieved. 
 
Strategy (SB) - projected net under spend (£17,000) 
There is remaining unallocated contingency budget of (£25,600) and budget pressure 
due to full establishment employee costs for the whole year £9,000. 
 

 
SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM 

 
STEVE BISHOP 

STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 
Background Papers:  
All of the background reports detailed in section 1.1 of the report can be viewed on the 
Council’s website.

Page 51



  A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

 -
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

 R
e

p
o

rt
 –

 T
h

ir
d

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

to
 e

n
d

 o
f 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
0

7
 

 

1
. 

F
a

c
il

it
a

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

L
o

c
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
0
7

/ 
0

8
 

Q
1

 
Q

2
 

Q
3

 
Q

4
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 /

 P
ro

g
re

s
s

 

L
P

I 
H

4
  
 N

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 h
o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 h

o
m

e
s
 

m
a

d
e

 d
e

c
e
n

t 
7

5
 

N
/A

 
3

2
 

4
6

 
 

S
lig

h
tl
y
 

b
e

lo
w

 
ta

rg
e

t 
d

u
e

 
to

 
th

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
in

g
 

lo
n

g
e

r 
le

a
d

 
in

 
ti
m

e
s
 

to
 

d
e

liv
e

r.
 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

 
ta

rg
e

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 
 2

. 
C

re
a

ti
n

g
 a

 c
le

a
n

e
r,

 g
re

e
n

e
r,

 s
a

fe
r 

a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 a
n

d
 e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
 

 
A

c
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

M
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
  

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 /

 P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

 
H

E
A

L
T

H
IE

R
 

 
 

 
 

2
.1

5
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

n
 A

ir
 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 
fo

r 
c
e

n
tr

a
l 
A

b
in

g
d
o

n
 

a
n

d
 a

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 V

a
le

 n
e

e
d

in
g
 

s
p

e
c
ia

l 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t
o

 
s
e

c
u

re
 g

o
o
d

 a
ir
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 

D
e

ta
ile

d
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
B

o
tl
e

y
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d

 
b

y
 D

E
F

R
A

 
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

 (
in

c
l.
 

s
o

u
rc

e
 

a
p

p
o

rt
io

n
m

e
n
t)

 f
o

r 
A

b
in

g
d

o
n

 
        C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 

S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

0
7

 
   S

u
m

m
e

r 
2

0
0
7

 
            A

u
tu

m
n
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

 R
e
p

o
rt

 s
h

o
w

e
d

 a
n

 A
ir
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

A
re

a
 (

A
Q

M
A

) 
is

 n
e

e
d

e
d

. 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
n

d
 a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
in

g
 d

e
c
la

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a
 w

ill
 b

e
 

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 P

R
A

C
 o

n
 2

7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8

. 
 

 R
e

p
o

rt
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 

A
Q

M
A

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 d

e
c
la

re
d

 
fo

r 
c
e

n
tr

a
l 
A

b
in

g
d
o

n
, 
a
n

d
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 

to
 b

a
s
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
n

in
g
. 

O
ri
g
in

a
lly

 d
e

la
y
e

d
 u

n
ti
l 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0
7

 d
u
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 C
o

u
n

ty
 t

ra
ff

ic
 d

a
ta

 a
n

d
 V

a
le

 a
ir
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 d

a
ta

 
a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 A
b

IT
S

 t
ra

ff
ic

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 w

a
s
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
. 

F
u

rt
h
e

r 
d

e
la

y
e

d
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

c
o
n

c
e

rn
s
 o

v
e

r 
C

o
u

n
ty

 t
ra

ff
ic

 d
a

ta
, 

w
h

ic
h

 m
e

a
n
t 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

tr
a
ff

ic
 c

o
u

n
ts

 w
e

re
 

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 w
e

re
 d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
o
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
ro

a
d

 s
e
n

s
o

rs
 d

u
ri
n

g
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 w

o
rk

s
. 

R
e

v
is

e
d

 
tr

a
ff

ic
 c

o
u
n

ts
 f

in
a

lly
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
is

 n
o

w
 d

u
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8

. 
 

 K
n

o
c
k
-o

n
 d

e
la

y
s
 f

ro
m

 F
u

rt
h

e
r 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

 a
s
 

a
b

o
v
e

. 
L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 A

c
ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 n

o
w

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0
8

, 
w

it
h

 r
o

ll-
o

u
t 
to

 

D
a

v
id

 
S

te
v
e

n
s
 

Page 52



  

d
ra

ft
 A

ir
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 
(A

Q
A

P
) 

fo
r 

A
b

in
g
d

o
n

 
 F

in
a

lis
e

 A
Q

A
P

 f
o

r 
A

b
in

g
d

o
n

 

2
0

0
7

 
    M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

0
8

 

fu
ll 

p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 S
u
m

m
e

r/
 A

u
tu

m
n

. 
 

  F
in

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
/M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

0
9

. 
N

o
te

 t
h

is
 t

im
e

ta
b

le
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 i
f 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
ty

’s
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

A
b

IT
S

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
s
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
. 
It

 m
a

y
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 i
f 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
o
p

ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
a

c
ti
o

n
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

o
d
e

lli
n

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
c
y
 w

o
rk

. 
   

L
o

c
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

to
 t

h
e

s
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 a

re
a

s
 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
0
7

/0
8

 
Q

1
 

Q
2

 
Q

3
 

Q
4

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 /
 P

ro
g

re
s
s

 

C
L

E
A

N
E

R
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

L
P

I 
E

H
6

 N
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

G
ro

t 
S

p
o

ts
 c

le
a

n
e

d
 u

p
 

 
1

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
 

 
“G

ro
ts

p
o

ts
” 

a
re

 h
ig

h
ly

 v
is

ib
le

 s
it
e

s
 p

e
rs

is
te

n
tl
y
 

s
u
ff

e
ri
n

g
 f

ro
m

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
p

ro
b

le
m

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 l
it
te

r,
 

fl
y
-t

ip
p

in
g
 a

n
d
 g

ra
ff

it
i 
–
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 e

y
e

s
o

re
s
. 

T
h

e
 t
e

rm
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 u

s
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 I
D

e
A

 R
e

p
u

ta
ti
o

n
s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h

e
 V

a
le

 h
a

s
 s

ig
n

e
d
 u

p
. 
T

h
e

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

7
 w

it
h

 
id

e
n

ti
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

it
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
th

e
m

, 
w

h
ic

h
 u

s
u
a

lly
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 a

 m
u

lt
id

is
c
ip

lin
a
ry

 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
W

a
rd

e
n

s
. 

1
5

 s
it
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
, 
w

it
h

 1
2

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
le

a
n

e
d

 u
p

/a
c
ti
o

n
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
n
d

 o
f 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
8

. 
    

3
. 

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
o

d
e

rn
is

in
g

 a
c

c
e

s
s
 t

o
 o

u
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 
L

o
c

a
l 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
0
7

/8
 

Q
1
 

Q
2
 

Q
3
 

Q
4
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 /

 P
ro

g
re

s
s

 

C
S

2
 

N
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 a

t 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

P
o

in
t 
A

b
in

g
d

o
n

: 
 

F
a

c
e

 t
o
 F

a
c
e
 3

5
,0

0
0

 

 6
3

,3
0

0
 

 1
4

4
6

2
 

 8
2

5
5

 

 3
2

0
2

2
 

 1
7

8
1

2
 

 4
5

0
5

9
 

 2
5

3
2

6
 

 
W

h
e
n
 s

e
tt

in
g
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
rs

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
fa

c
e

 t
o

 
fa

c
e

 e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 a

 l
o

w
e

r 
fi
g
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

la
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

w
a

s
 s

e
t.

 L
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
fi
g
u

re
s
 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 s

lig
h

tl
y
 d

o
w

n
, 

in
d

ic
a

ti
n

g
 

Page 53



  

C
o

n
ta

c
t 
c
e

n
tr

e
 1

7
,0

0
0
 

V
is

it
o

rs
 4

,6
0

0
 

 W
e
b
 /
 s

e
lf
 s

e
rv

e
 2

,2
0

0
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
d

e
 o

n
 

th
e

 w
e

b
 

E
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 4

,5
0

0
 t
a

k
e
n

 b
y
 C

o
n

ta
c
t 

C
e

n
tr

e
 

3
5

2
7

 
1

4
5
0

 
 2

6
8

 
 9

5
2

 

  
8

8
1

4
 

  
2

5
0

0
 

  
  

4
9

0
 

  
 

2
4

0
6

 

1
2

3
6

3
 

3
7

5
0

 
 6

7
6

 
 2

9
4
4

 

th
a

t 
w

e
 a

re
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 m

ig
ra

ti
n

g
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 t
o

 o
th

e
r 

c
h
a
n

n
e

ls
 a

s
 p

e
r 

th
e
 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
c
o
n

ta
c
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

W
e
b
 a

n
d

 s
e

lf
 s

e
rv

e
 f

ig
u

re
s
 l
o

o
k
 t
o

 b
e

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
, 

th
e

s
e
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 o

n
c
e

 
th

e
 n

e
w

 c
a

s
h

 r
e

c
e

ip
ti
n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 i
n

 
p

la
c
e

  
C

S
1

1
 

%
 o

f 
c
a

lls
 t
o

 b
e

 a
n

s
w

e
re

d
 w

it
h

in
 2

0
 s

e
c
o

n
d

s
 

9
0

%
 

8
2

%
 

8
1

%
 

8
4

%
 

 
T

h
is

 s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
 i
s
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

e
a

c
h

 m
o
n

th
 a

s
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 
s
ic

k
n

e
s
s
 h

a
v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
. 

 B
u

t 
s
ti
ll 

re
m

a
in

 u
n
d

e
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

- 
la

s
t 

m
o

n
th

 w
e

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 8

7
%

. 
                A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 B
 –

 B
e

s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 

K
e

y
: 

N
/a

 =
 N

o
t 

A
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 
 

T
o
p
 a

n
d
 B

o
tt

o
m

 q
u
a
rt

ile
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
ll 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 A
u

th
o
ri

ti
e
s
 

 

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

T
re

n
d

 
 

  
R

e
d

 -
 w

o
rs

e
 t

h
a

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

 
 

T
re

n
d

 a
rr

o
w

s
: 

c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 2

0
0
7
-8

 w
it

h
 

th
e
 t

h
ir

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

(n
o

t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 B

V
P

Is
) 

 
 

 
 

B
e
tt

e
r 

�
 

 
  

 
 

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 0

6
/0

7
 c

o
lu

m
n

: 
a

c
tu

a
l 
0
6
/0

7
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
6
/0

7
 q

u
a
rt

il
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 d

a
ta

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 W

o
rs

e
 

  
�

 
 

  
 

 

T
 =

 t
o

p
; 

B
 =

 b
o

tt
o

m
; 

M
 =

 
m

id
d

le
 q

u
a
rt

il
e
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
ta

b
le

 
�

 
 

 
 

 

Page 54



  

B
V

P
I 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
T

g
t/

 
In

d
 

T
Q

 
0
6
/0

7
 

B
Q

 
0
6
/0

7
 

  
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
6
/0

7
 

Q
u

a
r

ti
le

 
0
6
/ 

0
7
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8
 

Q
1
 

Q
2
 

Q
3
 

 Q 4
 

o
n

/ 
o

ff
 

T
g

t 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
P

e
rf

o
r-

 
m

a
n

c
e

 
 T

re
n

d
 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

� ���    

7
8
a
 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 

fo
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 

n
e
w

 c
la

im
s
 

T
 

2
4
.5

 
3
3
.8

 
  

2
9
.7

7
 

M
  

2
8
 

4
3
.2

6
 

3
8
.7

4
 

3
2
.9

1
 

  

  

T
h
e

 "
a

n
n

u
a

l"
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 
ta

rg
e

t 
w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

C
a

p
it
a

 h
a

s
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 a

 p
la

n
 

s
h

o
w

in
g
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 r

a
te

 o
f 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d
 "

in
 m

o
n
th

" 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
w

a
s
 a

t 
to

p
 q

u
a

rt
ile

 a
n
d
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 n

o
w

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

. 

�
 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
- 

N
o

n
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

� 

8
 

%
 I

n
v
o

ic
e
s
 

p
a
id

 o
n

 t
im

e
 

T
 

9
7
 

9
1
 

  
9
4
.7

6
 

M
  

9
5
.9

4
 

8
4
.0

8
 

6
8
.0

8
 

7
3
 

  

  

P
o

o
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
s
 l
in

k
e

d
 t
o

 
th

e
 A

g
re

s
s
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n
d

 C
a

p
it
a

 a
re

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 b

u
t 

th
e

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 p

re
d

ic
ti
o

n
 i
s
 

7
5

%
. 

  

�
 

B
V

P
I 

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
T

g
t/

 
In

d
 

T
Q

 
0
6
/0

7
 

B
Q

 
0
6
/0

7
 

  
A

c
tu

a
l 

0
6
/0

7
 

Q
u

a
r

ti
le

 
0
6
/ 

0
7
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

0
7
/0

8
 

Q
1
 

Q
2
 

Q
3
 

 Q 4
 

o
n

/ 
o

ff
 

T
g

t 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
P

e
rf

o
r-

 
m

a
n

c
e

 
 T

re
n

d
 

7
8
b

 

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 

fo
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 

c
h

a
n

g
e
s
 o

f 
c
ir

c
u

m
s
ta

n
c

e
s
 

T
 

7
.8

 
1
5
.6

 
  

6
.4

5
 

T
 

6
.8

 
2
1
.3

2
 

1
8
.2

3
 

1
5
.4

7
 

  

  

T
h
e

 "
a

n
n

u
a

l"
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

C
a
p

it
a

 h
a

s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 
a

 p
la

n
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 r

a
te

 
o
f 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 "

in
 

m
o

n
th

" 
p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
b

e
 h

it
ti
n

g
 t

o
p
 q

u
a

rt
ile

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
8

. 

�
 

Page 55



  

7
9
a
 

%
 o

f 
c
a
s
e
s
 

w
h

e
re

 
c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
 

w
a
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

T
 

9
9
.2

 
9
7
 

  
8
8
 

B
  

9
9
 

9
1
 

9
1
.1

 
9
1
.7

 
  

  

W
h
ils

t 
a

c
c
u

ra
c
y
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 
k
e

y
 f

o
c
u

s
 a

n
d

, 
C

a
p

it
a

 h
a

s
 

a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n
c
e

 a
n
d

 
q
u

a
lit

y
 s

u
p

e
rv

is
o

r 
to

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 
k
e

y
 t

re
n

d
s
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n
t,

 
th

e
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
ta

rg
e

t 
w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 

p
re

d
ic

ti
o

n
 i
s
 9

2
%

. 

�
 

7
9
b

(i
) 

%
 o

f 
o

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n

t
s
 r

e
c
o

v
e
re

d
 

a
s
 a

 %
 o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

B
e
n

e
fi

t 
d

e
e
m

e
d

 
re

c
o

v
e
ra

b
le

 

T
 

8
0
.6

1
 

6
3
.0

1
 

  
8
1
.2

 
T

  
8
7
 

9
4
.9

2
 

5
6
.0

3
 

6
1
.2

1
 

  

  

C
a

p
it
a

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
w

e
ll 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h
e

 
ta

rg
e

t.
 O

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 

m
o

v
e

d
 t
o

 i
ts

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 

o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t
e

a
m

 i
n

 
M

e
n

d
ip

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

. 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
o

u
tt
u

rn
 p

re
d

ic
ti
o

n
 i
s
 6

2
%

. 

�
 

7
9
b

(i
i)

 

%
 

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n

t
s
 r

e
c
o

v
e
re

d
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n

t
s
 i

d
e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 

I 
3
8
.3

8
 

2
6
.8

 
  

3
7
.6

3
 

M
  

4
2
 

9
.7

5
 

1
8
.2

5
 

2
4
.1

1
 

  

  

C
a

p
it
a

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 
w

e
ll 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h
e

 
ta

rg
e

t.
 O

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

w
 b

e
e

n
 

m
o

v
e

d
 t
o

 i
ts

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 

o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t
e

a
m

 i
n

 
M

e
n

d
ip

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
s
h

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

. 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
o

u
tt
u

rn
 p

re
d

ic
ti
o

n
 i
s
 2

9
%

. 

�
 

Page 56



  

1
2
7
a
 

V
io

le
n

t 
c
ri

m
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 

I 
1
3
.1

 
2
2
.9

 
  

1
5
.5

6
 

M
  

1
2
.0

2
 

4
.4

 
3
.6

 
3
.0

6
 

  

  

T
h
e

 c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 t
o

ta
l 
is

 0
.2

0
. 

O
ff

e
n
d

in
g
 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n

t 
a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 V
a

le
 b

u
t 

s
p

ik
e

s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 
w

e
e

k
e

n
d

s
 i
n

 t
o

w
n

s
 a

n
d

 b
u

ilt
-

u
p

 a
re

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n

s
u

ra
te

 w
it
h

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

lc
o
h

o
l 

c
o

n
s
u
m

p
ti
o

n
. 
 T

o
 c

o
u

n
te

r 
th

is
 

th
e

 c
o

n
s
o

lid
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
N

ig
h

ts
a
fe

 
in

 A
b

in
g
d

o
n

, 
W

a
n
ta

g
e

 a
n

d
 

F
a

ri
n

g
d

o
n

 i
s
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 t

o
 

s
h

o
w

 a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 e

ff
e

c
t 
a

s
 i
s
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 h
ig

h
 v

is
ib

ili
ty

 p
o

lic
in

g
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 T
h
u

rs
d

a
y
 a

n
d
 

S
a

tu
rd

a
y
 n

ig
h

t.
  

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
 

fi
g
u

re
s
 a

re
 d

is
to

rt
e

d
 f

ir
s
tl
y
 b

y
 

th
e

 n
e

w
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
o

n
 

a
s
s
a

u
lt
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 l
e

d
 t
o

 m
o

re
 

c
ri
m

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
n

d
 

s
e

c
o

n
d

ly
 t

h
e

 d
o
u

b
lin

g
 o

f 
re

p
o

rt
e
d

 D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 
o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
(a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e
 0

3
/4

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

).
  

 
T

h
is

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 i
s
 a

 
ta

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 C

D
R

P
 a

n
d

 i
s
 

v
ie

w
e

d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 a
s
 a

n
 

a
tt

e
m

p
t 
to

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 v
ic

ti
m

s
 

to
 c

o
m

e
 f
o

rw
a

rd
. 

�
 

1
2
7
b

 

R
o

b
b

e
ri

e
s
 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 
I 

0
.3

 
1
.3

 
  

0
.2

7
 

T
  

0
.1

5
 

0
.0

5
 

0
.0

8
 

0
.0

7
 

  

  

T
h
e

 a
c
tu

a
l 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 V
a

le
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 
lo

w
; 

1
8

 u
p

 t
o

 t
h

e
 t
h

ir
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

2
0

0
7
/8

. 
 O

ff
e

n
c
e

s
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 
ra

re
 a

n
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 s
c
h

o
o
l 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

a
g
g
re

s
s
iv

e
 b

u
lly

in
g
. 

�
 

  Page 57



  A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 C

 -
 P

ro
g

re
s
s

 w
it

h
 B

u
s

in
e
s

s
 P

ro
c
e

s
s

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
s

 
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
  

P
ro

g
re

s
s
  

E
x

te
rn

a
l 

c
o

s
t 

o
f 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

(c
o

n
s

u
lt

a
n

c
y
 c

o
s

ts
) 

E
s

ti
m

a
te

d
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
C

o
s

t 
(o

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
) 

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

s
t 

o
f 

R
e

v
ie

w
  

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 f
o

r 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

•
 C

a
s
h

a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

•
 N

o
n

-c
a

s
h

a
b

le
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

•
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 

A
c

tu
a

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
D

e
li

v
e

re
d

 

L
e

a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
: 

C
h

o
ic

e
 

B
a

s
e

d
 

L
e

tt
in

g
 

(C
B

L
) 

  
 

M
a

p
p

in
g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b

y
 N

C
C

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 A
p

ri
l 
/ 

J
u

n
e
 

2
0

0
7

. 
F

in
a

l 
v
e

rs
io

n
 o

f 
V

a
lu

e
 f
o

r 
M

o
n

e
y
 R

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
s
u
e

d
 (

2
0

.6
.0

7
).

 

£
2

3
8

2
 

£
1

6
4

1
 

£
4

0
2

3
 

C
a

s
h

a
b

le
: 

£
0

 K
  

N
o

n
-c

a
s

h
a

b
le

: 
£

1
2
.2

 K
 

* 
(A

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 h

a
v
e

 t
h
e

 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
to

 b
e

 c
o
n

v
e

rt
e

d
 

to
 c

a
s
h

a
b

le
) 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

: 
N

o
t 

y
e

t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 

 

N
o

t 
y
e

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 

P
a

u
l 

S
ta

in
e

s
/ 

R
o

b
e

rt
 

W
o
o
d

-
s
id

e
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t:
  

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 n
o
t 

y
e

t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

. 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 p

ro
p
o

s
e

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 a

s
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 2
0

0
8

/9
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
la

n
. 
T

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
re

p
o

rt
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 (

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
to

 b
e
 c

a
s
h
a

b
le

).
 T

h
e

 
re

p
o

rt
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 t
h
e

 n
e
e

d
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 h
o
u

s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 A

b
in

g
d

o
n
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 P
o

in
t 

b
u

t 
d

id
 n

o
t 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

 t
h
a

t 
a

n
y
 C

B
L

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 b

e
 m

ig
ra

te
d
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 C

o
n

ta
c
t 

C
e

n
tr

e
. 

 
B

u
il

d
in

g
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

 
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 b

y
 V

a
lu

e
A

d
d

in
g
. 

J
e

re
m

y
 B

e
a

c
h

 a
n

d
 R

ic
h

a
rd

 
B

e
e

l 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
o
n

 1
4

 
N

o
v
 0

7
. 

£
0

 
£

3
1
3

 
£

3
1
3

 
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

s
tr

a
n

d
s

: 
K

e
e

p
in

g
 u

p
 t
o

 d
a

te
 w

it
h

 
re

g
u

la
ti
o

n
; 

R
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 R

e
te

n
ti
o

n
; 

C
o

m
p
e

ti
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 
p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r;
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

. 
N

o
n

 c
a

s
h

a
b

le
: 

In
c
re

m
e

n
ta

l 
s
y
s
te

m
 &

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
(n

o
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

) 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 U

n
if
o

rm
 

re
p

o
rt

s
; 

D
ra

ft
 

o
n

lin
e

 f
e

e
 

c
a

lc
u

la
to

r;
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 
in

fo
; 
T

e
a
m

 
u

p
d
a

te
s
 o

n
 

re
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
; 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
u

rv
e

y
s
 

to
 k

e
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 
o

n
 a

ll 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o
n

s
. 

 

R
ic

h
a

rd
 

B
e

e
l 

   

L
a

n
d

 
C

h
a

rg
e

s
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 b
y
 N

C
C

. 
‘P

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

fe
e

s
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

’ 
£

3
5
0

0
 

£
2

0
5

 
£

3
7
0

5
 

C
a

s
h

a
b

le
: 

N
o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

. 
 

T
im

 
T

re
u
h

e
rz

 

Page 58



  

 
C

R
M

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 H

is
to

ry
: 

D
a

ta
 e

n
tr

y
 &

 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 a

d
m

in
 c

le
rk

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 

b
e

in
g
 u

s
e
d

, 
b
u

t 
ti
m

e
-s

p
a

n
 t
o

 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 4

 y
e

a
rs

 (
!)

 
 

N
o

n
 c

a
s

h
a

b
le

: 
S

m
a

ll 
a

m
o
u

n
t 
o
f 

w
o

rk
 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 C

R
M

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

t 
L
S

P
. 

  
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

(O
n

e
A

p
p

) 
 

S
c
o

p
e
 a

g
re

e
d

. 
N

C
C

. 
W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

 
h

e
ld

, 
O

n
e
A

p
p
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 r
is

k
 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 /
 B

P
I 

re
p

o
rt

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 

N
C

C
 o

n
 2

1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
0
7

. 

£
3

6
5

0
 

£
2

0
6

 
£

3
8
5

6
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s

a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

: 
T

h
is

 w
o

rk
 

c
o

n
c
e
n

tr
a

te
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 O
n

e
A

p
p

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

O
n

e
A

p
p

 i
n
 p

la
c
e

 a
s
 

p
e

r 
p

ro
je

c
t 

p
la

n
. 

M
ik

e
 

G
ilb

e
rt

, 
R

it
a

 
A

le
x
a

n
-

d
e

r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 (
A

ll
 

a
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
) 

S
c
o

p
e
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

. 
 

 
 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 
ta

rg
e

ts
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

. 

 
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t:
  

A
 k

e
y
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 O

n
e

A
p

p
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
a
n

 E
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 D

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
R

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
(E

D
R

M
) 

s
y
s
te

m
 

in
to

 P
la

n
n

in
g
. 

P
ro

je
c
t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 w
a

s
 o

ff
e

re
d

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
 t
im

e
ly

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 O

n
e

A
p
p

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 b
u

t 
th

is
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y
 

th
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t.
 T

h
e

 E
D

R
M

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
s
 a

w
a

it
in

g
 a

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 f
ro

m
 C

llr
 F

a
rr

e
ll.

 
 

A
b

in
g

d
o

n
 

L
o

c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 
P

o
in

t 
 

S
c
o

p
e
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
n
d

 R
e

v
ie

w
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 b
y
 N

C
C

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 
re

p
o

rt
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 o
n

 2
1

s
t  N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

. 
W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
 r

u
n
 w

it
h

 O
C

 
a

n
d

 L
S

P
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

p
la

n
. 

F
in

a
l 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

w
o

rk
e

d
 o

n
 t

o
 o

u
tl
in

e
 t
h
e

 
in

te
n
d

e
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 

£
3

6
5

0
 

£
9

3
3

 
£

4
5
8

3
 

C
a

p
a

c
it

y
: 

c
. 

1
.2

 F
T

E
 

(e
q
u

iv
 t

o
 c

 £
3

3
,5

0
0
 

p
.a

.)
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s

a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

: 
P

ro
c
e

s
s
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 
e

n
s
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 

S
o

m
e

 m
in

o
r 

q
u

ic
k
 

w
in

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
A

n
y
 m

a
jo

r 
a
d

v
a

n
c
e

 
d

e
p
e

n
d

s
 o

n
 n

e
w

 
C

R
M

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

S
u

s
a

n
 

E
lli

s
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t:
 W

o
rk

 o
n

g
o
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 L

S
P

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
h

e
a
d

 o
f 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 C

R
M

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

 
S

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

re
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 C
R

M
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0
8

. 
 

H
u

m
a

n
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 
 

S
c
o

p
e
 a

g
re

e
d

. 
R

e
v
ie

w
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 b
y
 N

C
C

 a
n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 

is
s
u

e
d

 o
n

 2
1

s
t  D

e
c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
0
7

. 
 

£
3

6
5

0
 

£
2

7
1

 
£

3
9
2

1
 

C
a

s
h

a
b

le
: 

£
tb

a
 

N
o

n
-c

a
s

h
a

b
le

: 
tb

a
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s

a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

: 
tb

a
 

 
T

im
 

B
a

rn
e

tt
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t:
 W

o
rk

 o
n

g
o
in

g
. 

T
h
e

 k
e

y
 i
s
s
u

e
 a

t 
p
re

s
e

n
t 

is
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
p

a
y
ro

ll 
s
y
s
te

m
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n

s
is

ts
 o

f 
s
e

v
e

ra
l 
s
e

p
a

ra
te

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 
it
 i
s
 i
n

te
n
d

e
d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 m

o
re

 s
tr

e
a
m

lin
e

d
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
(t

b
a

 –
 t
o

 b
e

 a
d

v
is

e
d

) 

Page 59



   

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 

U
n

it
 

 

S
c
o

p
e
 a

g
re

e
d

. 
R

e
v
ie

w
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 b
y
 N

C
C

 a
n
d

 s
ig

n
e

d
 

o
ff

 r
e

p
o

rt
 i
s
s
u
e

d
. 

N
e

x
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
: 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
tr

a
n

s
fe

rr
in

g
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 
p

o
in

t 
to

 
L

S
P

; 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

lif
e

-s
p
a

n
 C

R
M

 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

   

£
3

6
5

0
 

£
3

2
6

 
£

3
9
7

6
 

C
a

s
h

a
b

le
 /

 N
o

n
 

C
a

s
h

a
b

le
 /

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s

e
rv

ic
e

: 
£

tb
a
 (

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 
d

u
e

 b
y
 e

n
d

 M
a

rc
h

) 
 

 
R

o
b

 
A

k
e

rs
, 

N
ic

o
la

 
D

e
a

rl
in

g
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t:
 W

o
rk

 o
n

g
o
in

g
. 

 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 p

la
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d

 b
e

in
g
 w

o
rk

e
d

 o
n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n

t.
 M

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 p

la
n

 i
s
 c

e
n

tr
e
d

 o
n

 C
R

M
 

s
y
s
te

m
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
(w

h
ic

h
 d

e
p

e
n
d

s
 o

n
 a

 n
e

w
 C

R
M

 s
y
s
te

m
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

).
 

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
A

d
m

in
 /

 
R

e
p

ro
g

ra
p

h
ic

s
 

 

S
c
o

p
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
fi
n
e

d
.  

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
c
y
 d

u
e

 l
a

te
 

F
e

b
 /

 M
a

rc
h
 0

8
. 

 
 

C
o

s
ts

 n
o
t 

y
e

t 
in

c
u

rr
e

d
 

F
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

 
E

ile
e

n
 

R
e

n
n

ie
 /
 

J
o

a
n

 
H

o
w

a
rd

 

  

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 f
u

n
c

ti
o

n
s

 
w

it
h

in
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c

ts
 &

 
P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

s
e

c
ti

o
n

 

S
c
o

p
e
 d

u
e

 f
o

r 
d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 (

s
ta

rt
 

la
te

 F
e
b

 0
8

) 
 

 
C

o
s
ts

 n
o
t 

y
e

t 
in

c
u

rr
e

d
 

F
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
, 

c
o

n
s
o

lid
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
ta

s
k
s
 

a
n

d
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 t
o

 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 L
S

P
 

 
M

ik
e

 
M

a
c
k
a

y
 

 
  A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D
  

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 2

0
0
7

/0
8
 –

 t
o

 e
n

d
 o

f 
D

e
c

e
m

b
e

r 
2
0

0
7
  

 
 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t  

W
o

rk
in

g
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a
r  

P
ro

fi
le

d
 

W
o

rk
in

g
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

to
 

M
o

n
th

 9
 

A
c
tu

a
ls

 t
o

 
M

o
n

th
 9

 
C

o
m

m
it

-
m

e
n

ts
 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 £
 

F
ro

m
 

P
ro

fi
le

d
 

W
o

rk
in

g
 

B
u

d
g

e
t  

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

 
fr

o
m

 
W

o
rk

in
g

 
B

u
d

g
e
t  

 
 

2
0
0
7

/0
8
 

2
0
0
7

/0
8
 

2
0
0
7

/0
8
 

2
0
0
7

/0
8
 

2
0
0
7

/0
8
 

2
0
0
7

/0
8
 

2
0
0
7

/0
8
 

2
0
0
7

/0
8
 

 
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

o
s
ts

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 60



  

C
O

M
 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

1
,0

4
4
,5

2
0
 

1
,1

2
8
,2

1
0
 

7
3
2
,3

7
3
 

5
3
6
,2

3
0
 

7
1
,0

7
6
 

(1
2
5
,0

6
7
) 

1
,0

9
3
,8

8
0
 

(3
4
,3

3
0
) 

C
P

M
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 &
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

6
,6

3
1
,0

7
0
 

6
,3

1
0
,9

7
0
 

3
,5

0
8
,9

4
0
 

2
,7

2
2
,3

6
2
 

5
5
,0

7
8
 

(7
3
1
,5

0
0
) 

6
,3

0
1
,9

7
0
 

(9
,0

0
0
) 

D
E

M
 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

0
 

1
,2

4
5
,8

8
0
 

6
6
9
,8

4
8
 

6
8
2
,6

5
4
 

2
1
5
 

1
3
,0

2
1
 

1
,2

3
4
,7

8
0
 

(1
1
,1

0
0
) 

E
N

V
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

1
,1

5
5
,6

7
0
 

1
,1

5
3
,0

4
0
 

6
1
5
,7

5
8
 

5
1
4
,7

2
5
 

1
,1

1
6
 

(9
9
,9

1
7
) 

1
,1

0
4
,2

4
0
 

(4
8
,8

0
0
) 

H
C

S
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 &

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

1
,5

5
6
,7

2
0
 

1
,7

0
9
,5

9
0
 

2
8
1
,1

7
0
 

3
8
9
,0

8
4
 

9
,5

8
5
 

1
1
7
,4

9
9
 

1
,7

5
5
,1

9
0
 

4
5
,6

0
0
 

L
G

S
 

L
e
g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

9
6
4
,7

8
0
 

(2
0
8
,2

6
0
) 

9
,6

6
7
 

5
8
,2

6
0
 

7
3
8
 

4
9
,3

3
1
 

(7
6
,2

6
0
) 

1
3
2
,0

0
0
 

O
D

S
 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 S
u
p

p
o
rt

 
1
1
6
,3

3
0
 

5
2
9
,2

1
0
 

2
,1

5
3
,2

0
8
 

1
,8

5
9
,7

9
3
 

4
5
,4

3
1
 

(2
4
7
,9

8
4
) 

4
4
1
,2

9
0
 

(8
7
,9

2
0
) 

P
C

S
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

2
,2

8
5
,4

3
0
 

2
,0

5
1
,2

1
0
 

7
6
9
,7

7
4
 

6
3
1
,2

6
0
 

2
3
,0

3
1
 

(1
1
5
,4

8
3
) 

2
,0

1
8
,8

1
0
 

(3
2
,4

0
0
) 

F
IN

 
R

id
g

e
w

a
y
 -

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
,0

9
2
,6

3
0
 

2
,3

6
6
,3

0
0
 

7
5
0
,0

8
0
 

1
1
6
,9

7
1
 

1
 

(6
3
3
,1

0
8
) 

2
,5

4
1
,3

0
0
 

1
7
5
,0

0
0
 

S
C

E
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 (

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
) 

5
5
,9

7
0
 

5
5
,6

7
0
 

3
2
,7

9
5
 

2
,1

4
7
 

1
0
8
 

(3
0
,5

4
0
) 

5
5
,6

7
0
 

0
 

S
S

B
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 (

S
B

) 
1
,1

5
5
,1

0
0
 

9
9
4
,0

1
0
 

5
3
1
,6

1
3
 

5
7
1
,6

5
8
 

2
4
3
 

4
0
,2

8
8
 

1
,0

0
3
,0

1
0
 

9
,0

0
0
 

S
T

S
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 (

T
S

) 
8
,2

3
0
 

7
,2

5
0
 

9
,3

6
8
 

9
,5

3
6
 

0
 

1
6
8
 

7
,9

1
8
 

6
6
8
 

S
B

3
1
 

C
o
n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
y
 

2
7
4
,3

0
0
 

1
4
2
,8

5
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
5
1
,7

1
1
 

(2
5
,5

8
9
) 

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
&

 
o
th

e
r 

b
u
d

g
e
t 
c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 

5
1
1
,9

8
0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

 
2
0
0
7

 S
e
rv

ic
e

 P
ri

o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
s
  

(3
6
6
,8

0
0
) 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T

o
ta

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 c
o
s
ts

 
1
7
,4

8
5
,9

3
0
 

1
7
,4

8
5
,9

3
0
 

1
0
,0

6
4
,5

9
4
 

8
,0

9
4
,6

8
0
 

2
0
6
,6

2
2
 

(1
,7

6
3
,2

9
2
) 

1
7
,6

3
3
,5

0
9
 

1
1
3
,1

2
9
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
A

0
3

  
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
In

c
o
m

e
 

(1
,4

8
2
,3

0
0
) 

(1
,4

8
2
,3

0
0
) 

(1
,1

1
1
,7

2
5
) 

(3
5
9
,0

6
0
) 

0
 

7
5
2
,6

6
5
 

(1
,5

3
6
,7

0
0
) 

(5
4
,4

0
0
) 

V
A

0
1

/0
2
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 I

n
c
o
m

e
 

(1
,9

9
0
,7

0
0
) 

(1
,9

9
0
,7

0
0
) 

(1
,4

7
8
,2

6
6
) 

(1
,4

0
5
,0

3
2
) 

1
0
,5

3
5
 

8
3
,7

6
9
 

(1
,9

9
0
,3

0
0
) 

4
0
0
 

 
T

o
ta

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 i
n

c
o

m
e
 

1
4
,0

1
2
,9

3
0
 

1
4
,0

1
2
,9

3
0
 

7
,4

7
4
,6

0
3
 

6
,3

3
0
,5

8
8
 

2
1
7
,1

5
7
 

(9
2
6
,8

5
8
) 

1
4
,1

0
6
,5

0
9
 

5
9
,1

2
9
 

N
o
te

s
 

1
. 
 O

ri
g

in
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

2
2
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

0
7
  
  

  
  
 2

. 
 B

u
d

g
e
t 
s
h

o
w

in
g
 e

ff
e
c
ts

 o
f 

V
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 

 
3
. 
 W

o
rk

in
g
 B

u
d
g

e
t 
p
ro

fi
le

d
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 p

a
tt

e
rn

 o
f 

e
x
p
e
n
d

it
u
re

 
 

 
 

 Page 61



 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL    Report No. 182/07 
          Wards Affected: All 

 
REPORT OF THE PRINCIPAL PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT OFFICER 

TO THE EXECUTIVE 4 APRIL 2008 
AND TO SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 17 APRIL 2008 

 
Best Value Performance Indicators – Performance against Top and Bottom Quartile 

2006/07 
 

1.0 Introduction and Report Summary  
 
1.1 This report compares the Council’s performance for 2006/07 against that of the national 

top and bottom quartile data for 2006/07 which have been published by the Audit 
Commission. 

 
1.2 The Contact Officer for this report is Robert Woodside, Principal Performance 

Management Officer (01235 520202 ext 499). 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
  
 Executive 
(a) That Members note the Council’s performance against the national top and bottom 

quartile results for 2006/07  
  
 Scrutiny Committee 
(a) That Members note the Council’s performance against the national top and bottom 

quartile results for 2006/07  
 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies  
 

(a) Vision Statement aims A and E. 
(b) The report does not conflict with any Council Strategies. 

 
4.0 Background 
 
4.1 The Audit Commission has published top and bottom quartile data for Best Value 

Performance Indicators (BVPIs) for 2006/07. This allows a comparison to be made 
between the Vale’s audited actual performance for 2006/07 with that of all other Councils 
in England. 

 
4.2 The table attached to this report (Appendix A) contains all 2006/07 BVPIs where the 

Audit Commission has supplied top and bottom quartile data. The headline totals for 
2006/07 from Appendix A are: 
Top Quartile 18  35%  
Middle Quartiles 24  47%  
Bottom Quartile 9  18%  
Total 51   

 
The third quarter Quarterly Corporate Governance Report includes the latest quartiles 
(2006/07) which will enable a comparison to be made with the current year’s 
performance. 

 

Agenda Item 14

Page 62



 

4.3 The following table shows the relative numbers of BVPIs in the top and bottom quartiles 
between 2001/02 – 2006/07. Members should note that it is not possible to do a direct 
comparison between the years because there are changes each year to BVPIs; new 
ones are added and others deleted 

 
Comparison of numbers of BVPIs in top, middle and bottom quartile: 2001/02 – 2006/07 
Quartile 
 

2001/02 2002/03 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 

Top 
 

13 31% 18 38% 14 34% 20 43% 21 38% 18  35%  

Middle 
 

20 48% 21 45% 17 42% 16 35% 23 42% 24  47%  

Bottom 
 

9 21% 8 17% 10 24% 10 22% 11 20% 9  18%  

Total 
 

 
42 

  
47 

  
41 

  
46 

  
55 

  
51  

 

 
 

The table in Appendix A includes a column of the quartiles for 2005/06 (where available) 
which enables any change in the quartiles between the two years to be seen. There are 
9 indicators where performance has moved to a better quartile, 11 indicators where 
performance has moved to a worse quartile, and 26 indicators where performance has 
stayed in the same quartile.  
 

4.4 Appendix B is a table which lists the 9 BVPIs which were in the bottom quartile in 2006/7. 
The table includes the third quarter 2007/8 results and includes the current quartile 
position where this can be calculated (for some indicators this is not possible because 
progress is reported annually.  
 

4.5 A detailed commentary on the third quarter performance for all BVPIs for 2007/8 is 
included in the third quarter Corporate Governance Report which is also on this agenda. 
 

4.6 The Department for Communities and Local Government (CLG) have developed a new 
set of National Indicators which will replace Best Value Performance indicators from 
2008/9. The new set comprises 198 indicators only some of which will be collected and 
reported on by this Council. The relevant new indicators will be included in the 
appropriate service plan 2008/9 and progress will be reported quarterly as part of the 
Corporate Governance Report during 2008/9. Some key issues have not yet been 
decided on by the DCLG, for example, on target setting and reporting annual results. 
Members will be advised on this when they become known.  

 
ROBERT WOODSIDE 

PRINCIPAL PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT OFFICER 
 
Background Papers:  None 

Page 63



 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

  
B

e
s

t 
V

a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 –

 T
o

p
, 

M
id

d
le

 a
n

d
 B

o
tt

o
m

 Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
0
6

/0
7

 
 

1
8

 
T

o
p

 Q
u
a

rt
ile

 (
T

) 

2
4

 
M

id
d

le
 Q

u
a

rt
ile

s
 (

M
) 

9
 

B
o

tt
o
m

 Q
u

a
rt

ile
 (

B
) 

5
1

 
T

o
ta

l 
 

T
o

p
 a

n
d

 B
o

tt
o

m
 q

u
a

rt
il

e
 d

a
ta

 i
s

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
ll
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

 
 

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 0
6

/0
7

 c
o

lu
m

n
: 

a
c

tu
a

l 
0
6

/0
7

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

0
6

/0
7

 q
u

a
rt

il
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 d

a
ta

 
�

 
9

 B
e

tt
e

r 
T

 =
 t

o
p

; 
B

 =
 b

o
tt

o
m

; 
M

 =
 m

id
d

le
 q

u
a

rt
il

e
 

�
 

1
1

 W
o

rs
e

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

/ 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
c

o
lu

m
n

 -
 T

a
rg

e
t 

(T
) 

/ 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
(I

) 
�

 
2

6
 S

a
m

e
 

B
V

P
I 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
g

t/
 

In
d

 
T

Q
 0

6
/0

7
 

B
Q

 
0

6
/0

7
 

  
A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
Q

u
a

rt
il

e
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
Q

u
a

rt
il

e
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 
T

re
n

d
 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

   
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

 

6
4

 
N

o
 o

f 
v
a

c
a

n
t 

p
ri

v
a

te
 s

e
c

to
r 

d
w

e
ll

in
g

s
 

re
tu

rn
e

d
 i

n
to

 o
c

c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

 
T

 
9

5
 

8
 

  
6

7
 

M
  

B
 

�
 

1
8

3
b

 
A

v
e

ra
g

e
 l

e
n

g
th

 o
f 

s
ta

y
 i

n
 H

o
s

te
l 

(w
e

e
k

s
) 

T
 

0
 

1
4

.1
1

 
  

1
1

.2
1

 
M

  
M

 
�

 

2
0

2
 

N
o

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 s

le
e

p
in

g
 r

o
u

g
h

 o
n

 a
 s

in
g

le
 

n
ig

h
t 

T
 

0
 

4
 

  
0

 
T

  
T

 
�

 

2
1

3
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
  

h
o

m
e

le
s
s

 f
o

r 
w

h
o

m
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

c
a

s
e
w

o
rk

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 r

e
s

o
lv

e
d

 t
h

e
ir

 
s

it
u

a
ti

o
n

 (
p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 h
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

s
) 

I 
5

 
2

 
  

5
.4

9
 

T
  

 M
 

 �
 

7
8

a
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 t

im
e

 f
o

r 
p

ro
c

e
s
s

in
g

 n
e
w

 c
la

im
s

 
T

 
2

4
.5

 
3

3
.8

 
  

2
9

.7
7

 
M

  
T

 
�

 

C
le

a
n

e
r,

  
G

re
e

n
e

r 
, 

H
e

a
lt

h
ie

r 
a

n
d

 S
a

fe
r 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
 

8
2

a
i 

%
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s

te
 r

e
c

y
c

le
d

 
T

 
2

2
.8

8
 

1
5

.7
9

 
  

2
2

.8
1

 
M

  
T

 
�

 

Page 64



 

B
V

P
I 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
g

t/
 

In
d

 
T

Q
 0

6
/0

7
 

B
Q

 
0

6
/0

7
 

  
A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
Q

u
a

rt
il

e
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
Q

u
a

rt
il

e
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 
T

re
n

d
 

8
2

a
ii
 

T
o

ta
l 

to
n

n
a

g
e

 o
f 

w
a

s
te

 r
e

c
y
c

le
d

 
T

 
1

6
8
6

2
 

6
9

5
1

 
  

9
6

8
9

 
M

  
M

 
�

 

8
2

b
i 

 
%

 o
f 

h
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

 w
a
s

te
 c

o
m

p
o

s
te

d
 

T
 

1
5

.5
3

 
5

.4
9

 
  

6
.3

 
M

  
B

 
�

 

8
2

b
ii

 
T

o
ta

l 
to

n
n

a
g

e
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 c
o

m
p

o
s

te
d

 
T

 
1

0
7
9

5
 

2
6

1
6

 
  

2
6

6
5

 
M

  
B

 
�

 

8
4

a
 

H
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

 w
a

s
te

 c
o

ll
e

c
te

d
 (

K
g

 p
e

r 
h

e
a

d
 o

f 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
) 

I 
3

9
5

 
4

8
0

 
  

3
6

6
 

T
  

T
 

�
 

8
4

b
 

%
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 (

fr
o

m
 p

re
v
io

u
s

 y
e

a
r)

 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

a
s

te
 

c
o

ll
e

c
te

d
 (

K
G

 p
e

r 
h

e
a

d
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
) 

T
 

-1
.7

8
 

2
.5

1
 

  
4

.2
 

B
  

M
 

�
 

8
6

 
C

o
s

t 
o

f 
w

a
s

te
 c

o
ll

e
c

ti
o

n
 (

£
) 

 
T

 
4

2
.0

4
 

5
5

.8
1

 
  

4
5

.9
7

 
M

  
M

 
�

 

9
1

a
 

T
h

e
 %

 o
f 

h
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

s
 s

e
rv

e
d

 b
y
 a

 k
e

rb
s

id
e
 

c
o

ll
e

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

re
c

y
c

la
b

le
s

 
T

 
1

0
0

 
9

5
.4

 
  

9
9

.2
 

M
  

M
 

�
 

9
1

b
 

T
h

e
 %

 o
f 

h
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

s
 s

e
rv

e
d

 b
y
 a

 k
e

rb
s

id
e
 

c
o

ll
e

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

2
 r

e
c

y
c

la
b

le
s

 
T

 
1

0
0

 
9

3
.5

 
  

9
9

.2
 

M
  

M
 

�
 

1
6

6
a

 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 c
h

e
c
k

li
s

t 
(%

) 
T

 
1

0
0

 
9

0
 

  
9

3
.3

3
 

M
  

B
 

�
 

1
9

9
a

 
C

le
a

n
li

n
e
s

s
 o

f 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
s

 
(%

) 
T

 
7

 
1

7
 

  
1

6
 

M
  

M
 

�
 

1
9

9
b

 
P

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
s

 
w

it
h

 u
n

a
c

c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
g

ra
ff

it
i 

v
is

ib
le

 
%

 
T

 
1

 
5

 
  

1
 

T
  

T
 

�
 

1
9

9
c

 
P

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

la
n

d
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
s

 
w

it
h

 u
n

a
c

c
e

p
ta

b
le

 l
e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
fl

y
 p

o
s

ti
n

g
s

 
v
is

ib
le

 %
 

T
 

0
 

1
 

  
0

 
T

  
T

 
�

 

Page 65



 

B
V

P
I 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
g

t/
 

In
d

 
T

Q
 0

6
/0

7
 

B
Q

 
0

6
/0

7
 

  
A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
Q

u
a

rt
il

e
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
Q

u
a

rt
il

e
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 
T

re
n

d
 

1
9

9
d

 

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 /
 

in
c

re
a
s

e
 i
n

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 f
ly

 t
ip

p
in

g
 (

g
ra

d
e

d
 1

 v
e

ry
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 -
 4

 
p

o
o

r)
 

T
 

1
 

3
 

  
3

 
B

  
- 

- 

2
1

6
b

 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
s

it
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
ti

o
n

 o
f 

la
n

d
 

n
e

c
e

s
s

a
ry

 a
s

 %
 o

f 
's

it
e

s
 o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

c
o

n
c

e
rn

' 
I 

1
0

 
2

 
  

1
.7

1
 

B
  

M
 

�
 

2
1

7
 

%
 p

o
ll

u
ti

o
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 i
n

s
ta

ll
a

ti
o

n
s

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

n
 t

im
e

 
T

 
1

0
0

 
9

3
 

  
1

0
0

 
T

  
M

 
�

 

2
1

8
a

 
%

 o
f 

re
p

o
rt

s
 o

f 
a

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
s

 
in

v
e

s
ti

g
a

te
d

 w
it

h
in

 2
4

 h
o

u
rs

 o
f 

n
o

ti
fi

c
a

ti
o

n
 

T
 

9
8

.5
5

 
8

2
 

  
9

2
 

M
  

M
 

�
 

2
1

8
b

 
%

 o
f 

a
b

a
n

d
o

n
e

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 

2
4

 h
o

u
rs

 (
o

f 
le

g
a

ll
y
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o

) 
T

 
9

7
.8

7
 

7
5

.5
 

  
5

7
 

B
  

B
 

�
 

1
0

6
 

%
 n

e
w

 h
o

m
e
s

 o
n

 b
ro

w
n

 f
ie

ld
 s

it
e

s
 

T
 

9
6

.9
2

 
6

5
.9

3
 

  
8

8
 

M
  

M
 

�
 

1
0

9
a

 
%

 o
f 

m
a

jo
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 i
n

 1
3

 
w

e
e

k
s

 
T

 
8

0
.6

5
 

6
5

.2
2

 
  

8
0

 
M

  
B

 
�

 

1
0

9
b

 
%

 o
f 

m
in

o
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 i
n

 8
 

w
e
e

k
s

 
T

 
8

3
.3

8
 

7
1

.4
 

  
7

5
.0

6
 

M
  

M
 

�
 

1
0

9
c

 
%

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 i
n

 8
 

w
e
e

k
s

 
T

 
9

2
.4

6
 

8
4

.8
1

 
  

8
4

.1
2

 
B

  
M

 
�

 

2
0

4
 

%
 a

p
p

e
a

ls
 a

ll
o

w
e

d
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

’s
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 t

o
 r

e
fu

s
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 

   

T
 

2
5

.6
 

3
7

.9
 

  
2

5
 

T
  

- 
- 

Page 66



 

B
V

P
I 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
g

t/
 

In
d

 
T

Q
 0

6
/0

7
 

B
Q

 
0

6
/0

7
 

  
A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
Q

u
a

rt
il

e
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
Q

u
a

rt
il

e
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 
T

re
n

d
 

A
c

c
e

s
s

 t
o

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

 

2
b

 
T

h
e

 d
u

ty
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 r
a

c
e

 e
q

u
a

li
ty

 c
h

e
c

k
li
s

t 
s

c
o

re
 

T
 

8
4

 
5

8
 

  
6

8
.4

 
M

  
B

 
�

 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

- 
N

o
n

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

 

8
 

%
 I

n
v
o

ic
e

s
 p

a
id

 o
n

 t
im

e
 

T
 

9
7

 
9

1
 

  
9

4
.7

6
 

M
  

M
 

�
 

9
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 t
a

x
 c

o
ll

e
c

te
d

 (
%

) 
T

 
9

8
.4

8
 

9
6

.4
9

 
  

9
8

 
M

  
T

 
�

 

1
0

 
N

N
D

R
 c

o
ll

e
c

te
d

 (
%

) 
T

 
9

9
.3

 
9

8
.4

3
 

  
9

8
.8

 
M

  
T

 
�

 

1
1

a
 

%
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e

a
rn

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 w
o

m
e

n
 

I 
4

3
.5

6
 

2
4

.1
1

 
  

2
1

.4
3

 
B

  
B

 
�

 

1
1

b
 

%
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e

a
rn

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 f
ro

m
 e

th
n

ic
 

m
in

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

I 
4

.5
3

 
0

 
  

0
 

B
  

T
 

�
 

1
1

c
 

%
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 e

a
rn

e
rs

 w
it

h
 a

 d
is

a
b

il
it

y
 

I 
5

.4
9

 
0

 
  

1
6

.6
7

 
T

  
- 

- 

1
2

 
D

a
y
s

 s
ic

k
 p

e
r 

m
e

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 

T
 

8
.0

9
 

1
0

.7
3

 
  

8
.0

6
 

T
  

M
 

�
 

1
4

 
E

a
rl

y
 r

e
ti

re
m

e
n

ts
 /

 s
ta

ff
 

I 
0

.1
8

 
0

.9
7

 
  

0
 

T
  

T
 

�
 

1
5

 
Il

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 r
e

ti
re

m
e

n
ts

 /
 s

ta
ff

 
I 

0
 

0
.3

2
 

  
0

 
T

  
T

 
�

 

1
6

a
 

%
 s

ta
ff

 w
it

h
 d

is
a

b
il

it
ie

s
 

I 
4

.4
3

 
1

.9
 

  
5

.7
8

 
T

  
T

 
�

 

1
7

a
 

%
 s

ta
ff

 f
ro

m
 e

th
n

ic
 m

in
o

ri
ti

e
s

 
I 

5
.2

 
1

 
  

2
.3

6
 

M
  

M
 

�
 

7
8

b
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 t

im
e

 f
o

r 
p

ro
c

e
s
s

in
g

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 o

f 
c

ir
c

u
m

s
ta

n
c

e
s

 
T

 
7

.8
 

1
5

.6
 

  
6

.4
5

 
T

  
T

 
�

 

Page 67



 

B
V

P
I 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
g

t/
 

In
d

 
T

Q
 0

6
/0

7
 

B
Q

 
0

6
/0

7
 

  
A

c
tu

a
l 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
Q

u
a

rt
il

e
 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 
Q

u
a

rt
il

e
 

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 
T

re
n

d
 

7
9

a
 

%
 o

f 
c

a
s

e
s

 w
h

e
re

 c
a

lc
u

la
ti

o
n

 w
a
s

 c
o

rr
e

c
t 

T
 

9
9

.2
 

9
7

 
  

8
8

 
B

  
T

 
�

 

7
9

b
(i

) 
%

 o
f 

o
v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
c

o
v
e

re
d

 a
s

 a
 %

 o
f 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
e

n
e

fi
t 

d
e

e
m

e
d

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ra
b

le
 

T
 

8
0

.6
1

 
6

3
.0

1
 

  
8

1
.2

 
T

  
T

 
�

 

7
9

b
(i

i)
 

%
 o

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
c

o
v
e

re
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 
p

e
ri

o
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 o

v
e

rp
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o

d
 

I 
3

8
.3

8
 

2
6

.8
 

  
3

7
.6

3
 

M
  

T
 

�
 

2
0

5
 

Q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
h

e
c

k
li
s

t 
(%

) 
T

 
1

0
0

 
8

8
.9

 
  

9
4

.4
4

 
M

  
- 

- 

2
1

9
b

 
%

 o
f 

c
o

n
s

e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 a
re

a
s

 w
it

h
 a

n
 u

p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 
c

h
a

ra
c

te
r 

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
I 

4
3

.6
3

 
5

 
  

5
 

B
  

B
 

�
 

1
2

6
 

D
o

m
e

s
ti

c
 b

u
rg

la
ri

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0

0
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 

I 
5

.8
 

1
3

.2
 

  
4

.6
3

 
T

  
T

 
�

 

1
2

7
a

 
V

io
le

n
t 

c
ri

m
e

s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

I 
1

3
.1

 
2

2
.9

 
  

1
5

.5
6

 
M

  
T

 
�

 

1
2

7
b

 
R

o
b

b
e

ri
e

s
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 
I 

0
.3

 
1

.3
 

  
0

.2
7

 
T

  
T

 
�

 

1
2

8
 

V
e

h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
s

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

I 
7

 
1

3
.9

 
  

4
.2

4
 

T
  

T
 

�
 

1
7

5
 

%
 o

f 
ra

c
ia

l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
re

s
u

lt
e

d
 i

n
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

c
ti

o
n

 
T

 
1

0
0

 
1

0
0

 
  

1
0

0
 

T
  

T
 

�
 

     

Page 68



 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 B

 -
 B

e
s

t 
V

a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 i
n

 B
o

tt
o

m
 Q

u
a
rt

il
e

 2
0

0
6
/0

7
 (

p
o

s
it

io
n

 a
t 

e
n

d
 o

f 
th

ir
d

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0
0

7
/8

)  
 

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 0
6

/0
7

 c
o

lu
m

n
: 

a
c

tu
a

l 
2
0

0
6

/0
7
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

2
0
0

6
/0

7
 q

u
a

rt
il
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 d

a
ta

 

B
V

P
I 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
g

t/
 

In
d

 
T

Q
 

0
6

/0
7

 
B

Q
 

0
6

/0
7

 
  

A
c

tu
a

l 
0

6
/0

7
 

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

0
6

/0
7

 

T
h

ir
d

 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

0
0
7

/8
 

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 
a

s
 a

t 
th

ir
d

 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

C
le

a
n

e
r,

  
G

re
e

n
e

r 
, 

H
e

a
lt

h
ie

r 
a

n
d

 S
a

fe
r 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
  

 
  

  
  

  
  

 
 

 

8
4

b
 

%
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 (

fr
o

m
 p

re
v
io

u
s

 
y
e

a
r)

 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

a
s

te
 

c
o

ll
e

c
te

d
 (

K
G

 p
e

r 
h

e
a

d
 

p
e

r 
a

n
n

u
m

) 

T
 

-1
.7

8
 

2
.5

1
 

  
4

.2
 

B
  

0
.2

2
 

M
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
y
e

a
r 

1
9

9
d

 

Y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

re
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 /
 i

n
c

re
a

s
e

 i
n

 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 t
o

 
d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 f
ly

 t
ip

p
in

g
 

(g
ra

d
e

d
 1

 v
e

ry
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 -
 

4
 p

o
o

r)
 

T
 

1
 

3
 

  
3

 
B

  
N

/a
 

- 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 

2
1

6
b

 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

s
it

e
s
 w

h
e

re
 

re
m

e
d

ia
ti

o
n

 o
f 

la
n

d
 

n
e

c
e

s
s

a
ry

 a
s

 %
 o

f 
's

it
e

s
 

o
f 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
c

o
n

c
e

rn
' 

I 
1

0
 

2
 

  
1

.7
1

 
B

  
N

/a
 

- 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 

2
1

8
b

 
%

 o
f 

a
b

a
n

d
o

n
e

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 

re
m

o
v
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 2

4
 h

o
u

rs
 

(o
f 

le
g

a
ll

y
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o

) 
T

 
9

7
.8

7
 

7
5

.5
 

  
5

7
 

B
  

8
7

 
M

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 a

n
d
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

a
b

a
n
d

o
n

e
d

 
v
e

h
ic

le
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 l
o

w
 (

1
5

 
re

p
o

rt
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
th

e
 3

rd
 

q
u

a
rt

e
r)

 

1
0

9
c

 

%
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 i
n

 8
 w

e
e
k

s
 

   

T
 

9
2

.4
6

 
8

4
.8

1
 

  
8

4
.1

2
 

B
  

8
8

.5
2

 
M

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
n

d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

id
d

le
 

q
u

a
rt

ile
s
 

B
V

P
I 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

T
g

t/
 

In
d

 
T

Q
 

0
6

/0
7

 
B

Q
 

0
6

/0
7

 
  

A
c

tu
a

l 
0

6
/0

7
 

Q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

0
6

/0
7

 
T

h
ir

d
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

Q
u

a
rt

il
e

 
a

s
 a

t 
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 

Page 69



 

2
0

0
7

/8
 

th
ir

d
 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

- 
N

o
n

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
  

 
  

  
  

  
 

 
 

1
1

a
 

%
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e

a
rn

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 
w

o
m

e
n

 
I 

4
3

.5
6

 
2

4
.1

1
 

  
2

1
.4

3
 

B
  

1
4

.2
9

 
B

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
b

o
tt
o

m
 q

u
a

rt
ile

 

1
1

b
 

%
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e

a
rn

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 f
ro

m
 

e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri

ti
e
s

 
I 

4
.5

3
 

0
 

  
0

 
B

  
0

 
B

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
b

o
tt
o

m
 q

u
a

rt
ile

 

7
9

a
 

%
 o

f 
c

a
s

e
s

 w
h

e
re

 
c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
 w

a
s

 
c

o
rr

e
c

t 
T

 
9

9
.2

 
9

7
 

  
8

8
 

B
  

9
1

.7
 

B
  

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
b

o
tt
o

m
 q

u
a

rt
ile

. 
W

h
ils

t 
a

c
c
u

ra
c
y
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 k
e
y
 f

o
c
u

s
 

a
n

d
, 
C

a
p

it
a
 h

a
s
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d
 a

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 

s
u

p
e

rv
is

o
r 

to
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 k
e

y
 

tr
e

n
d

s
 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n
t,

 t
h
e

 
a

n
n
u

a
l 
ta

rg
e

t 
w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 

p
re

d
ic

ti
o

n
 i
s
 9

2
%

 

2
1

9
b

 

%
 o

f 
c

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 

a
re

a
s

 w
it

h
 a

n
 u

p
 t

o
 

d
a

te
 c

h
a

ra
c

te
r 

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l 

I 
4

3
.6

3
 

5
 

  
5

 
B

 
N

/a
 

- 

3
 m

o
re

 C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 A

re
a

 
a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 w
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 

th
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
n

d
 L

o
c
a

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 G
ro

u
p

 o
n

 
th

e
 1

9
.3

.0
8

 

 
N

/a
 –

 n
o

t 
a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

  
      

Page 70



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL  Report No. 183/07 
 Wards Affected – All 
  

REPORT OF THE DEPUTY DIRECTOR – HOUSING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY 
TO THE EXECUTIVE 

4 APRIL 2008 
 

Oxfordshire Local Area Agreement 2 
 
 
1.0 Introduction and Report Summary  
 
1.1 This report provides information about Oxfordshire’s next local area agreement 

(LAA2). 
 
1.2 The contact officers for this report are Toby Warren, Head of Community Strategy, tel. 

01235 547695; and Paul Staines, Deputy Director, Housing and Community Safety, tel. 
01235 547621. 

 
2.0 Recommendations  
 
 That the Executive: 
 

(a) Endorse the priorities within Oxfordshire’s next local area agreement.  
 
(b) Give delegated authority for the Leader of the Council, in consultation with the 

Chief Executive, to agree targets for the priorities.  
  
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
3.1 This report supports the Council’s Vision and Priorities.  It also supports the Vale 

Community Strategy.  It does not conflict with any Council strategy or policy. 
 
4.0 Background 
 
4.1 Local Area Agreements (LAAs) are three-year agreements between the Government 

and key partners which set out the priorities for improvement in a local area.  They 
should help to join up public services and improve service delivery.  LAAs are set at 
a county or unitary level and should reflect the views of all partners, including district 
councils. 

 
4.2 The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 places a statutory 

requirement on local authorities to co-operate in negotiating and delivering an LAA.  
 
4.3 In Oxfordshire the negotiations with Government are being led by the Public 

Services Board (PSB) on behalf of the Oxfordshire Partnership.  
 

4.4 The Oxfordshire Partnership is the county local strategic partnership and brings 
together the public, private and voluntary sectors in order to improve the social 
economic and environmental well-being of Oxfordshire. 
 

Agenda Item 15

Page 71



4.5 The Public Service Board is made up of representatives of the Oxfordshire 
Partnership including the District Council. The Leader of the Council sits as the 
Council’s representative on the Public Service Board and Oxfordshire Partnership. 

 
4.6 From 1st April 2008 the Government will measure local area performance using 198 

national indicators (which replace all other Government indicators e.g. best value 
performance indicators); up to 35 indicators (plus 16 statutory education and early 
years indicators) must be selected as local priorities for performance improvement.  
The 35 indicators should be the most important indicators for Oxfordshire (so reflect 
the type of area and the particular issues the county faces e.g. lack of affordable 
housing).  

 
4.7 In return for an agreement to improve performance the Government is allowing local 

areas more freedom in spending decisions.  The Government has reduced the 
number of specific ring-fenced grants and has amalgamated them into the ‘area 
based grant’ (which includes previously ring-fenced grants e.g. the safer and 
stronger communities fund) so that partners can decide how to spend this money 
locally.  The priorities that make up LAA2 will inform how area based grant is spent.  
The County Council is the accountable body for area based grant. 

 
5.0 LAA2 Priorities 
 
5.1 The appendix to this report contains the shortlist of LAA2 priorities agreed by the 

Oxfordshire Partnership on 7th March. District Councils in Oxfordshire have worked 
together to ensure that LAA2 contains priorities that are important for the districts as 
well as the County.  This bid will be finalised at the PSB meeting in April. 

 
5.2 The PSB now needs to agree targets for each priority.  The PSB will reserve the 

right to withdraw a priority from the shortlist if it is not possible to agree achievable 
targets with the Government Office for the South East (acting on behalf of central 
government). 

 
5.3 LAA2 negotiations should be completed by June 2008. 
 
6.0 Financial implications 
 
6.1 Agreeing LAA2 has no immediate financial implications for the Council. If in the 

future the Council decides to commit funding to LAA2 priorities any decisions should 
be made through the normal budget setting process.  

 
7.0 Conclusion 
 
7.1 LAA2 identifies the key priorities for Oxfordshire and will provide a framework to 

work in partnership to improve local services. Oxfordshire County Council is the lead 
organisation for LAA2 and has worked closely with other statutory organisations and 
the voluntary sector to develop a set of priorities which reflect the areas for 
improvement in the county over the next three years.  

 
7.2 From April 2009, Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) will replace 

Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA).  CAA will look at the public 
services in an area delivered by councils and their partners including the private and 
voluntary sectors. It will recognise the importance of effective local partnership 
working and the enhanced role of the Community Strategies and the importance of 

Page 72



councils in leading and shaping the communities they serve.  Performance against 
the agreed LAA targets will be a key factor in this assessment. 

 
7.3 Officers envisage that a further report on the LAA will be tabled later in the year once 

the priorities and associated targets are finalised that will set out the commitments 
the Council has made to the targets within the LAA 

 
8.0 Notification of Briefing on LAA 
 
8.1 Members might like to be made aware of a seminar being run by the County Council 

on the development of both the Sustainable Communities Strategy and the Local 
Area Agreement.. The purpose of these briefings is to provide information on how 
the County Sustainable Communities Strategy is  being developed and will be 
delivered through partnership working using the Local Area Agreement and the 
Sustainable Community Strategy Delivery Plan. 

 
8.2 The seminar is being held at the Abingdon Four Pillars Hotel on Thursday 10 April. 

3pm-5pm. Members can book a place by e-mailing 
oxfordshirepartnership@oxfordshire.gov.uk with your name, organisation, contact 
details and any particular access or dietary requirements.  

 
 
 

PAUL STAINES 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNUNITY SAFETY) 

 
 
 
 
Appendix: Indicator List agreed by Oxfordshire Partnership on 7 March 2008 
 
 

Page 73



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 

2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

P
C

T
 -

 J
a

c
k
ie

 
W

ild
e

rs
p

in
 

N
I 

5
6

O
b

e
s
it
y
 a

m
o

n
g

 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

g
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 
Y

e
a

r 
6
 D

C
S

F
 

D
S

O

• 
 W

e
ig

h
t 

W
a

tc
h

e
rs

 F
a

m
ily

 P
ro

je
c
t 

s
ta

rt
in

g
 i
n

 C
h

ip
p

in
g

 
N

o
rt

o
n
 A

re
a
 –

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

0
8

• 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
h

e
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 W

e
ig

h
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 –
 J

u
ly

 2
0

0
8

• 
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

p
u

t 
in

to
 c

h
ild

h
o

o
d

 
o

b
e

s
it
y
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 (

Y
e

a
r 

1
)

• 
 B

re
a

s
t 

F
e

e
d

in
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 I

n
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 –

 n
e

w
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 t
o

 
b

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 i
n

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
h

ig
h

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

k
ill

s
 

b
a

s
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 (

to
 b

e
 r

e
c
ru

it
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 0
8

/0
9
)

A
w

a
it
in

g
 

2
0

0
7

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 

(F
e
b
 2

0
0
8
) 

N
/A

N
o

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

u
n

ti
l 
M

a
r 

2
0

0
8

 
b

u
t 

th
e

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

d
e

ta
ile

d
.

H
a

lt
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

o
n

 
y
e
a
r 

ri
s
e

 b
y
 

2
0

1
0

, 
d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
fi
n

a
l 
ta

rg
e

t 
d

u
e

 i
n

 
A

p
ri

l.
 A

im
in

g
 t

o
 

re
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 

o
f 

c
h

ild
h

o
o

d
 

o
b

e
s
it
y
 t

o
 2

0
0

0
 

le
v
e

ls
 b

y
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

2
0

2
0

.

C
o
u
n
ty

-w
id

e
 

F
u

lly
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 

b
y
 P

C
T

. 

C
&

Y
P

 -
 

M
ik

e
 S

im
m

 

N
I 

6
2

S
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
: 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

m
o

v
e

s
 D

C
S

F
 

D
S

O

N
e

w
 w

o
rk

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
: 

 
• 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ta

b
ili

ty
 p

re
d

ic
ti
o

n
 t

o
o

l 
w

it
h

 
O

x
fo

rd
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
. 

• 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
in

te
g

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

d
u

ty
 &

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
; 

p
re

 &
 p

o
s
t 

c
a

re
.

• 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

a
m

ily
 G

ro
u

p
 C

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

• 
F

u
ll 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

lo
c
a

lit
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

• 
In

te
n

s
iv

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
p

a
re

n
ts

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

t 
ri

s
k
 

• 
S

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
rs

, 
e

.g
. 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 P
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 I

n
fa

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

O
X

P
IP

) 
• 

M
u

lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

t 
p

o
in

t 
o

f 
e

n
tr

y
 t

o
 c

a
re

 t
o

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 e
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 
• 

C
o

u
n

s
e

lli
n

g
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 c
a

re
rs

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

• 
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

• 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

tr
e

a
tm

e
n

t 
fo

s
te

r 
c
a

re
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s

• 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

fi
n

d
in

g
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

n
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h

ild
re

n
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
b

a
c
k
 

to
 2

0
0

4
/5

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

h
a

s
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 
w

o
rs

e
 s

in
c
e

 
2

0
0

4
/5

, 
b

u
t 

in
 

0
7

 w
a

s
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 s
ti
ll 

2
%

 b
e
tt
e

r 
th

a
n
 

S
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
.

2
0
0
6
/7

 -
 1

5
%

 
2
0
0
5
/6

 -
 1

2
%

 
2
0
0
4
/5

 -
 1

1
%

 
(L

o
w

e
r 

%
 =

 
b

e
tt

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
)

O
x
o

n
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 t
o

p
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
b

a
n

d
s

A
im

 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 

lo
w

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
ils

t 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t

s
ta

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 1

1
%

 

C
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
b

ro
k
e

n
 d

o
w

n
 

in
to

 a
re

a
s
 o

r 
lo

c
a

lit
ie

s
. 

P
la

n
s

in
c
lu

d
e

s
e

v
e

ra
l 
n

e
w

 
a

re
a

s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l
S

W
 t

im
e

 t
o

 
p

ro
v
id

e
in

te
n

s
iv

e
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
c
ru

it
 

n
e

w
 c

a
re

rs
 

Page 74



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 2

 o
f 

2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

C
&

Y
P

 -
 

M
ik

e
 S

im
m

 

N
I 

7
0

H
o

s
p

it
a

l
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s

c
a

u
s
e

d
 b

y
 

u
n

in
te

n
ti
o

n
a

l
a

n
d

 d
e

lib
e

ra
te

 
in

ju
ri

e
s
 t

o
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
D

C
S

F
 D

S
O

 

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

T
h

e
 P

C
T

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 w

o
rk

 s
tr

e
a

m
s
 

2
0
0
8
-0

9
* 

R
e

tr
o

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

d
a

ta
s
e

t 
to

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

tr
e

n
d

s
 &

 s
e

t 
b

a
s
e

lin
e

* 
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
.

2
0
0
8
 t

o
 2

0
1
0

* 
In

c
re

a
s
e

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 &
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

c
h

ild
re

n
's

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 w
it
h

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 g

ro
u

p
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

te
e

n
a

g
e

 p
a

re
n

ts
, 

c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r,
 c

a
re

 l
e

a
v
e

rs
, 

y
o

u
n

g
 o

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

. 
* 

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

d
 i
n

ju
ry

 m
in

im
is

a
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 c
h
ild

re
n

's
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 

O
v
e

r 
th

re
e

 y
e

a
rs

 (
2

0
0

8
 t

o
 2

0
1

1
)

R
e

-d
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

-c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 &

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
h

ig
h

e
s
t 

n
e

e
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

* 
 I

n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 i
n

 n
e

e
d

 a
n

d
 e

a
rl

y
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

t 
ri

s
k
 o

f 
a

b
u

s
e

 
a

n
d

 n
e

g
le

c
t 

* 
 N

e
w

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 j
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 
ra

n
g

e
 o

f 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
; 

in
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

th
e

 l
e

a
d

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
ro

le
 

fo
r 

T
e

a
m

 A
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
h

ild
, 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
F

o
rm

.
* 

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 m

u
lt
i 

a
g

e
n

c
y
 t

e
a

m
s
 w

o
rk

in
g

. 
 

W
ill

 b
e

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
in

 2
0

0
8

/9
 

T
B

C

A
b

o
v
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 b

u
t 

b
o

tt
o

m
 q

u
a

rt
ile

 
fo

r 
s
im

ila
r 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

A
n

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
h

o
s
p

it
a

l
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s

c
a

u
s
e

d
 b

y
 

u
n

in
te

n
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 
d

e
lib

e
ra

te
in

ju
ri

e
s
  

D
a

ta
 w

ill
 b

e
 

lin
k
e

d
 t

o
 

p
o

s
tc

o
d

e
 a

n
d

 
a

n
a

ly
s
e

d
  

b
y
 

S
O

A
 a

n
d

 I
M

D
 

o
n

 a
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 

b
a

s
is

£
7

1
5

K
 o

f 
P

C
T

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
o

n
 

th
is

 a
g

e
n

d
a

.

Page 75



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 3

 o
f 

2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

C
&

Y
P

 -
 

M
ik

e
 S

im
m

 

N
I 

8
1

 
In

e
q

u
a

lit
y
 g

a
p

 
in

 t
h

e
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 L

e
v
e

l 
3

 
q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
 b

y
 

th
e

 a
g

e
 o

f 
1

9
 

D
C

S
F

 D
S

O
 

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

1
. 

  
 1

4
-1

9
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 T

e
a

m
 a

d
d

 f
o

c
u

s
s
e

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
, 

a
llo

c
a

ti
n

g
 t

im
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 t

o
 a

 m
e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 t

e
a

m
. 

2
. 

  
 D

a
ta

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 a

n
d

 g
e

n
e

ra
te

d
 f

ro
m

 D
a

ta
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

G
ro

u
p
 

3
. 

  
 I

s
s
u

e
s
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 A

d
v
ic

e
 &

 G
u

id
a

n
c
e

 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

e
p

t 
G

u
a

ra
n

te
e

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
e

d
 v

ia
 

c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 Y
o

u
th

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

t 
th

e
1

4
-1

9
 P

ro
je

c
t 

g
ro

u
p

. 
4

. 
  

 I
s
s
u

e
s
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 D
ip

lo
m

a
 o

ff
e

r 
a

c
ti
o

n
e

d
 v

ia
 

c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 C
o

n
s
o

rt
ia

 a
t 

th
e

1
4

-1
9

 
P

ro
je

c
t 

g
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
H

e
a

d
te

a
c
h

e
rs

’ 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 (

O
S

S
H

T
A

).
 

5
. 

A
c
ti
o

n
s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 b
y
 1

4
-1

9
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
v
ia

 t
h

e
 1

4
-1

9
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
. 

6
. 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 D
a

ta
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 t

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 1

4
-1

9
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
7

. 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
s
e

c
u

re
d

, 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
m

o
te

d
 b

y
 1

4
-1

9
 t

e
a

m
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 
O

F
S

G
 a

n
d

 
O

S
S

H
T

A
 

8
. 

J
A

R
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 l
in

k
e

d
 w

it
h

 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 t
a

rg
e

t 
b

y
 S

e
n

io
r 

A
d

v
is

e
r 

S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 
9

. 
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 O

F
S

G
 

2
0

0
6

/7
: 

D
u

e
 

F
e
b
 0

8
 

2
0
0
5
/6

: 
3
4

%
 

g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

n
o

t-
F

S
M

*
5
1
%

 a
n
d
 

F
S

M
 1

7
%

 i
n

 
O

x
o

n
.

A
v
e

ra
g

e
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
L

3
 

b
y
 1

9
 y

e
a

rs
-o

ld
: 

2
0

0
4

/0
5

 5
1

.3
%

 
2

0
0

5
/0

6
 5

2
.2

%
  

(C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

s
h

ir
e

 
5
0
.5

%
)

N
B

 T
h

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 a
s
 t

h
e

 
m

e
a

s
u

re
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
n

e
w

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
L

3
 

b
y
 1

9
 y

e
a

rs
-o

ld
:

2
0

0
5

/0
6

 5
2

.2
%

  
(C

a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

s
h

ir
e

 
5
0
.5

%
)

1
.R

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 

g
a

p
 t

o
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
le

v
e

ls
: 

L
3

 i
s
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 2

2
%

 
o

f 
1

9
 y

e
a

r-
o

ld
s
 

e
lig

ib
le

 f
o

r 
F

S
M

 
a
t 

1
5
 (

U
p
 f

ro
m

 
1
7
%

)
2

. 
In

c
re

a
s
e

 t
o

 
2
6
%

 (
ra

re
ly

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 s

o
 f

a
r 

o
u

ts
id

e
 t

h
e

 
L

o
n

d
o

n
B

o
ro

u
g

h
s
),

b
ri
n

g
in

g
 O

x
o

n
 

in
to

 t
o

p
 F

S
M

 %
 

L
3

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

ra
te

s
 o

f 
B

u
c
k
in

g
h

a
m

s
h

ir
e

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

,
L

e
ic

e
s
te

r 
C

it
y
 

a
n

d
 B

a
th

 &
 N

E
 

S
o

m
e

rs
e

t.

F
S

M
-e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 
is

 a
n

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
o

f 
d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 

s
o

 w
e

 w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 
to

 u
s
e

 w
h

a
te

v
e

r 
g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l
fo

c
u

s
 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 

u
s
e

d
 f

o
r 

ID
A

C
I 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

. 
W

e
 

e
x
p

e
c
t 

to
 f

o
c
u

s
 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 a
t 

th
e

 
W

a
rd

 l
e

v
e

l.
 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

s
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

o
f 

a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
fu

n
d

in
g

s
tr

e
a

m
s
 i
n

 
1
4
-1

9
 a

re
n
a
. 

 
N

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

id
 

fo
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
E

S
F

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 
N

E
E

T
th

ro
u
g
h

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n

 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
w

a
rd

s
 

C
&

Y
P

 -
 

M
ik

e
 S

im
m

 

N
I 

1
1

0
Y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
’s

 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 P

S
A

 
1

4

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

A
c

ti
v
e

ly
 I

n
v
o

lv
e

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 i
n

: 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s
 

e
v
e

n
ts

; 
W

e
b

s
it
e

 &
 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 t
e

c
h
n

iq
u

e
s
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 

m
a

rg
in

a
liz

e
d

 g
ro

u
p

s
 (

fr
o

m
 M

a
rc

h
 0

8
);

 d
e

s
ig

n
 &

 
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
it
y
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 (

fr
o

m
 A

p
r0

8
) 

P
ro

v
id

e
 P

e
rs

o
n

a
l 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 V
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 Y
o

u
n

g
 

P
e
o

p
le

: 
A

s
s
e

s
s
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 a
t 

g
re

a
te

s
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 &

 w
h

o
s
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
s
 o

ft
e

n
 l
im

it
e

d
; 

A
c
ti
v
e

ly
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

to
 t

a
k
e

 u
p

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

o
th

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 a
n

d
 

u
n

iv
e

rs
a

l(
fr

o
m

 A
p

ri
l 
0

8
);

 O
n

g
o

in
g

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 t

o
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
(f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 
0

8
) 

Id
e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 a
n

d
 g

a
p

s
 i
n

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

:
E

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 i
s
 l
in

k
e

d
 w

it
h

 
b

ro
a

d
e

r 
in

te
g

ra
te

d
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
.(

M
a

y
 0

8
);

F
a

c
ili

ta
te

 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 s
in

g
le

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

ll 
e

le
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
C

Y
P

P
, 

E
x
te

n
d

e
d

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

S
a

fe
r 

R
o

u
te

s
 t

o
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
, 

L
o

c
a

l 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 p
la

n
s
, 

A
im

in
g

 H
ig

h
 (

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
) 

a
n

d
 B

e
s
t 

V
a

lu
e

(M
a

y
/J

u
n

e
 0

8
);

 
P

u
b

li
c
is

e
 P

o
s
it

iv
e

 A
c

ti
v
it

ie
s

: 
M

a
p

 a
ll 

lo
c
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
; 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

ff
e

re
d

 b
y
 D

C
s
(O

c
t 

0
8

);
 S

e
t-

u
p

 w
e

b
-

d
ir

e
c
to

ry
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 (

M
a

y
 0

8
) 

w
it
h

 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g

 
s
it
e

 a
n

d
 a

re
a

 p
ro

s
p

e
c
tu

s
(D

e
c
 0

8
) 

 
R

e
v
is

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
fi

n
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

O
ff

e
r:

 E
n

s
u

re
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
s
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 e

.g
. 

in
fo

 a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

(O
c
t 

0
8

);
 I

n
c
lu

d
e

 

W
ill

 b
e

 
c
o

lle
c
te

d
 i
n

 
0
8
/0

9
 -

 d
a
ta

 
fr

o
m

 a
 r

a
n
g
e
 

o
f 

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

c
o

lle
c
te

d
p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 
b

u
t 

th
is

 w
ill

 
b

e
 t

h
e

 f
ir

s
t 

ti
m

e
 t

h
a

t 
it
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

c
o

lla
te

d
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
1
3
 -

 1
9
.

n
/a

 
n

/a
 

n
/a

 

A
ll 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 p
la

n
s
 

a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 

to
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 

m
o

s
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 

a
n

d
/o

r 
is

o
la

te
d

T
o

 s
e

c
u

re
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g

p
e

o
p

le
 1

3
 -

 
1
9
 (

a
n
d
 u

p
 t

o
 

2
4

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
le

a
rn

in
g

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
/d

i
s
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
) 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l
a

n
d

re
c
re

a
ti
o

n
a

l
p

o
s
it
iv

e
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n

 
y
o
u
n
g

p
e

o
p

le
's

le
is

u
re

-t
im

e
 

re
q

u
ir
e

s
s
h

if
ti
n

g
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

b
u

t 
n

o
t 

n
e

w
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

Page 76



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 4

 o
f 

2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
o

ff
e

r(
O

c
t 

0
8

);
  

M
e

a
s

u
re

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
: 

P
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

o
ls

 t
o

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 

ta
k
e

-u
p

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

; 
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

 &
 s

e
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

 i
n

 0
8

 –
 0

9
; 

M
o

n
it
o

r 
ta

k
e

-u
p

 (
o

n
-g

o
in

g
) 

C
&

Y
P

 -
 

N
ig

e
l 
S

tr
ic

k
 

N
I 

1
1

1
F

ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 

e
n

tr
a

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

s
ti
c
e

 
S

y
s
te

m
 a

g
e

d
 

1
0

 –
 1

7
 P

S
A

 1
4

 

• 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 e
x
te

n
d

 p
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 o

n
 c

o
u

n
ty

w
id

e
 b

a
s
is

 
b

o
th

 b
y
 g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

y
 a

n
d

 a
g

e
 g

ro
u

p
 (

i.
e

. 
7

 –
 1

5
 y

e
a

rs
);

 
• 

T
a

rg
e

t 
n

e
w

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
P

o
s
it
iv

e
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

; 
• 

Id
e

n
ti
fy

 f
u

n
d

s
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 e
x
te

n
d

e
d

 D
iv

e
rs

io
n

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 

b
e

y
o

n
d

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

; 
• 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
la

n
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 s

e
a

m
le

s
s
 

jo
in

t 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h

 A
n

ti
-S

o
c
ia

l 
B

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

C
o

-
o

rd
in

a
to

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d

 d
is

tr
ic

t 
c
o

u
n

c
ils

, 
w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

 
p

re
v
e

n
t 

th
e

 e
s
c
a

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 c
ri

m
in

a
l 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
rs

 b
y
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
. 

J
u

l 
- 

S
e

p
 0

7
: 

2
4

5
2

0
0

6
/7

: 
1

0
3

7
2

0
0

5
/6

: 
1

2
2

9
 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t

s
in

c
e

 2
0

0
5

/6
 

In
 b

e
s
t 

2
5

%
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
. 

F
ro

m
 a

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 
in

 0
6

/0
7

 o
f 

1
,0

3
7

 
to

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 9
3

7
 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 

C
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
fo

c
u

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 

a
g

e
, 

g
e

n
d

e
r,

 
e

th
n

ic
it
y
 &

 
p

o
s
tc

o
d

e
.

T
h
e

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
th

is
 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
re

 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
.

Page 77



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 5

 o
f 

2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

C
&

Y
P

 -
 

M
ik

e
 S

im
m

 

N
I 

1
1

2
U

n
d
e
r 

1
8

 
c
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 r

a
te

 
P

S
A

 1
4

 

§
 T

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
te

rm
in

a
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

s
h

o
u

ld
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
e

p
ti
v
e

 a
d

v
ic

e
. 

§
 A

 m
o

re
 p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

S
R

E
/P

S
H

E
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

ru
g

s
 a

n
d

 a
lc

o
h

o
l)

 i
n

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 
a

n
d

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
, 

w
it
h

 c
le

a
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 
h

o
ts

p
o

t 
a

re
a

s
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
s
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

k
e

y
 r

o
le

s
 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
§

 L
in

k
 t

o
 t

h
e

 E
x
te

n
d

e
d

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 &
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

T
h

e
 o

p
ti
o

n
 

to
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 B

o
d

y
z
o

n
e

s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

e
x
te

n
d

e
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 

b
e

 e
x
p

lo
re

d
. 

§
 E

n
s
u

re
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 h

a
s
 r

e
q

u
is

it
e

 s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 
n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 e

m
b

e
d

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 j
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

§
 S

e
x
u

a
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 t

e
e

n
a

g
e

 p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 i
n

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 Y

o
u

th
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 
§

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

a
re

n
ts

 b
y
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
x
u

a
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
n

 n
o

n
 h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

tt
in

g
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 

§
  

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 

g
ro

u
p

s
§

 E
n

s
u

re
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a

m
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
p

ilo
ts

 
§

 I
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
is

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 d

ir
e

c
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

to
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
e

 h
a

rd
 t

o
 

re
a

c
h

 g
ro

u
p

s
. 

A
 j
o

in
t 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 

n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

0
6

/0
7

: 
N

o
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 y

e
t 

0
5

/0
6

: 
3

4
.1

%
0

4
/0

5
: 

3
4

.3
%

 

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
 

d
a

ta
 f

o
r 

th
e

  
fi
rs

t 
h

a
lf
 o

f 
2

0
0

6
 i
s
 

d
o

w
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

h
a

lf
 o

f 
2

0
0

5
. 

B
e

lo
w

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 (

4
1
.5

%
) 

 
in

 2
0

0
5

 a
t 

3
4
.1

%
.

A
im

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 
te

e
n

a
g

e
c
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 

u
n

d
e

r 
e

ig
h

te
e

n
s
 

b
y
 4

5
%

 b
y
 2

0
1
0
 

in
 O

x
o

n
. 

 T
h

is
 

ta
rg

e
t 

is
 

in
te

rd
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t
ta

rg
e

t 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 
c
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
s

n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
 b

y
 

5
0
%

 b
y
 2

0
1
0
 

E
v
id

e
n

c
e

s
u

g
g

e
s
ts

te
e

n
a

g
e

c
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
s

lin
k
e

d
 w

it
h

 
a

re
a

s
 o

f 
d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
.

F
o

c
u

s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

1
9

 h
o

ts
p

o
t 

a
re

a
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ty
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

th
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

2
0

%
 o

f 
h

ig
h

 
c
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
w

a
rd

s
 i
n

 
E

n
g

la
n

d
. 

D
a

ta
 

c
a

n
 b

e
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
le

v
e

l.
 

T
e
e
n
a
g
e

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 

g
ra

n
t 

is
 

£
1
6
0
,0

0
0
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
, 

P
C

T
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
£
3
0
,0

0
0
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
.

M
o

n
e

y
 i
s
 

h
e

ld
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 A
B

G
 

Page 78



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 6

 o
f 

2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

C
&

Y
P

 -
 

M
ik

e
 S

im
m

 

N
I 

1
1

7
1
6
 t

o
 1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 
n

o
t 

in
 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
,

tr
a

in
in

g
 o

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
(N

E
E

T
) 

P
S

A
 1

4
 

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

T
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 b
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 f
o

c
u

s
 

c
h

o
s
e

n
.

IF
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p

s
 –

 A
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
u

c
h

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 s
o
m

e
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 r

u
n

n
in

g
, 

s
o

m
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 
re

fo
c
u

s
in

g
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 w

o
rk

, 
s
o

m
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
b

id
s
 a

n
d

 
fu

n
d

in
g

 –
 a

n
 L

A
A

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

o
u

ld
 g

iv
e

 b
e

tt
e

r 
fo

c
u

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 m

o
re

 b
id

d
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 
IF

 p
o

o
re

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
N

E
E

T
 –

 l
a

rg
e

ly
 t

h
e

 u
rb

a
n

 
a

re
a

s
 (

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 O

x
fo

rd
),

 L
A

A
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
d

 f
ro

m
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

ro
je

c
t 

w
o

rk
, 

re
v
is

e
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
s
 

a
n

d
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

n
 b

id
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

.
IF

 p
o

o
re

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
In

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 –
 l
a

rg
e

ly
 t

h
e

 
s
u

b
u

rb
a

n
 a

n
d

 r
u

ra
l 
a

re
a

s
. 

S
a

m
e

 a
s
 t

h
e

 p
o

o
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 

N
E

E
T

 a
re

a
s
.

F
o

r 
a

n
y
 o

p
ti
o

n
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 m
e

a
s
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o

rt
in

g
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 i
te

m
 i
n

 1
4

-1
9

/A
re

a
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 &

 Y
o

u
th

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

/A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
/s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
. 

3
1

/1
2

/0
7

4
.1

%
4
.8

9
%

 (
3
1
 

M
a
r 

0
7
) 

5
.9

%
 (

3
1
M

a
r 

0
6
)

5
.3

%
 (

3
1
 M

a
r 

0
5
)

O
x
o

n
’s

 f
ig

u
re

s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
a

lly
 

b
e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h
e
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l,
re

g
io

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rs

.

O
x
o

n
: 

4
.1

%
 o

f 
1

6
-1

8
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 

in
 N

E
E

T
. 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
:

6
.6

%
. 

S
E

: 
5

.2
%

.
O

x
o

n
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
:

4
.6

%

C
it
y
 h

a
s
 N

E
E

T
 

a
t 

9
%

, 
p

la
c
in

g
 i
t 

a
s
 a

 N
E

E
T

 
h

o
ts

p
o

t 
–

 o
n

e
 o

f 
e

ig
h

t 
s
u

c
h

 
h

o
ts

p
o

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

re
g

io
n

.

D
e

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 1
6

-
1

8
 N

E
E

T
 t

o
 3

.0
%

 
(C

u
rr

e
n

t 
ta

rg
e

t 
is

 
3

.7
%

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
0
)

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

o
s
e

 
in

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 1
6

-1
8

 
to

 8
0

%
 (

A
w

a
it
in

g
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 
1

4
-1

9
 t

e
a

m
 a

s
 

th
e

y
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
is

 
fi
g

u
re

).

C
a

n
 b

e
 

g
ro

u
p
e
d
 b

y
 

p
o

s
tc

o
d

e
, 

a
g

e
, 

e
th

n
ic

it
y
, 

y
o

u
th

 
o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

,
le

a
rn

in
g

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 &

 
d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
, 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

-
u

s
e

rs
.

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l
fu

n
d

in
g

~
£

1
.3

K
 p

e
r 

y
o
u
n
g

p
e

rs
o

n
 (

to
ta

l 
£

2
0

0
-2

6
0

K
o

v
e

r 
3

 y
e

a
rs

) 
to

 b
e

 
c
o

v
e

re
d

 b
y
 

E
S

F
 b

id
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 

b
e

in
g

a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
. 

If
 

u
n

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l
w

it
h

 E
S

F
 b

id
, 

 
d

e
p

lo
y
in

g
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
re

s
o

u
rc

e
w

o
u

ld
 s

lo
w

 
p

a
c
e

 o
f 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
o

 
a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
3
.7

%
 b

y
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

. 

Page 79



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 7

 o
f 

2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

S
k
ill

s
 &

 
W

o
rk

 -
 

D
a

v
e

 W
a

lle
r 

N
I 

1
5

2
W

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 

p
e

o
p

le
 o

n
 o

u
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 
P

S
A

 8
 

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

2
0
0
8
-0

9
: 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 C
o

u
n

ty
 w

id
e

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 I
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 
S

k
ill

s
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
h

a
t 

b
u

ild
s
 o

n
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 A

re
a

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
e

s
 r

u
ra

l 
d

is
tr

ic
ts

 a
n

d
 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
W

o
rk

 a
n

d
 p

e
n

s
io

n
s
 p

la
n

s
 /

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
c
o

u
n

ty
. 

• 
F

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 a

re
a

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
n

 w
o

rs
t 

2
0

%
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 f

o
r 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

S
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t 
g

ro
u

p
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 p
ro

lif
ic

 
o

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

.
• 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 o

f 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

le
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
  

• 
A

g
re

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
  

a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
o

lid
a

te
 i
n

to
 c

o
u

n
ty

 w
id

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
: 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 i
n

 4
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 –

 o
n

e
 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 r
u

ra
l 
d

is
tr

ic
t 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

: 
C

o
u

n
ty

 w
id

e
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t

o
 d

ri
v
e

 b
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

. 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 /

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 -

 
p

ro
d

u
c
e

 /
 d

e
liv

e
r 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 P
a

s
s
p

o
rt

 /
 g

u
id

e
 f

o
r 

le
a

rn
e

rs
; 

m
a

p
p

in
g

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 g
a

p
s
, 

d
e

s
ig

n
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 p
a

th
w

a
y
s
 

th
a

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

 a
ll 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

. 
E

n
s
u

re
 V

C
S

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 
a

re
 p

a
rt

o
f 

a
 c

o
h

e
re

n
t 

c
o

u
n

ty
 w

id
e

 l
e

a
rm

in
g

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
e
/s

tr
a
te

g
y
.

2
0

0
6

/7
 0

.9
%

 
(D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r

2
0
0
7
)

2
0

0
5

/6
 1

.0
%

 
(D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r

2
0
0
6
)

2
0

0
4

/5
 0

.9
%

 
(D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r

2
0
0
5
)

B
e

tw
e

e
n

 0
.9

%
 

a
n

d
 1

%
 e

a
c
h

 
y
e
a
r 

fr
o
m

 
2

0
0

4
/5

O
x
o

n
 D

e
c
 0

7
 

0
.9

%
 o

f 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
c
la

im
e

d
 J

S
A

 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

.
N

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
: 

2
.8

%
 

S
E

: 
1

.5
%

S
in

c
e

 2
0

0
1

 
O

x
o

n
 J

o
b

 
S

e
e

k
e

rs
A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 (
J
S

A
) 

c
la

im
s
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 
R

e
g

io
n

a
l

a
v
e

ra
g

e
s

D
u

e
 t

o
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

d
o

w
n

tu
rn

 a
n
d
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 r
u

le
s
 

g
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 J

S
A

, 
In

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 

B
e

n
e

fi
t 

a
n

d
 

In
c
o

m
e

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
ta

rg
e

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 

re
la

te
 t

o
 O

x
o
n

's
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

re
la

ti
v
e

 t
h

e
 S

o
u

th
 

E
a

s
t 

a
v
e

ra
g

e
 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 i
n

 
a

b
s
o

lu
te

 t
e

rm
s
. 

F
ig

u
re

s
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
S

O
A

 l
e

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 
b

y
 a

g
e

, 
e

th
n

ic
it
y
 &

 
g
e
n
d
e
r.

C
h

e
rw

e
ll 

is
 

w
o

rs
e

 t
h

a
n

 n
o

 
o

r 
lo

w
 

q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o

n
a

v
e

ra
g

e
s
 a

n
d

 
s
o

 a
re

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
. 

 W
o

u
ld

 
a

im
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 
th

is
 d

is
p

a
ri

ty
. 

D
e

liv
e

re
d

th
ro

u
g
h

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 /

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

S
o

m
e

S
E

E
D

A
fu

n
d

in
g

 i
n

 
1

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 

L
A

A
1
 r

e
w

a
rd

 
in

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

. 
S

o
m

e
 m

in
o

r 
o
n
e
-o

ff
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

c
o

lla
ti
n

g
/m

a
p

p
in

g
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

a
b

o
u

t 
c
o

u
rs

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

,
le

a
rn

in
g

&
s
k
ill

s
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 /

 
d

is
s
e

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

to
 l
e

a
rn

e
rs

.

Page 80



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 8

 o
f 

2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

S
k
ill

s
 &

 
W

o
rk

 -
 

D
a

v
e

 W
a

lle
r 

N
I 

1
6

3
W

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 t

o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

L
e

v
e

l 
2

 o
r 

h
ig

h
e

r 
P

S
A

 2
 

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 
B

A
S

E
D

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

• 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k
ill

s
 B

o
a

rd
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

• 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 i
n

to
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 o
f 

n
e

w
 r

e
ta

il 
c
e

n
tr

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
• 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

e
d

 l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 T
ra

in
 t

o
 G

a
in

 s
k
ill

s
 b

ro
k
e

rs
 

o
n

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 u
p

ta
k
e

 b
y
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 w

it
h

 
fo

c
u

s
 o

n
 L

2
• 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 b
a

s
e

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 s
ta

rt
in

g
 c

o
u

rs
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
• 

R
e

ta
il 

a
c
a

d
e

m
y
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 
• 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 s

k
ill

s
 r

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 c

o
n
d

u
c
te

d
 

• 
T

ra
in

 t
o

 G
a

in
 w

o
rk

in
g

 g
ro

u
p

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

• 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 w
it
h

 T
ra

in
 t

o
 G

a
in

 i
n

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

• 
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 s

k
ill

s
 c

e
n

tr
e

 s
e

t 
u

p

J
a

n
 -

 D
e

c
 0

6
 

6
9
.0

%
J
a

n
 –

 D
e

c
 0

5
 

6
9
.4

%

2
0

0
6

 6
9

.0
%

 
2

0
0

5
 6

9
.4

%
 

O
x
o

n
 r

a
n

k
s
 9

th
 

in
 S

E
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
.

3
%

 p
o

in
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

le
v
e

ls
. 

C
a

n
 o

n
ly

 b
e

 
s
u

p
p

lie
d

 a
t 

c
o

u
n

ty
 l
e

v
e

l,
 

b
u
t 

o
th

e
r 

re
la

te
d

 d
a

ta
 

fr
o

m
 L

&
S

C
 

c
o

u
ld

 e
n

a
b

le
 

s
o

m
e

g
e

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

a
l

fo
c
u

s
.

P
la

n
s
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 

fr
o

m
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
.

S
k
ill

s
 &

 
W

o
rk

 -
 

D
a

v
e

 W
a

lle
r 

N
I 

1
6

4
 

W
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 t

o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

L
e

v
e

l 
3

 o
r 

h
ig

h
e

r 
P

S
A

 2
 

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 
B

A
S

E
D

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

• 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k
ill

s
 B

o
a

rd
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

• 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 i
n

to
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 o
f 

n
e

w
 r

e
ta

il 
c
e

n
tr

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
• 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

e
d

 l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 T
ra

in
 t

o
 G

a
in

 s
k
ill

s
 b

ro
k
e

rs
 

o
n

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 u
p

ta
k
e

 b
y
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 w

it
h

 
fo

c
u

s
 o

n
 L

3
+

. 
 T

h
e

 L
3

+
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 T
ra

in
 t

o
 G

a
in

 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
s
 a

 p
ilo

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

u
s
 o

ff
e

rs
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 i
ts

 d
e

liv
e

ry
  

• 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 b
a

s
e

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 s
ta

rt
in

g
 c

o
u

rs
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
• 

T
ra

in
 t

o
 G

a
in

 w
o

rk
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

• 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 w
it
h

 T
ra

in
 t

o
 G

a
in

 i
n

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

O
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

o
u

ld
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

o
s
e

 f
o

c
u

s
s
e

d
 o

n
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ie
s
 o

r 
s
e

c
to

rs
 f

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 t

h
e

 s
k
ill

s
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 r
e

p
o

rt
 i
n

to
 

th
e

 Q
u

a
d

ra
n

t 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
 t

e
c
h

 c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 

H
a

rw
e

ll 
S

c
ie

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 I

n
n

o
v
a

ti
o

n
 C

a
m

p
u

s
.

J
a

n
 -

 D
e

c
 0

6
 

6
9
.0

%
J
a

n
 –

 D
e

c
 0

5
 

6
9
.4

%

2
0

0
6

 6
9

.0
%

 
2

0
0

5
 6

9
.4

%
 

O
x
o

n
 r

a
n

k
s
 i
n

 
to

p
 2

0
%

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

e
rs

 i
n

 
S

E
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
.

3
%

 p
o

in
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

le
v
e

ls
. 

C
a

n
 o

n
ly

 b
e

 
s
u

p
p

lie
d

 a
t 

c
o

u
n

ty
 l
e

v
e

l,
 

b
u
t 

o
th

e
r 

re
la

te
d

 d
a

ta
 

fr
o

m
 L

&
S

C
 

c
o

u
ld

 e
n

a
b

le
 

s
o

m
e

g
e

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

a
l

fo
c
u

s
.

P
la

n
s
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 

fr
o

m
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
.

Page 81



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 9

 o
f 

2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

S
a
fe

r 
- 

S
h

a
u

n
M

o
rl

e
y
 

N
I 

2
0

A
s
s
a

u
lt
 w

it
h

 
in

ju
ry

 c
ri
m

e
 r

a
te

 
P

S
A

 2
5

 

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

• 
T

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

 p
a

tr
o

l 
p

la
n

s
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 t
o

w
n

 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 
• 

V
io

le
n

t 
C

ri
m

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 L
P

A
 

• 
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
N

ig
h

ts
a

fe
 b

y
 A

lc
o

h
o

l 
T

a
c
ti
c
a

l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 G

ro
u

p
 

• 
F

o
c
u

s
s
e

d
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
a

b
u

s
e

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 e

.g
. 

h
a

lf
-

te
rm

 s
tr

e
e

t 
d

ri
n

k
in

g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

, 
T

U
S

A
C

 c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
s
 

• 
T

a
rg

e
te

d
 m

e
d

ia
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 

• 
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 d

e
te

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

 b
y
 m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 o

f 
S

im
p

le
 

S
p

e
e

d
y
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 J

u
s
ti
c
e

 
• 

T
a

rg
e

te
d

 d
e

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
h

ig
h

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 p

o
lic

e
 a

n
d

 
p

a
rt

n
e

r 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

• 
F

o
c
u

s
s
e

d
 N

IM
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 

• 
F

o
c
u

s
s
e

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 

2
0

0
6

/7
: 

3
5

5
3

2
0

0
5

/6
: 

3
7

5
0

2
0

0
4

/5
: 

3
9

1
4

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
a

s
s
a

u
lt
 f

o
r 

la
s
t 

3
 

y
e

a
rs

 f
o

r 
fi
g

u
re

s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

.

N
o

n
e

 a
t 

th
is

 
ti
m

e
.

E
s
ti
m

a
ti
n

g
 5

%
 

p
e
r 

y
e
a
r 

o
v
e

r 
c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
L

A
A

2
. 

(D
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 
th

e
 f

in
a

l 
d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 

o
f 

th
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r)
 

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
,

o
v
e

ra
ll

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

y
 

L
o

c
a

l 
P

o
lic

in
g

 
A

re
a

 a
n

d
 b

y
 

a
g
e
 r

a
n
g
e

, 
e

th
n

ic
it
y
, 

g
e
n
d
e
r.

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
T

h
a

m
e

s
V

a
lle

y
 P

o
lic

e
 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

C
D

R
P

p
a
rt

n
e
r

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
.

S
a
fe

r 
- 

N
ig

e
l 
S

tr
ic

k
 

N
I 

2
1

D
e

a
lin

g
 w

it
h

 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 

a
b

o
u

t 
a

n
ti
-

s
o

c
ia

l
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 

c
ri

m
e

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 p

o
lic

e
 P

S
A

 
2

3

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 
B

A
S

E
D

• 
F

o
rm

a
l 
b

a
s
e

lin
e

s
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
. 

D
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 

w
it
h

 D
C

L
G

 c
o

n
fi
rm

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 C

it
iz

e
n

s
 P

a
n

e
l 

s
u

rv
e

y
 (

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
8

) 
w

ill
 s

a
ti
s
fy

 t
h

is
 n

e
e

d
. 

(b
y
 J

u
n

e
 

2
0
0
8
).

• 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
s
ti
p

u
la

te
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

in
d

ic
a

to
r 

w
ill

 b
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
d

 u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 “

P
la

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
”,

 
a

 b
ie

n
n

ia
l 
s
u

rv
e

y
. 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 f

re
q

u
e

n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 P
la

c
e

 
S

u
rv

e
y
s
 r

u
le

s
 t

h
e

m
 o

u
t 

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
m

e
a

s
u

ri
n

g
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

, 
c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

s
u

rv
e

y
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 f

o
rm

a
lly

. 
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 p

u
b

lic
 o

p
in

io
n
: 

• 
V

ia
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 P
o

lic
in

g
/M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 (

F
ro

m
 1

s
t 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

8
) 

• 
E

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 A
c
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
s
 a

re
 f

u
lly

 
e

m
b

e
d

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
. 

• 
C

o
m

m
it
, 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
d

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 o

f 
P

o
lic

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 O
ff
ic

e
r 

p
a

tr
o
l 
ro

u
te

s
/c

o
n

ta
c
ts

. 
• 

C
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

re
s
s
 &

 m
e

d
ia

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
s
 b

y
 a

ll 
‘s

a
fe

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
’ 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

(F
ro

m
 J

u
ly

 2
0

0
8

 –
 3

 y
e

a
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
/p

la
n

 t
o

 f
o

llo
w

).
 

• 
3

 y
e

a
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
lo

c
a

lly
 b

a
s
e

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

v
ia

 C
D

R
P

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 b
y
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

s
u

rv
e

y
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
. 

3
3
%

 a
g

re
e
 

th
a

t 
c
o

u
n

c
ils

 
a

n
d

 p
o

lic
e

 
re

s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 

lo
c
a

l
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
.

2
6

%
 d

o
 n

o
t.

 

R
e

la
te

d
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

o
w

 a
 

w
o

rs
e

n
in

g
 

s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
.

R
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 
s
im

ila
r 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 T
h

a
m

e
s
 

V
a

lle
y
 P

o
lic

e
 

a
re

a
.

T
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t/

c
h

a
n

g
e

 w
o

u
ld

 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 s

m
a

ll-
 

d
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
a

s
e

d
 a

ro
u

n
d

 
p

u
b

lic
 p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

u
s
in

g
 a

 r
a

n
d

o
m

 
s
a

m
p

le
d

 s
u

rv
e

y
 

R
e

s
u

lt
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 
b

ro
k
e

n
 d

o
w

n
 b

y
 

L
P

A
/C

D
R

P
(D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il)

 a
n

d
 b

y
 

a
g

e
, 

g
e

n
d

e
r,

 
in

c
o

m
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
e

tc
.

N
o

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r
ta

rg
e
t.

Page 82



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
 o

f 
2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

S
a
fe

r 
- 

R
o

m
y
 B

ri
a

n
t 

N
I 

3
2

R
e

p
e

a
t

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c

v
io

le
n

c
e

 P
S

A
 

2
3

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

C
la

ri
fy

 M
A

R
A

C
 p

ro
to

c
o

ls
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 C
A

A
D

A
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 &

 e
n

s
u

re
 m

u
lt
i 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 

b
y
 A

p
ri
l 
0

8
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
to

c
o

ls
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
th

re
e

 M
A

R
A

C
s
. 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

 m
u

lt
i 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 c

a
s
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
o

ft
w

a
re

 i
f 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 b

y
 A

p
ri

l 
0

8
. 

E
n

s
u

re
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 q

tr
ly

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 (

in
 p

la
c
e

) 
 

E
n

s
u

re
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
M

A
R

A
C

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
, 

p
ro

to
c
o

ls
 

a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

th
e

 L
A

A
. 

L
e

a
d

 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 =

 p
o

lic
e

 a
n

d
 I

D
V

A
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
n

 l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
.

P
o

lic
e

 a
n

d
 I

D
V

A
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t

o
 O

D
V

S
G

. 
P

o
lic

e
 i
n

 l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 I
D

V
A

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 r

e
v
is

e
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

/p
ro

to
c
o

ls
 a

s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 

lia
is

o
n

 w
it
h

 C
A

A
D

A
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 a

n
d

 d
ra

w
 f

ro
m

 M
A

R
A

C
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 U
K

 
T

h
e

 I
D

V
A

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 O
x
fo

rd
 c

it
y
 M

A
R

A
C

 a
n

d
 

c
o

u
rt

 f
o

r 
fi
rs

t 
y
e

a
r 

o
f 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

n
d

 t
o

 e
x
p

a
n

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 
c
o

u
n

ty
, 

a
t 

th
e

 l
a

te
s
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 s
ta

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 y
e

a
r 

o
f 

th
e

 
ta

rg
e

t 
(A

p
ri
l 
2

0
0

9
) 

to
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 A
b

in
g

d
o

n
 a

n
d

 B
a

n
b

u
ry

 
M

A
R

A
C

 a
n

d
 B

a
n

b
u

ry
 C

o
u

rt
 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

a
d

o
p

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 
B

a
n
b
u
ry

 
fi
g

u
re

s
 a

s
 

b
a

s
e

lin
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
ty

 
b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 

B
a
n
b
u
ry

 
M

A
R

A
C

 w
a

s
 

v
is

it
e

d
 b

y
 

C
A

A
D

A
 a

n
d

 
it
s
 d

a
ta

 
e

x
a

m
in

e
d

 i
n

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

2
0

0
6

 a
n

d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 
c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

t 
o

f 
it
s
 r

ig
o

r 
=

 
2

8
.2

%
 

B
a
n
b
u
ry

 b
a
s
e
 

ra
te

 i
s
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 r

e
p
e
a
t 

ra
te

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 

to
 M

A
R

A
C

 
c
a

s
e

s

B
a
n
b
u
ry

 b
a
s
e
 

ra
te

 i
s
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 r

e
p
e
a
t 

ra
te

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 

to
 M

A
R

A
C

 
c
a

s
e

s

1
5

%
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
re

p
e

a
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

M
A

R
A

C
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 L
A

A
 i
e

 
a

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

2
4
%

.

T
h
e

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
th

is
 

L
A

A
2

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

o
r 

a
re

 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

a
t 

th
e

 p
o

in
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 

n
e

e
d

e
d

.

Page 83



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
 o

f 
2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

S
a
fe

r 
- 

J
o

 M
e

lli
n

g
 

N
I 

4
0

D
ru

g
 u

s
e

rs
 i
n

 
e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

tr
e

a
tm

e
n

t 
P

S
A

 
2

5

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

•
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 o
p

e
n

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
: 
0

8
/0

9
 •

 S
u

s
ta

in
 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 D
IP

 a
n

d
 D

IP
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t 

T
im

e
 

F
ra

m
e

: 
0

8
/0

9
 •

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 

o
f 

D
IP

: 
0

8
/0

9
 Q

tr
1

 •
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

t 
n

e
w

 f
le

x
ib

le
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

g
ro

u
p

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

: 
0

8
/0

9
 Q

tr
1

 •
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

a
ll 

h
a

rm
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
: 

0
8

/0
9

 Q
tr

1
 •

 
P

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
p

re
m

is
e

s
 f

o
r 

C
ra

n
s
to

u
n

 C
h

e
rw

e
ll:

 0
8

/0
9

 Q
tr

 2
 

• 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 w
o

m
e

n
’s

 a
n

d
 f

a
m

ily
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
: 

0
8

/0
9

 Q
tr

2
 •

 
E

n
s
u

re
 a

 m
o

re
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 f
a

m
ily

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
; 

1
-y

e
a

r 
p

o
s
t 

to
 c

o
n

d
u

c
t 

a
 s

c
o

p
in

g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
u

tu
re

 c
o

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

: 
0

8
/0

9
 Q

tr
1

 •
 E

n
s
u

re
 W

o
m

e
n

’s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

s
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

e
la

te
d

 
to

 m
a

te
rn

it
y
 &

 c
h

ild
 h

e
a

lt
h

c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
: 

0
8

/0
9

 Q
tr

3
 •

 
A

lc
o

h
o

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 -

 C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 r
e

c
u

rr
in

g
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

fo
r 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
in

it
ia

te
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
: 

B
id

 t
o

 P
S

B
 b

y
 O

c
t 

2
0

0
8

 •
 

C
o

u
n

s
e

lli
n

g
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
: 

0
8

/0
9

 Q
tr

 2
 

• 
C

a
re

 p
la

n
/c

a
re

 p
a

th
w

a
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 –

 t
o

 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
m

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h

th
e

 s
y
s
te

m
, 

c
a

s
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
: 

0
8

/0
9

 •
 R

u
n

 c
lin

ic
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 o

n
 a

n
 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
b

a
s
is

 w
it
h

 a
ll 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 i
n

 S
h

a
re

d
 C

a
re

 •
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 

o
f 

c
a

re
 p

ilo
t 

c
lin

ic
 f

o
r 

u
n

p
la

n
n

e
d

 d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

p
ri
s
o

n
e

rs
: 

0
8
/0

9
 Q

tr
2
  

• 
S

u
s
ta

in
 g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
s
p

re
a

d
 o

f 
th

e
 s

h
a

re
 c

a
re

  
s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 b

o
th

 G
P

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 P
h

a
rm

a
c
ie

s
: 

0
8

/0
9

• 
S

u
s
ta

in
 o

p
e

n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 p
e

ri
p

a
te

ti
c
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
  

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

ty
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 r

u
ra

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
: 

0
8

/0
9

• 
E

x
p

lo
re

 w
it
h

 P
C

T
 &

 R
a

d
c
lif

fe
 H

o
s
p

it
a

ls
 N

H
S

 T
ru

s
t 

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 B

B
V

 c
lin

ic
 i
n

c
l.
  

H
e

p
a

ti
ti
s
 C

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
o

p
ti
o

n
s
: 

0
8

/0
9

 Q
tr

2
 •

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
/d

e
to

x
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
: 

0
8

/0
9

 Q
tr

2
 

• 
S

u
s
ta

in
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
p

la
c
e

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
  

to
 n

e
w

 c
lie

n
ts

 e
n

te
ri

n
g

 d
ru

g
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t.

 T
im

e
 F

ra
m

e
: 

0
8

/0
9

• 
E

n
s
u

re
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

lit
y
 t

o
 B

M
E

 &
 M

ig
ra

n
t 

W
o

rk
e

rs
 :

 
0

8
/0

9
• 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
's

  
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 w
h

o
le

 
c
o

u
n

ty
:0

8
/0

9
 

• 
L

o
b

b
y
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

's
 

S
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 M
is

u
s
e

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 E
a

rl
y
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
  

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
: 

0
8

/0
9

 

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 i
s
 

a
p
p
ro

x
 1

7
0
0
 

u
s
e

rs
 i
n

 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t.

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 s

in
c
e

 
2

0
0

5
T

B
C

T
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
is

 1
%

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 y
e

a
r 

o
n

 
y
e
a
r 

b
u
t 

a
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 

ta
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 w
ill

 
b

e
 n

e
g

o
ti
a

te
d

 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 
D

A
A

T
 a

n
d

 N
T

A
 

(D
o

H
),

 a
lig

n
e

d
 

w
it
h

 V
it
a

l 
S

ig
n

s
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 b
y
 

3
1

s
t 

M
a

y
 2

0
0

8
. 

T
B

C

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

a
re

 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

fu
n

d
in

g
 i
s
 

d
ra

w
n

 f
ro

m
 a

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

T
a

rg
e

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
lig

n
e

d
 w

it
h

 
D

IP
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
&

 P
o

o
le

d
 

T
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
B

u
d

g
e

ts
 a

n
d

 
th

e
P

ro
b

a
ti
o

n
S

M
T

 a
n

d
 

P
o

lic
e

 P
P

O
 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

.

Page 84



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
 o

f 
2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

T
a

c
k
lin

g
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
a

n
d

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 -

 
P

a
u

l 
J
a

m
e

s
 

N
I 

1
4

0
 

F
a
ir
 T

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

b
y
 l
o

c
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 
B

A
S

E
D

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

T
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 a

t 
th

e
 

P
S

B
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 o

n
 4

 M
a

r 
2

0
0

8
. 

 T
h

e
 L

A
A

2
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 

h
a

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 P

a
u

l 
J
a

m
e

s
, 

(O
x
o

n
 C

C
) 

J
a

c
k
ie

 
W

ild
e

rs
p

in
 (

P
C

T
) 

a
n

d
 V

a
l 
J
o

h
n

s
o

n
 (

O
x
fo

rd
 C

it
y
) 

to
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l.
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
a

c
k
lin

g
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
a

n
d

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 -

 
N

ic
k
 W

e
lc

h
 

N
I 

1
4

1
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
p

e
o

p
le

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t
liv

in
g

 C
L

G
 D

S
O

 

2
0
0
8
-0

9
:

• 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

n
e

w
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 &

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 f

o
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

• 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 r

e
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

w
o

m
e

n
 a

t 
ri

s
k
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 &
 s

in
g

le
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
 

• 
S

ta
rt

 t
e

n
d

e
rs

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 d
ru

g
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 

&
 e

x
-/

o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

 
• 

B
e

g
in

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
re

-c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

te
e

n
a

g
e

 p
a

re
n

ts
 &

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 
• 

V
is

it
 b

e
s
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
e

rs
, 

th
e

n
 d

is
s
e

m
in

a
te

 g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
2
0
0
9
-1

0
:

• 
m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 r
e

g
im

e
 o

f 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 

• 
c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 r

e
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

w
it
h

 d
ru

g
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 a

n
d

 e
x
-/

o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
 

• 
s
ta

rt
 t

e
n

d
e

rs
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

te
e

n
a

g
e

 p
a

re
n

ts
 &

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
2
0
1
0
-1

1
:

• 
c
o

m
p

le
te

 d
e

liv
e
ry

 o
f 

2
0

0
8

-1
1

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

• 
c
o

m
p

le
te

 r
e

-c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
te

e
n

a
g

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 &
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

Q
tr

ly
 f

ro
m

 
2

0
0

5
/6

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 
3
9
%

 t
o
 5

4
%

 i
n
 

la
s
t 

6
 m

o
n

th
s
. 

A
 

m
o

v
e

 f
ro

m
 

b
o

tt
o

m
 d

e
c
ile

 t
o

 
9

th
 d

e
c
ile

. 

O
x
o

n
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 

fi
rm

ly
 i
n

 b
o

tt
o

m
 

q
u

a
rt

ile
.

• 
5

7
%

 b
y
 Q

4
 o

f 
2
0
0
8
-0

9
• 

6
0

%
 b

y
 Q

4
 o

f 
2
0
0
9
-1

0
• 

6
3

%
 b

y
 Q

4
 o

f 
2
0
1
0
-1

1

N
o

s
.o

f 
s
in

g
le

 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 i
n

 
m

e
a

s
u

re
re

q
u
ir
e

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

ra
is

e
d
 f
o
r 

th
is

 
c
lie

n
t 

g
ro

u
p

 t
o

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

im
p

ro
v
e

d
a

v
e

ra
g

e
:

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 n

o
s
. 

ta
k
in

g
 o

n
 a

n
d

 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

te
n

a
n

c
ie

s
,

ta
k
in

g
 u

p
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 
p

a
id

 w
o

rk
, 

m
a

in
ta

in
in

g
th

e
ir
 m

e
n

ta
l 

a
n

d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

, 
a

n
d

 
a

v
o

id
in

g
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

m
is

u
s
e

,
o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 

a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r.

W
ill

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 
fu

ll 
a

m
o

u
n

ts
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

P
e

o
p

le
A

d
m

in
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

A
re

a
 B

a
s
e

d
 

G
ra

n
t 

to
 

d
e

liv
e

r
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t

s
. 

(0
8

/0
9

-
£

4
0

6
K

,
0

9
/1

0
-£

3
7

4
K

 
&

 1
0

/1
1

-
£
3
2
0
K

)

Page 85



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 1

3
 o

f 
2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

H
o

u
s
in

g
 -

 
A

n
n

a
R

o
b

in
s
o

n

N
I 

1
5

4
N

e
t 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
h

o
m

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
P

S
A

 2
0

 

1
. 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 C
IH

 r
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 w

it
h

in
 6

 s
u

b
-r

e
g

io
n

s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

tr
y
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 o

b
s
ta

c
le

s
 t

h
a

t 
w

o
rk

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

ta
rt

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
s
. 

2
. 

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 a
 l
a

n
d

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
s
it
e

s
 i
n

 p
u

b
lic

 o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 p
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

o
p

ti
m

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

b
ro

u
g

h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 f
o

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g
. 

 
3

. 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
is

e
d

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 
e

n
a

b
le

 c
ro

s
s
-C

o
u

n
ty

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
it
e

s
 w

it
h

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 
c
o

n
s
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

o
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 e
x
p

e
d

it
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

s
u

c
h

 s
it
e

s
 

4
. 

 I
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

 a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 f
o

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
:

F
ro

m
 t

h
is

 w
o

rk
, 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 g
u

id
e

 f
o

r 
u

s
e

 
a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

ty
. 

5
. 

O
v
e

rs
e

e
 j
o

in
t 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
ro

je
c
t,

 i
n

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 h
o

u
s
e

b
u

ild
e

rs
, 

to
 p

u
t 

a
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
n

 
p

la
c
e

 f
o

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
o

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 b
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
L

A
’s

 a
n

d
 a

ll 
p

a
rt

ie
s
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

6
. 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 h

o
u

s
e

 b
u

ild
e

rs
 f

o
ru

m
 t

o
 s

h
a

re
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 m
o

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
 &

 a
g

re
e

 
p

ro
to

c
o

ls
 t

o
 e

x
p

e
d

it
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
s
it
e

s
 f

o
r 

h
o

u
s
in

g
. 

7
. 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 g

re
a

te
r 

s
u

p
p

ly
 o

f 
n

e
w

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
n

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

, 
re

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 s
c
o

p
e

 f
o

r 
a

llo
c
a

ti
n

g
 m

o
re

 l
a

n
d

 
fo

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 w

it
h

in
 L

D
F

s
 

8
. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 
o

n
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 i
n

 r
u

ra
l 
d

is
tr

ic
ts

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 c
ri
te

ri
a

 a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

u
n

re
a

s
o

n
a

b
ly

 f
e

tt
e

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 

2
0

0
6

/7
:

3
,4

0
2

2
0

0
5

/6
:

3
,5

6
9

2
0

0
4

/5
:

2
,8

8
1

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 

w
a

s
 d

o
w

n
 3

%
 

o
n

 2
0

0
5

/0
6

 

W
e

 k
n

o
w

 t
h

e
 

c
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
ty

 f
o

r 
la

s
t 

3
 y

e
a

rs
 

T
o

 a
c
c
e

le
ra

te
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
a

c
ro

s
s
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
. 

S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

P
la

n
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 
a
re

 u
rg

e
n
tl
y
 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

th
a

t 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

tr
a

je
c
to

ri
e

s
 c

a
n

 
b

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 O
H

P
 c

a
n

 
d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t

h
e

 
e

x
te

n
t 

b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 c

a
n

 b
e

 
b

ro
u

g
h

t 
fo

rw
a

rd
  

d
is

tr
ic

ts
 

£
3

0
K

 L
A

A
1

 
p

u
m

p
-

p
ri
m

in
g

 g
ra

n
t 

w
ill

 e
n

a
b

le
 

th
e

 k
e

y
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

o
 

ta
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 a
s
 

th
is

 i
s
 a

n
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
L

A
A

1
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 

F
u
rt

h
e

r 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 

b
e

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
o

n
 a

 
d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 

b
a

s
is

, 
w

it
h

 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

s
o

u
g

h
t 

fo
r 

k
e

y
 e

v
e

n
ts

 
fr

o
m

 a
 r

a
n
g
e
 

o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s

Page 86



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 1

4
 o

f 
2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

H
o

u
s
in

g
 -

 
A

n
n

a
R

o
b

in
s
o

n

N
I 

1
5

5
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

h
o

m
e

s
d

e
liv

e
re

d
(g

ro
s
s
) 

P
S

A
 2

0
 

1
. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 s
c
o

p
e

 f
o

r 
h

a
rm

o
n

is
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
a

m
lin

in
g

 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
o

lic
y
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

ty
 b

y
: 

2
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

ty
 t

o
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
in

g
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
, 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 o

f 
a

n
 u

p
-

to
-d

a
te

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

3
. 

 S
e

t 
ta

rg
e

ts
 &

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

L
A

A
2

 w
h

e
re

b
y
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 e

n
a

b
le

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
la

n
d

, 
fu

n
d

in
g

 o
r 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t.

4
. 

 I
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

 a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
s
t 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

 
ra

n
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 (
fo

r 
in

s
ta

n
c
e

 a
n

 
O

p
e

n
 M

a
rk

e
t 

H
o

m
e

b
u

y
 p

ro
d

u
c
t 

fo
r 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

).
 

5
. 

 O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 R
u

ra
l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 a
 R

u
ra

l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
v
ie

w
 t

o
 o

p
ti
m

is
e

 r
u

ra
l 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
6

. 
 R

e
w

o
rk

 O
R

H
P

’s
 5

 y
e

a
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 t

o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 r

u
ra

l 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
n

e
x
t 

3
 y

e
a

rs
, 

to
 d

o
v
e

ta
il 

in
 w

it
h

 L
A

A
2

. 
7

. 
 O

R
H

P
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 p

la
n

 t
o

 d
o

v
e

ta
il 

w
it
h

 
w

o
rk

 o
f 

O
R

C
C

 &
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
-l

e
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

, 
to

 e
d

u
c
a

te
 

lo
c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 s
c
o

p
e

 f
o

r 
a

n
d

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

ru
ra

l 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
. 

8
. 

O
H

P
 t

o
 l
e

a
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 o

p
ti
m

is
in

g
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 n
e

w
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

g
e

n
c
y
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

m
e

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

9
. 

O
H

P
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 m

e
c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 f
o

r 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

-w
id

e
 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
th

is
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 

2
0

0
6

/7
: 

6
7

4
 

2
0

0
5

/6
: 

7
0

3
 

2
0

0
4

/5
: 

3
9

1
 

(A
v
g

e
 o

f 
5

8
9

) 

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 

w
a

s
 d

o
w

n
 5

%
 

o
n

 2
0

0
5

/0
6

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

m
e

a
s
u

re
d

a
g

a
in

s
t 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
ta

rg
e

ts
 f

o
r 

D
is

tr
ic

ts
 &

 S
E

 
P

la
n

 s
o

 
b

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
a

g
a

in
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

c
o

u
n

ti
e

s
 i
s
 n

o
t 

re
le

v
a

n
t.

2
0

0
8

/1
1

, 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

6
4
6
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 a

n
 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
,9

3
8
 f

o
r 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 a
s
 a

 
w

h
o

le
. 

M
a

y
 b

e
 

v
a

ri
a

n
c
e

s
 f

o
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l
D

is
tr

ic
ts

, 
C

e
n

tr
a

l 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 

fo
r 

a
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 y
e

a
r 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
is

 p
e

ri
o

d
, 

d
u

e
 t

o
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
fa

c
to

rs
 o

u
ts

id
e

 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l

D
is

tr
ic

ts
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
la

rg
e

 
h

o
u

s
in

g
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
.

D
is

tr
ic

t 
a

n
d

 
c
o

u
n

ty
w

id
e

 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
.

A
im

in
g

 t
o

 a
ls

o
 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
a

t 
s
u

b
-

c
o

u
n

ty
 a

re
a

s
 

lin
k
e

d
 t

o
 S

E
 

P
la

n
 t

a
rg

e
ts

. 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 t

o
 

fo
c
u

s
 o

n
 

e
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
ru

ra
l 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
, 

re
s
e

a
rc

h
 a

n
d

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

o
f 

c
o

s
te

d
 

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 

c
o

u
n

ty
-w

id
e

 
p

ro
to

c
o

ls
 w

ill
 

u
s
e

 L
A

A
1

 
p

u
m

p
p

ri
m

in
g

 g
ra

n
t 

to
 f

u
n
d
 5

0
%

 
o

f
£
4
0
K

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

s
e

 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

T
h

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

w
ill

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 

th
e

 b
a

la
n

c
e

 
jo

in
tl
y
 a

n
d

 
w

ill
 s

e
e

k
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

fr
o

m
 R

S
L

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 
o

th
e

rs
 w

it
h

 
a

n
 i
n

te
re

s
t 

in
 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
im

p
ro

v
e

d
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

h
o

u
s
in

g
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
.

H
o

u
s
in

g
 -

 
A

n
n

a
R

o
b

in
s
o

n

N
I 

1
5

6
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s

liv
in

g
 i
n

 
T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
P

S
A

 2
0

 

A
t 

ti
m

e
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
a

ti
o

n
, 

a
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 d

e
b

a
te

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 
a

m
o

n
g

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
c
ils

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

la
n

s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
is

 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 N

O
T

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

o
ta

l 
o

f 
3

4
. 

 
A

n
 u

p
d

a
te

 w
il
l 
b

e
 t

a
b

le
d

 a
t 

th
e
 P

u
b

li
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 B

o
a
rd

.

Y
E

S
. 

  
  

  
  

  
 

B
u

t 
re

c
e

n
t 

fi
g

u
re

s
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 

T
B

C
 

T
B

C
 

R
e

d
u

c
e

h
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

F
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 C

it
y
 

F
u

lly
 f

u
n

d
e

d
. 

Page 87



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 1

5
 o

f 
2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

A
d

u
lt
 H

W
B

 -
 

J
a

c
k
ie

W
ild

e
rs

p
in

 

N
I 

8
A

d
u

lt
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
s
p

o
rt

 D
C

M
S

 
D

S
O

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 
B

A
S

E
D

A
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
re

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 S
p

o
rt

s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

lla
te

d
 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

u
b

 g
ro

u
p

 p
la

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

G
O

 
A

C
T

IV
E

 p
ro

je
c
t 

p
la

n
s
, 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

p
o

rt
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 p
la

n
s
. 

W
it
h

 G
o

 A
c
ti
v
e

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 
  

E
m

p
lo

y
in

g
 5

 C
o

-c
o

o
rd

in
a

to
rs

, 
o

n
e

 i
n

 e
a

c
h

 D
is

tr
ic

t,
  

 
  

In
fo

rm
a
l 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
ro

m
 G

P
 s

u
rg

e
ri

e
s
 t

o
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

  
E

m
p

lo
y
in

g
 8

 a
c
ti
v
a

to
rs

 t
o

 o
rg

a
n

is
e

 a
d

u
lt
 b

a
s
e

d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
; 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

R
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 
S

p
o

rt
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 (

fu
n

d
e

d
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
ly

),
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
im

e
d

 a
t 

y
o

u
n

g
 w

o
m

e
n

, 
fa

m
ily

 c
e

n
tr

e
 b

a
s
e

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 

m
u

lt
i-

s
p

o
rt

 c
lu

b
s
, 

F
it
 a

t 
w

o
rk

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
, 

y
o

u
n

g
 a

t 
h

e
a

rt
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
o

s
e

 o
v
e

r 
6

0
 y

e
a

rs
 o

f 
a

g
e

. 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

W
it
h

o
u

t 
G

o
 A

c
ti
v
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 t
h

e
re

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 t
h

e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
2

 c
o

-c
o

o
rd

in
a

to
rs

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
l 

re
fe

rr
a

ls
 f

ro
m

 G
P

 s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
o

s
s
ib

ly
 3

 A
c
ti
v
a

to
rs

 (
 

a
s
 S

p
o

rt
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 i
s
 5

0
:5

0
 b

u
t 

s
o

m
e

 c
a

n
 b

e
 i
n

 
k
in

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
).

 A
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

p
o

rt
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 C

o
a

c
h

 s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

R
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 S
p

o
rt

, 
F

it
 a

t 
W

o
rk

, 
D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 s

p
o

rt
s
 c

lu
b

s
 (

F
u

n
d

e
d

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

ly
) 

b
u

t 
u

ti
lis

in
g

 
p

a
rt

n
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

 a
n

d
 b

id
s
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

 
fu

n
d

in
g

. 
 A

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 s

ti
ll 

ta
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 
ir

re
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
G

o
 A

c
ti
v
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

. 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

2
0

0
5

/6
2
3
.2

%
N

/A

5
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

a
re

a
s
 3

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

to
p

 q
u

a
rt

ile
, 

1
 i
s
 

2
n

d
 q

u
a

rt
ile

, 
1

 
in

 b
o

tt
o

m
 

q
u

a
rt

ile
 b

a
s
e

d
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 A

c
ti
v
e

 
P

e
o

p
le

 s
u

rv
e

y
. 

S
o

u
th

O
x
fo

rd
s
h
ir
e
 a

n
d
 

O
x
fo

rd
 a

re
 

b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
d

e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

a
lly

 
a

d
ju

s
te

d
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
ra

te
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
v
ia

 t
h

e
 A

c
ti
v
e

 
P

e
o

p
le

 s
u

rv
e

y
. 

A
im

in
g

 f
o

r 
a

 1
%

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 b
u

t 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

o
u

ld
 

e
n
a
b
le

 f
u
rt

h
e

r 
s
tr

e
tc

h
. 

T
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
m

e
a

s
u

re
 c

a
n

 
b

e
 b

ro
k
e

n
 

d
o

w
n

 t
o

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
le

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 c
a

n
 

b
e

 u
s
e

d
 f

o
r 

M
id

d
le

 S
u

p
e

r 
O

u
tp

u
t 

A
re

a
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
. 

It
 

c
a

n
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 
b

ro
k
e

n
 d

o
w

n
 b

y
 

a
g

e
, 

g
e

n
d

e
r,

 
d

is
a

b
ili

ty
 e

tc
. 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

h
a

s
 v

a
ri

o
u

s
 

fu
n

d
e

rs
:

S
p

o
rt

E
n

g
la

n
d

,
L

o
c
a

l
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
, 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l
G

o
v
e

rn
in

g
B

o
d

ie
s
 o

f 
S

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 Y

o
u

th
 

S
p

o
rt

 T
ru

s
t.

 
- 

B
id

 i
n

 f
o
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 G

O
 

A
c
ti
v
e

p
ro

je
c
t 

w
it
h

 
R

e
g

io
n

a
l

S
p

o
rt

s
 B

o
a

rd
 

(1
2
 M

a
r 

2
0

0
8

).
 I

f 
n

o
t 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l,
 

th
e

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

w
ill

 s
e

e
k
 t

o
 

b
u

ild
 o

n
 i
ts

 
p

re
s
e

n
t

fu
n

d
in

g
 b

a
s
e

 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

m
o
re

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

(A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

b
u

d
g

e
t

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t

o
 

b
e

 @
 £

3
0

K
 

p
e
r 

y
e
a
r,

 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t
a

n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

te
d
 a

n
y
w

a
y
 

w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
.)

- 
A

ll 
D

is
tr

ic
ts

 
h

a
v
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

s
p

o
rt

s
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

re
v
e

n
u

e
fu

n
d

in
g

s
tr

e
a

m
s
.

Page 88



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 1

6
 o

f 
2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

A
d

u
lt
 H

W
B

 -
 

J
a

c
k
ie

W
ild

e
rs

p
in

 

N
I 

1
2

0
A

ll-
a

g
e

 a
ll 

c
a

u
s
e

 m
o

rt
a

lit
y
 

ra
te

 P
S

A
 1

8
 

• 
T

a
rg

e
t 

lo
c
a

lit
ie

s
 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
 a

n
d

 B
a

n
b

u
ry

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 h
ig

h
 d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
p

re
m

a
tu

re
 d

e
a

th
. 

• 
C

lie
n

ts
 o

ff
e

re
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

 c
h

e
c
k
s
 i
n

 p
h

a
rm

a
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 
re

fe
rr

e
d

 t
o

 h
e

a
lt
h

 t
ra

in
e

rs
 f

o
r 

o
n

e
-t

o
-o

n
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
• 

H
e

a
lt
h

 t
ra

in
e

rs
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 c
lie

n
t 

to
 a

g
re

e
 a

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 p
la

n
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a

ti
o
n

, 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
, 

w
e

ig
h

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
a

d
v
ic

e
. 

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
s
 o

ff
e

re
d

 f
o

r 
3

 m
o

n
th

s
. 

• 
T

h
e

 G
P

 w
ill

 c
o

n
d

u
c
t 

a
 c

a
rd

io
-v

a
s
c
u

la
r 

ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 p
re

s
c
ri

b
e

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 m
e

d
ic

in
e

s
. 

• 
C

lie
n

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 u

p
 w

it
h

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

c
h

e
c
k
s
. 

0
3
-0

5
1

s
t 

Q
u

in
ti
le

: 
6

5
9

.4
0

5
th

 Q
u

in
ti
le

: 
1

2
0

7
.3

7
D

if
fe

re
n

c
e

:
5

4
7

.9
7

D
if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 s

in
c
e

 
2

0
0

1
-0

3
 a

n
d

 i
n

 
la

s
t 

m
e

a
s
u

re
d

 
p

e
ri
o

d
 (

2
0

0
4

-
2

0
0

6
) 

h
a

v
e

 
e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

s
e

t.
 

N
o

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

r 
re

g
io

n
a

l
c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r.

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 g

a
p

 
in

 i
n

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 b

y
 

1
0
%

 b
y
 

n
a
rr

o
w

in
g

 t
h
e
 

g
a

p
 i
n

 a
ll-

a
g

e
, 

a
ll-

c
a

u
s
e

m
o

rt
a

lit
y
. 

 T
h

e
 

b
a

s
e

lin
e

 f
ro

m
 

2
0

0
3

-0
5

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

u
s
e

d
, 

w
it
h

 a
n

 
e

n
d

 p
o

in
t 

o
f 

2
0
0
9
-2

0
1

1
 a

n
d
 a

 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
1

0
%

. 
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
le

v
e

l 
d

a
ta

 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 g

re
a
te

r 
v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
.

B
a
n
b
u
ry

 &
 

O
x
fo

rd
 s

h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

T
a
rg

e
t

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 
P

C
T

 5
 y

e
a
r 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
i

n
g

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 
F

ir
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
is

 
s
e

c
u

re
d

 i
n

 
P

C
T

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
P

la
n

 a
n

d
 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t

w
it
h

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
c
ils

 o
n

 
E

x
e

rc
is

e
 

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
.

F
u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 y

e
a

rs
 

to
 b

e
 

s
e

c
u

re
d

 
th

ro
u
g
h
 P

C
T

 
b

a
s
e

lin
e

s
.

A
d

u
lt
 H

W
B

 -
 

J
a

c
k
ie

W
ild

e
rs

p
in

 

N
I 

1
3

1
D

e
la

y
e

d
 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a

re
 (

D
T

O
C

) 
fr

o
m

 h
o

s
p

it
a

ls
 

D
H

 D
S

O
 

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

•
J

a
n

 –
 A

p
ri

l 
0

8
: 

D
T

O
C

 T
a

s
k
fo

rc
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ts

 a
c
ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
 a

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 &

 c
re

a
te

 ‘
q

u
ic

k
 

w
in

s
’.
 

•
S

p
ri

n
g

 0
8

: 
a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
fo

r 
P

a
ti
e

n
t/

C
lie

n
t 

D
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 P

a
th

w
a

y
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
. 

S
p

o
n

s
o

rs
 a

re
: 

M
o

ir
a

 L
o

g
ie

, 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
, 

O
R

H
; 

P
e

n
n

y
 A

s
tr

o
p

, 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 H

e
a

lt
h

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 P
C

T
; 

P
a

u
l 
P

u
rn

e
ll,

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 f
o

r 
A

d
u

lt
s
, 

O
x
o

n
 C

C
. 

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a

rd
 i
s
 c

h
a

ir
e

d
 

b
y
 J

o
h

n
 J

a
c
k
s
o

n
, 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
fo

r 
S

&
C

S
, 

O
x
o

n
 C

C
 

• 
O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

’s
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

o
d

e
l 

w
it
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 t
o

 b
e

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 P

C
T

 
B

o
a

rd
 i
n

 A
u

tu
m

n
 2

0
0

8

Y
e

s
 s

in
c
e

 
2

0
0

4
/5

C
o

m
p

a
ra

ti
v
e

d
a
ta

 o
n
ly

 f
o

r 
a

c
u

te
 b

e
d

s
. 

2
0

0
6

/7
 5

th
 w

o
rs

t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

(o
u
t 

o
f 

1
5
0

).
 I

P
F

 
c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 –

 
2

n
d

 f
ro

m
 

b
o

tt
o

m
. 

S
h

ir
e

 
c
o

u
n

ti
e

s
 –

 2
n

d
 

fr
o

m
 b

o
tt

o
m

. 
G

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

lly
 

–
 l
o

w
e

s
t 

in
 S

E
. 

C
o

n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 

b
e

lo
w

 H
e

a
lt
 

C
a
re

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 K

P
I 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
.

D
T

O
C

 r
a
te

 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 t

o
 w

it
h

in
 

H
C

C
 K

P
I 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
.

A
s
s
u

m
e

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 a
c
u

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
is

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 

a
ll 

b
e

d
s
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 
in

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 
in

d
ic

a
to

r,
 w

o
u

ld
 

e
x
p

e
c
t 

a
n

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

d
e

la
y
e

d
 b

y
 3

6
%

 
o

v
e

r 
3

 y
e

a
rs

 
(1

8
%

 i
n

 0
8

/0
9

, 
2

7
%

 i
n

 0
9

/1
0

 &
 

3
6

%
 i
n

 1
0

/1
1

).
 

C
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
b

ro
k
e

n
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 

h
o

s
p

it
a

ls
 a

n
d

 5
 

y
e
a
r 

a
g
e
 b

a
n

d
s
 

F
u

ll
y
 

fu
n

d
e
d

. 
P

ro
je

c
t

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

- 
£

3
0

K
 (

P
C

T
 &

 
O

x
o
n
 C

C
) 

N
e

w
 H

o
m

e
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 F
ir
s
t 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 -
 

£
6

3
0

K
 t

o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

h
o

m
e

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

s
p

e
e

d
 u

p
 

d
is

c
h

a
rg

e

Page 89



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
 o

f 
2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

A
d

u
lt
 H

W
B

 -
 

J
a

c
k
ie

W
ild

e
rs

p
in

 

N
I 

1
3

5
 

C
a
re

rs
 

re
c
e

iv
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 c
a

re
r’

s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

o
r 

a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 D

H
  

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

C
a

re
rs

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 2

0
0

8
-1

1
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 O

x
o

n
 C

C
 C

h
a

n
g

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
b

o
a

rd
 b

y
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
8

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 t

h
e

 p
o

llo
w

in
g

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 s
e

t 
u

p
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

0
8

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 r
e

tu
rn

s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

in
g

 1
1

 q
u

a
rt

e
rs

: 
1

) 
C

a
re

r 
 A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 P

ro
je

c
t 

£
5

0
K

 
2
) 

E
x
p
e

rt
 C

a
re

rs
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 £

5
0

K
 

3
) 

C
a

re
rs

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
je

c
t 

£
3

0
K

 
4

) 
C

a
re

rs
’ 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
a

n
d

 s
e

lf
-a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
je

c
t 

£
5

0
K

 
5

) 
D

ir
e

c
t 

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 e
x
te

n
d

e
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
d

ir
e

c
t 

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

c
a

re
 £

2
2

0
K

 
6

) 
In

c
re

a
s
e

 f
le

x
ib

le
 R

e
s
p

it
e

  
c
a

re
s
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 £

4
5

3
 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 a
n

d
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

N
e

w
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
re

p
la

c
e

s
e

x
is

ti
n

g
m

e
a

s
u

re
 w

it
h

 
d

a
ta

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 
b

a
c
k
 t

o
 2

0
0

4
.

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

is
 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

n
e

w
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
p

e
o

p
le

re
c
e

iv
in

g
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 &

 
a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
ly

; 
a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
5

7
7

. 
N

o
 

c
o

m
p

a
ra

ti
v
e

d
a

ta
 o

n
 t

h
is

 
fo

r 
o
th

e
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
y
e
t.

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
n

 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

m
e

a
s
u

re
 

in
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

ro
m

 
4
.9

%
 t

o
 1

3
.1

%
 

in
 p

e
ri
o

d
 f

ro
m

 
2

0
0

4
/5

 t
o

 
2

0
0

6
/7

W
it
h

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 O

x
o

n
 

1
3

.1
%

 (
2

0
1

8
 

c
a

re
rs

 r
e
c
e

iv
in

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 
1

5
,4

2
5

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

b
a

s
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
re

c
ip

ie
n

ts
) 

=
 i
n

 
2

4
 p

e
rc

e
n

ti
le

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
; 

1
2

th
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

o
f 

3
5
 (

3
4
 

p
e

rc
e

n
ti
le

 f
o

r 
s
h

ir
e

 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
);

 4
th

 
h

ig
h

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
IP

F
C

o
m

p
a

ra
to

rs
 

(2
5
%

).
 

K
e

y
 i
s
s
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

d
 i
s
 –

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
a

re
s
 

re
c
e

iv
in

g
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

W
e

 
w

o
u

ld
 a

im
 t

o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

is
 b

y
 

1
0
0
 p

e
r 

y
e
a

r 
ie

 
2

0
0

6
/7

 =
 2

5
9

5
 

2
0

0
8

/9
 =

 2
6

9
5

 
(3

.8
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

) 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 =

 2
7

9
5

 
(3

.7
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

) 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
 =

 2
8

9
5

 
(3

.6
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

) 
P

E
N

D
IN

G
 f

in
a

l 
d

e
fi
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

r

B
ro

k
e

n
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 

S
O

A
 c

o
u

ld
 

c
a

u
s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

lit
y
. 

D
C

 r
e
p
o

rt
s
 m

a
y
 

m
a

k
e

 m
o

re
 

s
e

n
s
e

 a
n

d
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

b
ro

k
e

n
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 

a
g
e
 o

r 
c
a
re

r 
a

n
d

 c
lie

n
t 

g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

th
e

 
p

e
rs

o
n

 b
e

in
g

 
c
a

re
d

 f
o

r.
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 

th
is

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

a
re

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 

in
 "

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 
o

f 
P

la
n

s
 

c
o

lu
m

n
" 

T
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 -

 
S

te
v
e

 H
o

w
e

ll 

N
I 

1
7

5
A

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 b

y
 

p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

, 
w

a
lk

in
g

 a
n

d
 

c
y
c
lin

g
 D

fT
 

D
S

O

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 
B

A
S

E
D

B
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
:

• 
R

e
d

u
c
e

 c
o

n
g

e
s
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

la
y
 f

o
r 

b
u

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
p

a
s
s
e

n
g

e
r 

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
 b

y
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
n

g
 £

3
7

0
K

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
a

n
d

 
£

3
0

0
K

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 P
re

m
iu

m
 B

u
s
 R

o
u

te
 

N
e

tw
o

rk
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 R

e
a

l 
T

im
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

p
a

s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

• 
M

in
im

is
e

 d
e

la
y
s
 t

o
 b

u
s
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

  
• 

E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 /
 P

a
rk

 &
 R

id
e

 u
s
e

 b
y
 

h
a

v
in

g
 a

 T
ra

ff
ic

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

&
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
(T

M
C

) 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

in
 p

la
c
e

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 V

a
ri

a
b

le
 M

e
s
s
a

g
e

 S
ig

n
s
 a

p
p

e
a

ri
n

g
 o

n
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
s
 t

o
 O

x
fo

rd
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
o

n
g

e
s
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

s
 

• 
In

c
re

a
s
e

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 u
s
e

 v
ia

 £
3

.5
m

+
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 s
u

b
s
id

y
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
ty

, 
la

rg
e

ly
 t

o
 c

o
n

n
e

c
t 

ru
ra

l 
a

re
a

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
ir
 n

e
a

re
s
t 

to
w

n
s

B
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
• 

A
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
£

7
5

0
K

 i
n

v
e

s
te

d
 i
n

 P
re

m
iu

m
 B

u
s
 R

o
u

te
 

N
e

tw
o

rk
 

• 
T

M
C

 r
o

ll 
o

u
t 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

d
  

• 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
b

u
s
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 (

£
3

.5
m

+
) 

B
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
• 

£
8

0
0

K
 m

o
re

 f
o

r 
P

re
m

iu
m

 B
u

s
 R

o
u

te
s
 

• 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
b

u
s
 s

u
b

s
id

y
 (

£
3

.5
m

)

2
0

0
6

/7
:

8
7
.0

%
2

0
0

5
/6

:
8
7
.1

%

S
a

m
e

 %
 i
n

 b
o

th
 

p
e

ri
o

d
s
.

C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 n

o
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
is

 
L

T
P

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 
d

u
e

 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
d

is
c
re

ti
o

n
 i
n

 
c
h

o
ic

e
 o

f 
d

e
s
ti
n

a
ti
o

n
 t

y
p

e
.

T
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 
a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

s
 

g
o

o
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
o

v
e

ra
ll

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 2

n
d

 L
o

c
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
 

fo
r 

2
0
0
6

-1
1
. 

R
a

is
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 

to
 8

7
.6

%
 

D
a

ta
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 

s
e

n
s
ib

ly
 

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 a

t 
S

O
A

. 
 

A
c
c
u

m
u

la
ti
o

n
s

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 

d
is

tr
ic

t/
to

w
n

/c
it
y
 

c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
.

T
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
fu

ll
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

u
n

ty
 b

u
s
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

c
a

p
it
a

l 
a

n
d

 
s
ta

ff
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

le
v
e

ls
.

Page 90



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 1

8
 o

f 
2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

T
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 -

 
S

te
v
e

 H
o

w
e

ll 

N
I 

1
9

8
C

h
ild

re
n

 
tr

a
v
e

lli
n

g
 t

o
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
–

 m
o

d
e

 
o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l 
u

s
u

a
lly

 
u

s
e

d
.

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 
B

A
S

E
D

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

B
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
:

• 
In

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
tr

a
v
e

l 
p

ro
b

le
m

s
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 O

x
o

n
, 

a
n

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 

re
s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

s
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
, 

w
it
h

 a
ll 

O
x
o

n
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 

h
a

v
e

 a
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 T

ra
v
e

l 
P

la
n

, 
w

it
h

 a
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
5

4
 n

e
w

 
p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 5
9

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 p
la

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 
y
e
a
r

• 
In

c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
w

a
lk

in
g

 &
 c

y
c
lin

g
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
- 

£
6

0
0

K
 

in
 o

n
-s

it
e

 c
y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
; 

£
2

0
0

K
 i
n

 o
ff

-s
it
e

 
h

ig
h

w
a

y
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 (

e
.g

. 
n

e
w

 r
o

a
d

 c
ro

s
s
in

g
s
) 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

w
a

lk
in

g
 &

 c
y
c
lin

g
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l;
 c

y
c
le

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 a

n
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
6

0
0

 p
u

p
ils

 (
7

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l)

. 
• 

E
n

a
b

lin
g

 m
o

re
 b

u
s
 t

ra
v
e

l 
to

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
w

h
e

re
 c

y
c
lin

g
 &

 
w

a
lk

in
g

 a
re

 n
o

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

, 
e

g
 £

5
0

K
 i
n

 a
 p

ilo
t 

fo
r 

s
c
h

o
o

l-
b

a
s
e

d
 m

in
ib

u
s
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 f

o
r 

jo
u

rn
e

y
s
 t

o
/f

ro
m

 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
(a

n
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l/
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 d
a

y
).

 

B
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
:

• 
A

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

1
3

4
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
T

ra
v
e

l 
P

la
n

s
 t

o
 b

e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 

• 
In

c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
w

a
lk

in
g

 a
n

d
 c

y
c
lin

g
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
- 

£
5

5
0

K
 (

o
n

-s
it
e

 c
y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
);

 £
2

0
0

K
 o

ff
-s

it
e

 
h

ig
h

w
a

y
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 w

a
lk

in
g

 a
n

d
 c

y
c
lin

g
 t

o
 

s
c
h

o
o

l;
 c

y
c
le

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
3

0
0

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

u
p

ils
 (

7
5

%
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l)
. 

• 
S

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 p

ilo
t 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
, 

£
1

0
0

K
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

v
e

s
te

d
 i
n

 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
m

in
ib

u
s
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 

B
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
:

• 
A

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

1
3

4
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
T

ra
v
e

l 
P

la
n

s
 t

o
 b

e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 

• 
In

c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
w

a
lk

in
g

 a
n

d
 c

y
c
lin

g
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
- 

£
4

0
0

K
 i
n

 o
n

-s
it
e

 c
y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
; 

£
3

5
0

K
 i
n

 o
ff

-
s
it
e

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

 w
a

lk
in

g
 &

 c
y
c
lin

g
 t

o
 

s
c
h

o
o

l;
 c

y
c
le

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
3

0
0

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

u
p

ils
 (

8
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l)
. 

• 
S

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 p

ilo
t 
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
, 

£
5

0
K

 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
m

in
ib

u
s
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

2
3
.9

%
J
a

n
 2

0
0

8
 

O
x
o

n
 a

h
e

a
d

 o
f 

th
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
m

ile
s
to

n
e

 f
o

r 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
T

ra
v
e

l 
P

la
n

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
. 

 
A

ll 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

ill
 

b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

, 
o

n
e

 y
e

a
r 

a
h

e
a

d
 

o
f 

th
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
ta

rg
e
t.

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l
m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
N

I 
1

9
8

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 

in
 2

0
0

7
 &

 n
o

t 
c
o

m
p

a
ti
b

le
 w

it
h

 
p

re
v
io

u
s

s
u

rv
e

y
s
. 

  
P

re
v
io

u
s

s
u

rv
e

y
s
: 

 
- 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 v
 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri
n

g
c
o

u
n

ti
e

s
, 

s
o

lo
 

c
a

r 
u

s
e

 i
s
 t

h
e

 
5

th
 l
o

w
e

s
t 

o
u

t 
o

f 
6

, 
a

n
d

 
c
o

m
b

in
e

d
s
o

lo
/s

h
a

re
d

 u
s
e

 
is

 6
th

. 
- 

O
x
o

n
 p

u
p

ils
 

c
y
c
lin

g
, 

a
t 

8
%

, 
is

 4
 t

im
e

s
 t

h
e

 
a

c
c
e

p
te

d
n

a
ti
o

n
a

l
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
2

%
. 

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
s
in

g
le

 (
p

u
p

il)
 

o
c
c
u

p
a

n
c
y
 c

a
r 

u
s
e

 f
ro

m
 2

3
.9

%
 

to
 2

1
%

 
(e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 a
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
2

5
0

0
 

d
a

ily
 j
o

u
rn

e
y
s
).

 

N
o

 f
o

c
u

s
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 b
u

t 
d

a
ta

 c
a

n
 b

e
 

a
n

a
ly

s
e

d
 t

o
 

S
O

A
, 

to
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
le

v
e

l 
a
n
d
 g

ro
u
p

e
d
 b

y
 

D
is

tr
ic

t,
 

D
iv

is
io

n
/W

a
rd

,
ty

p
e

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

l,
 

s
c
h

o
o

l
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

o
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l
s
c
h

o
o

l

N
o

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 –

 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 

a
lr
e

a
d

y
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 

a
n

d
re

s
o

u
rc

e
d

,
p

a
rt

ia
lly

 
fu

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 

th
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
T

ra
v
e

l 
A

c
ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
 G

ra
n

t 
w

h
ic

h
 r

u
n

s
 

u
n

ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
0

.

Page 91



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 1

9
 o

f 
2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

C
lim

a
te

C
h
a
n
g
e
 -

 
C

h
ri

s
C

o
u

s
in

s

N
I 

1
8

5
C

O
2

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

fr
o

m
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 P

S
A

 
2

7

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

2
0

0
9

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
3

 o
f 

O
ff

ic
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e

rc
e

 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 B

e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 G
u

id
e

 
7

0
%

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 a
s
 E

c
o

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 5
0

%
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 o

n
 a

n
 a

w
a

rd
 (

 t
o

 g
a

in
 a

n
 a

w
a

rd
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 m

u
s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 3
 o

f 
n

in
e

 a
re

a
s
 –

 l
it
te

r,
 w

a
s
te

, 
e

n
e

rg
y
, 

w
a

te
r,

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

, 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
g

ro
u

n
d

s
, 

h
e

a
lt
h

y
 l
iv

in
g

, 
b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
, 

g
lo

b
a

l 
p

e
rs

p
e

c
ti
v
e

s
) 

2
0

1
0

8
5

%
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 a
s
 E

c
o

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 6
0

%
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 o

n
 a

n
 a

w
a

rd
 

2
0

1
1

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
5

 o
f 

O
ff

ic
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
e

rc
e

 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 B

e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 G
u

id
e

 
1

0
0

%
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d

 a
s
 E

c
o

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 7
0

%
 

h
a

v
e

 a
n

 a
w

a
rd

  
R

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 C
O

2
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 d
a

ta
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 

s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
s
u

p
p

ly
 c

h
a

in
 

C
O

2
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 

b
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
d

 
in

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 
in

d
ic

a
to

r.

4
.2

%
 R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

o
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r 
fo

r 
o
x
o
n
 C

C
 o

n
 

s
u

b
s
e

t 
o

f 
d

a
ta

 
th

a
t 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 

th
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.

6
0

%
 L

E
A

 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

re
g

is
te

re
d

 E
c
o

 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
, 

c
f 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
3
0

%
 

in
 a

n
 L

E
A

 a
re

a
. 

O
x
o

n
, 
C

it
y
 &

 
W

e
s
t 

O
x

o
n

 
C

o
u

n
c

il
s

 t
h

e
 

to
p

 q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

th
ro

u
g
h

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 
C

a
rb

o
n

 T
ru

s
t’
s
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

C
a
rb

o
n

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

.

8
0

%
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 o

n
 a

n
 

E
c
o

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

a
w

a
rd

.

R
e

d
u

c
e

 c
a

rb
o

n
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

in
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 b
y
 

1
5
%

 f
ro

m
 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

1
0
0
%

 o
f 

s
u

p
p

lie
rs

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 c
o

m
p

ly
 

w
it
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
5

 o
f 

b
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 

O
ff

ic
e

 o
f 

G
o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

e
’s

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
T

a
s
k
 F

o
rc

e
’s

 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 

D
a

ta
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 

o
v
e

ra
ll

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
O

x
o

n
 c

o
u

n
c
ils

 
a

n
d

 U
n

is
.

C
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 

b
ro

k
e

n
 i
n

to
 D

C
, 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 u
n

it
. 

T
a

rg
e

t 
c
a

n
 

b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 
w

it
h

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

s
ta

ff
 e

x
c
e

p
t 

in
 c

a
s
e

 o
f 

e
c
o

-s
c
h

o
o

ls
w

h
e
re

 a
n

 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l
h

a
lf
-t

im
e

e
c
o

-s
c
h

o
o

ls
o

ff
ic

e
r

n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

s
tr

e
tc

h
. 

Page 92



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 2

0
 o

f 
2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

C
lim

a
te

C
h
a
n
g
e
 -

 
C

h
ri

s
C

o
u

s
in

s

N
I 

1
8

8
A

d
a

p
ti
n

g
 t

o
 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 
P

S
A

 2
7

 

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 w

it
h

 f
o

u
r 

le
v
e

ls
. 

L
e

v
e

l 
1

: 
P

u
b

lic
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
s
e

d
 r

is
k
-b

a
s
e

d
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
L

e
v
e

l 
2

: 
C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 r

is
k
-b

a
s
e

d
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 a
re

a
s
 

L
e

v
e

l 
3

: 
C

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 a
n

d
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 

a
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 a
ll 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 a

re
a

s
: 

 
L

e
v
e

l 
4

: 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
, 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
o

u
s
 

re
v
ie

w
. 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
: 

P
la

n
n

in
g

, 
E

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
, 

H
o

u
s
in

g
, 

P
u

b
lic

 
b

u
ild

in
g

s
, 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 &
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
, 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 &

 S
o

c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

E
c
o

n
o
m

y
 &

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

C
o

u
n

tr
y
s
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

L
o

c
a

l 
C

lim
a

te
 

Im
p

a
c
ts

P
ro

fi
le

 2
0

0
6

: 
d

a
ta

c
o

lle
c
te

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 O
x
o

n
 

L
o

c
a

l 
C

lim
a

te
 

Im
p

a
c
ts

p
ro

fi
le

 i
n

 
2

0
0

6
 a

n
d

 
re

la
te

s
 t

o
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

y
e
a
rs

.2
6

0
 

w
e

a
th

e
r 

re
la

te
d

in
c
id

e
n

ts
re

c
o

rd
e

d
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

1
9
9
6
-2

0
0

6
. 

C
u

m
u

la
ti
v
e

c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

re
c
o

v
e

ry
 o

f 
o

v
e

r 
£

1
6

.4
 

m
ill

io
n

n
/a

L
o

c
a

l 
C

lim
a

te
 

Im
p

a
c
ts

 P
ro

fi
le

’ 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 
c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 U

K
 C

lim
a

te
 

Im
p

a
c
ts

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

l
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
b

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 l
e

a
d

in
g

 
th

e
 U

K
’s

 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
o

f 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 

e
ff

e
c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 

Y
e

a
r 

1
 E

a
c
h

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 t

o
 

h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

a
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
lim

a
te

 
im

p
a

c
ts

 p
ro

fi
le

 
(L

e
v
e

l 
1

) 
Y

e
a

r 
2

 E
a

c
h

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

h
a

v
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 –
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 r
e

v
ie

w
 

a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
 

lis
t 

o
f 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

o
n

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

. 
(L

e
v
e

l 
2

) 
Y

e
a

r 
3

 A
t 

le
a

s
t 

o
n

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 i
n

 
e

a
c
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
re

a
. 

(L
e

v
e

ls
 3

 
&

4
)

O
n

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t

p
ro

je
c
t 

p
e

r 
d

is
tr

ic
t.

 

In
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

in
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
re

 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 &

 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 &

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 c

a
n

 
b

e
 d

o
n

e
 b

y
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

ta
ff

.
M

a
y
 b

e
 

a
u

d
it
in

g
c
o

s
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

fu
tu

re
.

O
n

e
 F

T
 p

o
s
t 

n
e

e
d

e
d

(f
u

n
d

s
a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 

O
x
o
n
 C

C
).

  
 

S
o

m
e

 i
n

p
u

t 
fr

o
m

 e
a

c
h

 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
’

s p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
g

t 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
. 

W
a

s
te

 -
 

Ia
n

 D
a

v
ie

s
 

N
I 

1
9

1
R

e
s
id

u
a

l
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
w

a
s
te

 p
e

r 
h

e
a

d
 

D
e
fr

a
 D

S
O

 

R
e

c
ru

it
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

b
y
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0

8
 t

o
 

in
te

g
ra

te
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 O
W

P
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
: 

• 
U

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 o
n

 S
m

a
rt

 S
h

o
p

p
in

g
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 f

o
o

d
 w

a
s
te

, 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 p

a
c
k
a

g
in

g
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

c
a

rr
ie

r 
b

a
g

s
 

• 
R

e
-v

a
m

p
 t

h
e

 R
e

a
l 
N

a
p

p
ie

s
 S

c
h

e
m

e
, 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 
w

it
h

 i
n

c
e

n
ti
v
e

s
 t

o
 c

h
o

o
s
e

 r
e

u
s
a

b
le

 n
a

p
p

ie
s

• 
P

ro
m

o
te

 H
o

m
e

 C
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
s
id

is
e

 t
h

e
 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 o
f 

h
o

m
e

 c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
 b

in
s
 b

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
  

• 
P

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 r
e

-u
s
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 o

f 
fu

rn
it
u

re
 a

n
d

 
e

le
c
tr

ic
a

l 
it
e

m
s
. 

F
ro

m
2

0
0

4
/0

5
, 

o
n

 
c
u

rr
e

n
t

m
e

a
s
u

re
. 

 A
 

n
e

w
 

d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
w

a
s
te

 i
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r,
 

a
n

d
 i
f 

a
d

o
p

te
d

 w
ill

 
ta

k
e

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

6
 m

o
n

th
s
 t

o
 

c
o

n
fi
rm

 a
 

b
a

s
e

lin
e

.

W
a

s
te

 p
e

r 
h

e
a

d
 

is
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

T
o

p
 q

u
a

rt
ile

 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 &

 2
n

d
 

lo
w

e
s
t 

w
a

s
te

 
p
e
r 

h
e
a
d
 f

o
r 

E
n

g
lis

h
 s

h
ir

e
 

c
o

u
n

ti
e

s

c
h

a
n

g
in

g
te

rm
in

o
lo

g
y
 s

o
 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
th

a
t 

u
n

d
e

r 
5

5
0

k
g

 p
e

r 
h
e
a
d
 p

e
r 

y
e
a

r 
u
p

 
to

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 

C
a

n
 b

e
 b

ro
k
e

n
 

d
o

w
n

 t
o

 d
is

tr
ic

t 
le

v
e

l

O
W

P
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

d
£

8
0

K
 f

ro
m

 i
ts

 
c
o

re
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
to

 c
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 &

 
a
n

y
 f
u

rt
h
e
r 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u

re
 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 
O

W
P

S
's

 
N

e
w

 
In

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
F

u
n
d
.

T
w

o
 n

e
w

 
p

o
s
ts

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

p
o

s
t 

to
 

s
p

e
n

d
 3

0
%

 
o

f 
ti
m

e
 o

n
 

th
is

 w
o

rk
. 

Page 93



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 2

1
 o

f 
2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

W
a
s
te

 -
 

Ia
n

 D
a

v
ie

s
 

N
I 

1
9

2
H

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 

w
a
s

te
 r

e
c

y
c

le
d

 
a
n

d
c
o

m
p

o
s

te
d

 
D

e
fr

a
 D

S
O

 

• 
F

o
o

d
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0

8
;

• 
P

ro
c
u

re
 f

o
o

d
 w

a
s
te

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 b

y
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0

9
;

• 
F

o
o

d
 w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 O

x
o

n
 f

ro
m

 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0

9
;

• 
R

e
c
ru

it
 o

f 
a

n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 a
b

o
v
e

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 b
y
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0

8
• 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri

l 
0

8
 t

o
 M

a
rc

h
 1

1
to

 b
o

o
s
t 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
a

te
ri

a
ls

 c
a

p
tu

re
 i
n

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 

&
 c

o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
; 

F
ro

m
2

0
0

4
/0

5
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
u
n
ty

w
id

e
 t
o
p
 

q
u

a
rt

ile
 b

u
t 

v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

d
is

tr
ic

ts
 

4
5
%

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 
re

c
y
c
le

d
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
p

o
s
te

d
 b

y
 

2
0

1
1

.

c
o

u
n

ty
w

id
e

 
a

v
e

ra
g

e

F
u

lly
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
re

 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

(c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
d

is
p

o
s
a

l)

C
le

a
n

 &
 

G
re

e
n
 -

 
Ia

n
 D

a
v
ie

s
 

N
I 

1
9

5
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 

a
n

d
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s

(l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
g

ra
ff

it
i,
 l
it
te

r,
 

d
e

tr
it
u

s
 a

n
d

 f
ly

 
p

o
s
ti
n

g
) 

D
e

fr
a

 
D

S
O

N
e

w
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 P

la
n

 w
it
h

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
&

 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
: 

- 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

- 
d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

a
c
k
s
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s

- 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 a
t 

fa
s
t 

fo
o

d
 o

u
tl
e

ts
 t

o
 

re
d

u
c
e

 l
it
te

r 
o

u
tf

a
ll 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

ir
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 

- 
lit

te
r 

b
lit

z
e

s
 i
n

 t
o

w
n

s
 a

n
d

 v
ill

a
g

e
s
 

- 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 G

ro
u

p
s
  

- 
c
ig

a
re

tt
e

 b
u

tt
 b

in
 t

ri
a

ls
 a

n
d

 c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 
c
ig

a
re

tt
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 l
it
te

r 
- 

e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

n
-s

tr
e

e
t 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
R

e
c
y
c
le

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

G
o

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 
- 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 f

o
r 

c
le

a
ra

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 o

n
 m

a
in

 r
o

u
te

s
 

N
e

w
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 m

e
th

o
d

s
 o

f 
d

a
ta

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
re

c
o

rd
in

g
. 

T
ra

in
 s

ta
ff

 o
n

 m
e

a
s
u

ri
n

g
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 
in

d
ic

a
to

r,
 d

a
ta

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
. 

C
o
u
n
ty

w
id

e
 

fi
g

u
re

s
 s

in
c
e

 
2

0
0

5
/6

.
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 
c
o

u
n

te
d

 a
s
 

th
re

e
 B

V
P

Is
.

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

0
5
/0

6
:

1
6

.1
%

, 
2

.6
%

, 
2
.2

%
0
6
/0

7
:

1
2
.2

%
, 

1
.3

5
%

, 
1
.4

8
%

L
it

te
r 

&
 

d
e
tr

it
u

s
: 

S
o

u
th

, 
V

a
le

 &
  

W
e

s
t 

- 
2

n
d

 q
u

a
rt

ile
, 

C
h

e
rw

e
ll 

in
 3

rd
 

q
u

a
rt

ile
, 

C
it
y
 4

th
 

q
u

a
rt

ile
.

G
ra

ff
it

i:
C

h
e

rw
e

ll,
 S

o
u

th
, 

V
a

le
 &

 W
e

s
t 

- 
to

p
 q

u
a

rt
ile

, 
C

it
y
 

in
 4

th
 q

u
a

rt
ile

. 
  

F
ly

-p
o

s
ti

n
g

:
C

h
e

rw
e

ll,
 S

o
u

th
 

&
 V

a
le

 -
 t

o
p

 
q

u
a

rt
ile

, 
C

it
y
 -

 
4

th
 q

u
a

rt
ile

.
C

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 
s
im

ila
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
, 

C
it
y
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 (
b

e
lo

w
 

g
ra

d
e
 B

) 
b

y
 2

0
1
1

 
le

v
e

ls
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 

b
e

:
9

%
 -

 l
it
te

r 
+

 
d

e
tr

it
u

s
,

2
%

 -
 g

ra
ff

it
i,
  

2
%

 -
 f

ly
-p

o
s
ti
n
g
 

R
a

is
in

g
c
o

u
n

ty
w

id
e

 
a

v
e

ra
g

e

O
W

P
 &

 a
ll 

w
a

s
te

 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

d
s
o

m
e

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t
w

o
rk

. 
 T

a
rg

e
t 

re
q

u
ir
e

s
 t

h
e

 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t
o

f 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

(£
7

6
K

) 
fr

o
m

 
re

m
a

in
in

g
 

L
A

A
1

 p
u

m
p

-
p

ri
m

in
g

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 
th

e
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
’s

“n
e

w
 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
fu

n
d

” 
a

n
d

 a
t 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l
p

a
rt

n
e

r 
le

v
e

l,
 

to
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 
s
ta

ff
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t

. 
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
t 

O
W

P
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

n
 

2
9

 F
e

b
 2

0
0

8
. 

Page 94



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 2

2
 o

f 
2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

C
le

a
n

 &
 

G
re

e
n
 -

 
Ia

n
 D

a
v
ie

s
 

N
I 

1
9

6
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 

a
n

d
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 –

 f
ly

 
ti
p

p
in

g
 D

e
fr

a
 

D
S

O

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

A
g

re
e

d
 f

o
r 

s
h

o
rt

 l
is

t 

A
p

r-
N

o
v
 '
0

7
 

4
,4

0
0

in
c
id

e
n

ts
,

2
,3

2
4

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

ts

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
in

c
id

e
n

ts
L

o
w

e
r 

q
u

a
rt

ile
 

1
0

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
1
0
%

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 

2
0

1
1

c
o

u
n

ty
w

id
e

 
a

v
e

ra
g

e

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

ta
ff

 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

£
3
5
,0

0
0
 f

o
r 

p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l
c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
s

S
tr

o
n
g
e
r

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
- S

a
lly

 
T

ru
m

a
n

N
I 

5
O

v
e

ra
ll/

g
e

n
e

ra
l 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
lo

c
a

l 
a

re
a

 C
L

G
 

D
S

O

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 
B

A
S

E
D

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
N

I5
 i
s
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

o
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 a
 n

o
. 

o
f 

L
A

A
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
; 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 

N
I2

0
, 

2
1

, 
1

1
0

, 
1

5
5

, 
1

7
7

, 
1

9
5

 &
 1

9
6

 (
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 m

o
s
t 

in
 

n
e

e
d

 o
f 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 c

o
u

n
ty

w
id

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 

B
V

P
I 

s
u

rv
e

y
.)

 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

t 
a
g

a
in

s
t 

N
I5

:
A

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 d

a
ta

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 k
e

y
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

s
e

g
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
u

p
le

d
 w

it
h

 q
u

a
lit

a
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 t

o
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
’ 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t.

  
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 G
ro

u
p

 o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

(N
B

 s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
is

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 m

a
y
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
g

a
th

e
re

d
 e

.g
. 

in
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 s

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
 

–
 t

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
) 

A
c

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
:

F
o

c
u

s
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

/s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

w
it
h

 r
e

fe
re

n
c
e

 t
o

 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
 f

ro
m

 q
u

a
lit

a
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
 –

 
re

q
u

ir
e

s
 f

le
x
ib

ili
ty

 i
n

 e
a

rl
y
 w

o
rk

-p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

s
e

 
th

e
m

e
s

D
e

v
e

lo
p

/r
e

v
ie

w
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 
g

ro
u

p
s
 w

h
o

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 l
o

w
e

r 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 
th

e
ir
 a

re
a
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 j
o

in
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 p

la
n

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 L
A

A
, 

w
it
h

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 e
le

m
e

n
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 
m

a
rk

e
t 

th
e

 p
la

c
e

 a
s
 a

 g
o

o
d

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 l
iv

e
. 

O
C

C
2

0
0

6
/0

7
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

8
2
%

 (
n

e
t 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
7
6
%

)

N
o

t 
m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 
b
e
fo

re
 0

6
/0

7
 

O
C

C
 s

c
o

re
 f

o
r 

N
I5

 w
a

s
 8

2
%

 
(U

p
p
e

r 
q
u
a
rt

ile
).

  

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l
a

v
e

ra
g

e
: 

7
5

%
. 

 

C
o

u
n

ty
 c

o
u

n
c
ils

: 
7
8
%

D
C

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
c
o

u
n

ty
 v

a
ri

e
d

 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
  

7
8

%
 

a
n
d
 8

5
%

 

A
tt

it
u

d
e

s
 t

a
k
e

 a
 

lo
n

g
 t

im
e

 t
o

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 
p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

re
 

h
ig

h
ly

 v
o

la
ti
le

. 
 I

n
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 i
s
 

a
lr

e
a

d
y
 a

 h
ig

h
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
r.

  
W

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 

s
u

g
g

e
s
t 

a
 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

ta
rg

e
t 

. 

B
re

a
k
d

o
w

n
 b

y
 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
&

 
d

e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

s
 

g
iv

e
s
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

re
s
u

lt
s
. 

  

B
re

a
k
d

o
w

n
 b

y
 

W
a

rd
 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 i
f 

w
e

 
a
re

 t
o
 r

e
ly

 o
n
 

th
e

 P
la

c
e

 
S

u
rv

e
y
 d

a
ta

 

Q
u

a
lit

a
ti
v
e

w
o

rk
: 

£
4

0
K

 +
 

s
ta

ff
 t

im
e

 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
s
u

rv
e

y
:

£
5

0
K

P
la

c
e

s
u

rv
e

y
 (

a
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t
):

 £
5

0
K

. 
O

C
C

 &
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

2
 

d
is

tr
ic

ts
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 d

o
 

a
n

 a
n

n
u

a
l 

s
u

rv
e

y
 –

 
th

e
s
e

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
d

iv
e

rt
e

d
 t

o
 

d
o

 a
n

n
u

a
l 

s
u

rv
e

y
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

e
n

g
a

g
e
m

e
n

t
/c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
 p

la
n

 –
 

w
o

u
ld

 m
e

a
n

 
re

-d
ir
e

c
ti
n

g
s
o

m
e

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

ta
ff

 
ti
m

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
s
e

 
d

is
c
ip

lin
e

s
. 

Page 95



O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2
0
0
8
-2

0
1
1
 –

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
L

is
t 

a
g

re
e
d

 b
y
 O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
n

 7
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
8
 

P
a
g
e
 2

3
 o

f 
2
3
 

F
o

c
u

s
 &

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

B
a
s
e
li
n

e
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

: 
R

e
c
e
n

t 
T

re
n

d
 

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

 
in

fo
 e

g
. 
to

p
 

q
u

a
rt

il
e
 

S
u

g
g

e
s
te

d
 

T
a
rg

e
t

A
n

y
 l

o
c

a
li

ty
  

/ 
g

ro
u

p
 f

o
c
u

s
?

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 

P
la

n
s

S
tr

o
n
g
e
r

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
- A

lis
o

n
B

a
x
te

r 

N
I 

6
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 
re

g
u
la

r
v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
C

O
 D

S
O

 

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 
B

A
S

E
D

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 
lo

c
a

l 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
, 

in
c
. 

O
x
o

n
 C

C
. 

N
e

w
 t

e
a

m
 t

o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 i
n

to
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
O

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 b
e

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 t

o
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 
w

o
rk

 i
n

 d
a

y
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 &

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

. 
In

c
re

a
s
in

g
 f

o
rm

a
l 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 b

y
 B

M
E

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
; 

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
 a

n
d

 B
a

n
b

u
ry

. 

Y
E

S
 -

 s
im

ila
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
a

lr
e

a
d

y
 

c
o

lle
c
te

d
.

V
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
d

e
c
re

a
s
in

g

V
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
b

e
lo

w
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e

In
c
re

a
s
e

v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
C

o
u
n
ty

-w
id

e
 

O
C

V
A

 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

r
c
e

n
tr

e
 f

u
lly

 
fu

n
d

e
d

(O
x
o
n
 C

C
).

 
C

h
e

rw
e

ll 
- 

s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 

b
u

d
g

e
t

d
e

c
is

io
n

(v
a

ri
o

u
s
 l
o

c
a

l 
fu

n
d

e
rs

)
W

it
n
e
y
 -

 
s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 

b
u

d
g

e
t

d
e

c
is

io
n

(v
a

ri
o

u
s
 l
o

c
a

l 
fu

n
d

e
rs

)

L
o

c
a

l
E

c
o

n
o

m
y
 -

 
F

ra
n

k
 W

ils
o

n
 

N
I 

1
7

9
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 –

 t
o

ta
l 

n
e

t 
v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

o
n

-
g

o
in

g
 c

a
s
h

-
re

le
a

s
in

g
 v

a
lu

e
 

fo
r 

m
o
n
e

y
 g

a
in

s
 

th
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 
im

p
a

c
te

d
 s

in
c
e

 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 
2

0
0

8
-9

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

C
L

G
 D

S
O

 

N
E

W
IN

D
IC

A
T

O
R

 

E
a

c
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e

y
 p

la
n

s
. 

  
C

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 j
o

in
t 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 /

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 g

re
a

te
r 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s

N
o

 d
a

ta
 

c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
ta

rt
s
 A

p
r 

0
8

 
N

e
w

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
N

e
w

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
9

.3
%

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

v
e

r 
3

 
y
e
a
rs

 

A
t 

d
is

tr
ic

t 
a

n
d

 
c
o

u
n

ty
 l
e

v
e

l 

A
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 t
a

p
 

in
to

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

w
id

e
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

te
a

m
s
.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

o
f 

S
h

a
re

d
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
c
o

u
n

ty
 w

id
e

 
o

r 
s
m

a
lle

r 
g

ro
u

p
in

g
s

A
B

B
R

E
V

IA
T

IO
N

S
 

 
 

 

A
B

G
 

A
re

a
 B

a
s
e

d
 G

ra
n

t 
O

H
P

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 
 

 

C
IH

 
C

h
a

rt
e

re
d

 I
n

s
ti
tu

te
 o

f 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 

O
R

H
 

O
x
fo

rd
 R

a
d

c
lif

fe
 H

o
s
p

it
a

ls
 

 
 

 

E
S

F
 

E
u

ro
p

e
a

n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
F

u
n

d
 

O
R

H
P

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 R
u

ra
l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 
F

S
M

 
F

re
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
m

e
a

ls
 

O
W

P
 

O
x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 W
a

s
te

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
 

 
 

ID
A

C
I 

In
c
o

m
e

 D
e

p
ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 A

ff
e

c
ti
n

g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 I
n

d
e

x
 

P
C

T
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t 

 
 

 

IM
D

 
In

d
ic

e
s
 o

f 
m

u
lt
ip

le
 d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
 

P
S

B
 

P
u

b
lic

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 B

o
a

rd
 

 
 

 

J
S

A
 

J
o

b
 S

e
e

k
e

rs
 A

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 
S

E
E

D
A

 
S

o
u

th
 E

a
s
t 

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

A
g

e
n

c
y
 

L
S

C
 /

 L
&

S
C

 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

S
O

A
 

S
u

p
e

r 
O

u
tp

u
t 

A
re

a
 

 
 

 

N
E

E
T

 
N

o
t 

in
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
T

ra
in

in
g

 
S

R
E

/P
S

H
E

 
S

e
x
 &

 R
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 /

 P
e

rs
o

n
a

l,
 S

o
c
ia

l 
&

 H
e

a
lt
h

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

O
C

V
A

 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 &

 V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 A
c
ti
o

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 96



 

Produced by Democratic Services 20 March 2008 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL  Report No. 184/07 
 Wards Affected – Shrivenham, Faringdon & Coxwells 
  

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 
TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

4 APRIL 2008 
 

Draft South West Spatial Strategy – Panel Report December 2007   
 
 

1.0 Introduction and Report Summary  
 
1.1 The draft Regional Spatial Strategy for the South West (or South West Plan) covers the 

area which abuts the Vale’s western boundary. This area includes Swindon. The report 
of the panel, which carried out an examination in public of the draft South West Plan, 
was published in December 2007. This report to the Executive is a summary of the main 
points arising out of the Panel’s Report. 

 
1.2 In the draft South West Plan, Swindon is identified as a Strategically Significant City or 

Town (SSCT) and the location for a strategic urban extension of about 12,000 dwellings 
on the eastern side of the town (policy SR8). The Council commented on this and other 
matters in the draft South West Plan (see report 30/06 to SLAG dated 26 June 2006). In 
particular, the Council objected to policy SR8 principally on the basis that the figure of 
12000 dwellings (representing an ambitious annual build rate of 600 dwellings) was 
unlikely to be achieved and objected to the reference to a new upper Thames reservoir 
on the basis that Thames Water has yet to formally bring forward a fully justified reservoir 
proposal and that the reference to a reservoir was therefore premature. Other comments 
related to the absence of strategic gaps to safeguard the character, identity and setting of 
the rural villages and communities surrounding the development and the number of 
vehicle movements onto the A420 likely to be generated as a result of the eastern 
development.  
 

1.3 The Panel Report, among other things, endorses the provision of 12,000 dwellings east 
of Swindon and identifies a new upper Thames reservoir as part of the key infrastructure. 
The Panel also accepted that highway improvements to cope with the vehicle 
movements should be part of the key infrastructure. The Panel includes no 
recommendation for strategic gaps. 

 
1.4 The issue of how an ambitious annual build rate of 600 dwellings will be achieved has 

not been addressed in any detail by the Panel and the Panel’s endorsement of a new 
reservoir in advance of its formal justification are therefore matters which remain of major 
concern to this Council.  

 
1.5 The Panel Report is submitted to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 

Government and is published for information purposes only. The publication of the Panel 
Report is not, therefore, a further stage of consultation with the public. However, in order 
that the Secretary of State should be properly briefed it is considered that she should be 
made aware of the Council’s concerns. 

 
1.6 The contact officer for this report is Nick Burroughs, Principal Planning Officer (Planning 

and Community), telephone (01235 520202 extn. 496).  Email address 
nick.burroughs@whitehorsedc.gov.uk. 

 

Agenda Item 16

Page 97



 

Produced by Democratic Services 20 March 2008 

2.0 Recommendations  
 

(a) that the Executive notes this report on the Panel Report into the draft Regional 
Spatial Strategy for the South West, 

 
(b) that the Executive remains concerned that the rates of development proposed 

for the Swindon East expansion are ambitious and unlikely to be achieved, at 
the absence of appropriate strategic gaps and that because the ‘needs case’ for 
the new reservoir has yet to be made, the reference to the new reservoir is 
premature. 

 
(c) that an appropriate summary of the Council’s concerns is sent to the Secretary 

of State for Communities and Local Government and the Member of Parliament 
for the Wantage Constituency. 

  
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
3.1 This report relates to the Council’s Vision in that it supports objectives A and F.  The 

report does not conflict with any Council Strategies. 
 
3.2 While the draft South West Plan’s growth proposals for eastern Swindon lie outside the 

Vale area, it is important to closely monitor where and how this growth is proposed to 
take place.  

 
4.0 Background 
 
4.1 The draft Regional Spatial Strategy for the South West (South West Plan), published 

June 2006, covers the area immediately to the west of the Vale. A number of the draft 
South West Plan’s proposals affect the Vale and the Council formally submitted its 
comments (see report 30/06 to SLAG dated 26 June 2006). The comments made are 
summarised below; 

a) The scale of development proposed at Swindon (policy SR8); 35,000 
dwellings in total at annual build rate of 1750 dwellings (to 2026), was 
excessive, 

b) The eastern strategic urban extension to Swindon (policy SR8), 12,000 
dwellings in total at annual ambitious build rate of 600 dwellings (to 2026), was 
unrealistic and unachievable, 

c) Swindon Borough Council is required to work with neighbouring local 
authorities to ensure that settlements surrounding the town do not coalesce 
with Swindon but objection was made to the omission of a policy context which 
addresses the identification of strategic gaps, particularly with regard to the 
eastern development area. 

d) Objection was made to a new reservoir on the basis that Thames Water has 
yet to formally bring forward a fully justified reservoir proposal and that the 
reference to a reservoir was therefore premature. 

e) The eastern development area will significantly increase the number of 
vehicles using the A420 and improvements to access and serve the eastern 
development area should be listed as an issue of key infrastructure. 
  

4.2 An examination into issues raised by the draft South West Plan was carried out by an 
independent Panel. The Panel’s Report (December 2007) makes a number of 
comments. Those which apply to the matters stated in paragraph 4.1 above are 
examined in more detail in the next section.  

Page 98



 

Produced by Democratic Services 20 March 2008 

 
5.0 Panel Report 
 

Swindon East 
 
5.1 The Panel Report (PR) notes that there were concerns (PR 4.2.28) about the growth 

figure for Swindon East on the grounds of “experience in masterminding substantial 
urban extensions and reservations about infrastructure delivery” (note that in this 
context the terms ‘strategic urban extension to Swindon’, ‘Swindon East’ and ‘Eastern 
Development Area’ are interchangeable). The Panel notes that developers do not 
share these reservations and argue for greater provision. Counterbalancing that are 
the objections from neighbouring Councils that development would spoil the landscape 
and affect views from the AONB. In summary the Panel considered, provided 
development is carefully planned and “includes necessary infrastructure”, this 
(Swindon East) to be a suitably sustainable development location (PR 4.2.29).  

 
5.2 The Panel Report paragraphs referred to above do not address the issues of the 

deliverability of the Eastern Development Area within the proposed timetable or the 
proposed build rates. The Report gives some consideration to rates of development. It 
acknowledges that the rates of development implied by the Panel’s proposals are 
higher than average rates of development in the past but notes that higher levels have 
been achieved over short periods. The Report states “we assume that these higher 
rates may have been linked to surges in land availability in the past” and that 
increased land release in the South West Plan will similarly enable higher levels of 
development (PR 4.0.38). 

 
5.3 The Panel comments that they were assured by the house-building industry that the 

industry “could respond (to higher rates of development) if the planning system 
provided the confidence that the land supply would be made available timeously (sic)” 
(PR 4.0.39).  

 
5.4 The proposed average annual build rate for Swindon East is 600 dwellings (see para 

4.1 b) above). In its comments on the draft South West Plan the Council observed that 
the Panel Report (October 2004) into the Wiltshire and Swindon Structure Plan 2016 
had concluded (paragraph 3.29) that it “would be reasonable to assume an output 
from a new major source of development of about 400 dwellings per annum.” 
Paragraph 3.29 referred to tables in Appendix D. This table is included in Appendix 1.  

 
5.5 The South West Plan Panel Report now seems to be able to support a different view, it 

would seem, because higher than average levels of development have been achieved 
over short periods in the past (see para. 5.2 above). Reference to the table in 
Appendix 2 shows that the higher than average levels of development which occurred 
in the past were, for example, in 2004/05 (919 dws), in 2005/06 (949 dws) and in 
2006/07 (1301dws). This gives an average annual build rate for 1996 – 2007 of 653 
dwellings. Reference to the table shows that of the eleven years for which dwellings 
totals are given, just over half (six) show annual build rates below the 600 dwelling 
average. While the build rates of the most recent years do show higher levels of 
development, the fluctuations over time that have occurred and may occur in the 
future, and the Structure Plan Panel Report’s own conclusions on build rates from a 
major source of development, indicate that a reliance on these higher levels of 
development may be misplaced.   

 
 

Page 99



 

Produced by Democratic Services 20 March 2008 

5.6 The South West Plan Panel Report also assumes “that these higher rates may have 
been linked to surges in land availability in the past”. This may well be true although 
the textual use of the word ‘may’ suggests that there is no evidence to support this 
view. Moreover, as the rates show, these build rates are subject to wide fluctuations.  
An assumption that does not appear to be supported by evidence is unsatisfactory as 
the justification on which to base a required and sustained increased rate.  

 
5.7 The Panel Report in question also noted that the house-building industry could 

respond to higher rates of development) if the planning system ensured that the land 
would be made available (see para. 5.3 above). The Panel Report seems to have 
taken the assurances of the house-building industry at face value. Given that the 
Panel Report is proposing rates of development significantly higher than was 
considered acceptable in 2004, more evidence might have been expected on how 
these assurances had been tested and could be concluded to be robust. 

 
Strategic Gaps 

 
5.8 The Council had objected because there was no policy context for strategic gaps to 

prevent Swindon coalescing with the surrounding settlements. The Panel Report 
seems to make no specific response to this matter although it may address it in para 
4.2.29 by referring to careful planning to include necessary infrastructure provision and 
suitable Master Planning. Given the proximity of the settlements in the Vale, it is 
disappointing that this is not explicitly considered. 
 
New Reservoir 

 
5.9 The Council objected to the reference to a new upper Thames reservoir on the basis 

that Thames Water has yet to formally bring forward a fully justified reservoir proposal 
and that the reference was therefore premature.  

 
5.10 The Panel Report notes in para 4.2.39 that there have been issues regarding water 

supply, ie “a possible new reservoir in the south east region” and that information 
given to the Panel by the Environment Agency “should not preclude development 
provided that adjustments to supply… can be undertaken in advance of appropriate 
stages in the expansion of Swindon.” The Panel Report lists as ‘other key 
infrastructure’ (PR, Appendix C. recommendation 4.2.5) “provision of strategic water 
resources to match the demand of houses and jobs generated by the projected growth 
levels, including a new reservoir (Upper Thames reservoir)”.   

    
5.11 With regard to its ‘Water Resources Management Plan’ Thames Water comments that 

since it undertook stage 1 of its consultation on how to meet the need for more water, 
the Environment Agency has published its ‘Water Resources Planning Guideline’ (April 
2007) and in the light of these guidelines Thames Water is revising its approach to the 
provision of a new reservoir. Thames Water comments that this means that the needs 
case for the new reservoir will be addressed in the new Water Resources 
Management Plan. The draft Management Plan is due to be published in March 2008, 
followed by a public hearing (if required) in late 2008 with final publication in July 2009.  

 
5.12 The new reservoir would be located within the south east region to which the draft 

South East Plan applies. Draft Policy NRM2 states that “strategic new water resources 
that may be required include: i. Upper Thames Reservoir by 2019/20…..” The South 
East Plan has been subject to examination and the Panel Report was published in 
August 2007. The SEP Panel Report notes the views of this Council that it would be 

Page 100



 

Produced by Democratic Services 20 March 2008 

premature “to give policy backing to a project when regulatory and funding 
investigations … are still ongoing…… and when the proposal has not been fully tested 
…”. However, the SEP Panel Report observes that “if RSS is to provide a forewarning 
of the long term infrastructure needs…. it seems … that the policy should be as clear 
as possible.” (SEP PR 10.16). Interestingly, it also stresses that policy NRM2 only 
says that the reservoir schemes ‘may’ be required (SEP PR 10.17). The SEP Panel 
Report’s recommendation is to amend Policy NRM2 “by adding a geographic 
reference after … the listed reservoir schemes.” (SEP PR Recommendation 10.3).  

 
5.13 However, since Thames Water has still to address the needs case for a new reservoir, 

the Council would seem still to be right in commenting that a reservoir proposal in a 
location within the Vale has yet to be shown to be justified.  

 
5.14 The Panel Report notes the adjustments to supply that can be undertaken in advance 

of appropriate stages in the expansion of Swindon, see para 5.10 above, and 
‘information’ which a footnote explains relates to an Environment Agency published 
report by Halcrow on the Swindon Water Cycle. The Environment Agency/Halcrow 
report summarises that “development in Swindon up to 2025/26 need not be 
constrained by the uncertainties over the Upper Thames Reservoir, although the 
timely delivery of the reservoir will alleviate some water supply constraints.” While this 
information is not disputed, it is disappointing that such a fundamental aspect to the 
development was not addressed more fully in the body of the Panel Report rather than 
being alluded to in a footnote. 

 
5.15 It seems inappropriate that such a fundamental public utility as water supply is reliant 

on this ‘minimalist’ sort of approach without a fuller explanation of the evidence base 
which supports it. It would also seem that an unqualified reference to the new reservoir 
remains premature and possibly misleading.  

 
Vehicle Movements 

 
5.16 The Council commented that the eastern development area will significantly increase 

the number of vehicles using the A420 and improvements to access and serve the 
eastern development area should be listed as an issue of key infrastructure.  
 

5.17 The Panel Report notes that there is a need for improvements to public transport, 
demand management and road improvements. Indeed, the Report states that the 
eastern extension cannot be delivered without improvements to the transport 
infrastructure (PR 4.2.41). Consequently, the Panel Report recommends that the key 
infrastructure list should be modified to include a transport package (PR, Appendix C, 
recommendation 4.2.5).  

 
 
 

RODGER HOOD 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR (PLANNING AND COMMUNITY) 

 
 
 
 
Background Papers:  
Report 30/06 to SLAG dated 26 June 2006   

Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL  Report No. 185/07 
 Wards Affected – All  
  

REPORT OF THE DEPUTY DIRECTOR (PLANNING & COMMUNITY STRATEGY) 
TO THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 31 MARCH 2008 

AND TO THE EXECUTIVE 4 APRIL 2008 
 

Draft Planning Code of Conduct: Member Involvement in Pre-Application Discussions 
 
 

1.0 Introduction and Report Summary  
 
1.1 At full Council on 4th December 2007 Members considered a revised draft of the 

Planning Code of Conduct.  Concerns were expressed about a new provision in the draft 
code which would establish the principle that local Members would be invited to observe 
and take part in pre-application discussions, in cases where a formal officers’ 
Development Team has been set up to take forward discussions in response to large, 
proposed developments in the Vale.  (The decision to set up a Development Team is 
taken by the Deputy Director in consultation with the Planning Service’s Management 
Team where it is considered that this will promote and assist the efficient handling of 
applications for major development proposals prior to their submission). 

 
1.2 Council resolved that the draft Code be referred back to the Strategic and Local Planning 

Advisory Group for the new provision to be given further consideration and, following its 
reconsideration by the Group, for the Code to be recommended back to the Council via 
the Development Control Committee, Executive and Standards Committee.  This report 
sets out the background to the proposed new provision and suggests an alternative 
wording for the relevant section of the draft code, to clarify the arrangements governing 
Member involvement.  A copy of the relevant paragraph of the original draft Code (4.6) is 
appended to the report.  The recommendations below have been considered and 
endorsed by the Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group.   

 
1.3 The Contact Officer for this report is Rodger Hood (Deputy Director – Planning & 

Community Strategy), telephone (01235) 540340. 
Email address: rodger.hood@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

 
2.0 Recommendations  
 

(a) that the wording of paragraph 4.6 of the draft Planning Code of Conduct dealing 
with Member involvement in pre-application discussions be amended to read as 
follows: 

 
“4.6  In response to large proposed developments, where a formal officers 
Development Team has been set up, local ward members may be invited to 
attend, observe and take part in pre-application discussions at meetings of the 
Team.  A request to be involved in such discussions should be made by the 
ward member to the Deputy Director (Planning and Community Strategy) who 
will consider the request in consultation with the Chair and/or Vice Chair of the 
Development Control Committee and the Opposition Planning Spokesman.  
The views of the applicant on ward member involvement in a development team 
will be sought to help inform the consultation.  In the event that a ward member 
is invited to become involved in pre-application discussions it is important that 
they restrict their involvement to receiving and gathering information about the 

Agenda Item 17

Page 104



proposals and providing views on the issues likely to be of concern in the 
locality.  It is also important that matters of a commercially confidential nature to 
the potential applicant are respected and that any commercial confidentiality is 
maintained.  Members should not engage in negotiations and should avoid 
giving any firm commitment or impression of a firm commitment that they hold 
any particular view about the merits of the proposal.  If it is known that a Ward 
Member has publicly expressed a particular view about a major development 
proposal prior to requesting involvement in Development Team pre-application 
discussions, this will be taken into account in the decision whether to grant their 
request to attend and participate”. 

 
 (b)  that the draft Planning Code of Conduct with the proposed re-wording of 

paragraph 4.6, be recommended to the Development Control Committee, 
Executive and Standards Committee and  subsequently to Council. 

 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
3.1 This report relates to the Council’s Vision in that it supports the objectives of 

“strengthening local democracy and public involvement through access to information, 
consultation, and devolution of power so that everyone can take part in our community 
and contribute to the decisions which affect out lives” and “Providing and supporting 
high quality public services which are effective, efficient, and responsive to the needs 
of people within the Vale”.   

 
3.2 The main risks arising from the recommendation in the report are that applicants may 

be deterred from engaging fully and openly in pre-application discussions on major 
development sites, and Members may find it difficult to draw the distinction between 
the role of gathering information and providing views on issues likely to be of local 
concern, and entering into application negotiations, which could give rise to questions 
of probity in the eventual decision making process. 

 
4.0 Background to the Issue of Member Involvement in Pre-Application Discussions 
 
4.1 For some time now Officers have been aware of the views expressed by some local 

ward members that they would like to be better informed of the progress being made and 
issues being discussed at pre-application stage , particularly in relation to major 
development proposals in their ward.  At the same time there has been growing support 
within a number of well respected, national organisations for the idea of promoting 
greater Member involvement in pre-application discussions, and a number of Councils 
are known to have responded by setting up special arrangements to facilitate this.  
Officers were asked to explore the possibility of greater Vale member involvement at pre-
application stage and undertook to research the matter and identify potential problems 
and opportunities.  To provide an informal Member view, discussions were held with the 
Executive Member for Planning, the Chair and Vice Chair of the Development Control 
Committee and the Opposition Planning Spokesperson in late Summer 2007.  A briefing 
note was prepared highlighting key issues to inform the discussions.  (A copy of the 
briefing note is appended to this report, together with copies of a guide “Positive 
engagement” published by a range of national bodies involved with planning, and the 
Local Government Association’s publication “Member engagement in planning matters”, 
both of which provide useful background information). 

 
4.2 The outcome of the informal discussion with key Members was the proposed insertion 

into the draft Planning Code of Conduct of a paragraph seeking to formalise 

Page 105



arrangements for Member involvement in pre-application discussions, specifically 
where large developments are proposed and formal officer “Development Teams” are 
set up to progress those discussions (Paragraph 4.6.  See Appendix One). 

 
4.3 The Standards Committee considered the draft Code at its meeting on 6th September 

2007 and recommended Council to adopt the Code.  However, at the Council meeting 
on 4th December it was reported that correspondence from a major developer had 
been received, expressing concerns about the proposal to allow local members to 
observe and take part in pre-application discussions in respect of a particular 
development they were seeking to progress.  In the event, Council decided not to 
adopt the Code.  Instead, it was agreed that the matter should be referred back to the 
Strategic and Local Planning Advisory Group to enable further consideration to be 
given to the issue of and arrangements for, Local Member involvement in pre-
application discussions.  The Advisory Group has met and supports the 
recommendations contained in this report.  The draft Code will now be considered by 
the Development Control Committee, Executive, and Standards Committee before 
being referred back to full Council.   

 
4.4 Officers have given further consideration to the wording of the relevant paragraph in 

the draft code and acknowledge that it can be improved to give greater clarity and 
guidance to ward members on the process for engaging in pre-application 
Development Team meetings.  A revised wording of the relevant paragraph is set out 
in the recommendation at 2.0(a) above.   

 
 
 
 

RODGER HOOD 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR (PLANNING & COMMUNITY STRATEGY) 

Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



APPENDIX TWO 
 

Member Involvement in Pre-Application Discussions – Briefing Note – July 2007 
 
Background 
 
A number of organisations and bodies recently have been promoting the idea of greater member 
involvement in pre-application discussions: 
 

• The ODPM; Planning Advisory Service; LGA; RTPI; Association of Council Secretaries & 
Solicitors; The Standards Board for England have produced a joint leaflet “Positive 
Engagement – a guide for planning councillors” – which suggests that  

 
“As a local councillor involved in planning matters, whether as a member of your authority’s 
executive, ……. a member of the planning committee….. or a ward member, you have a 
crucial role to play in both making the new planning system work and ensuring the best 
possible outcomes for your community.” 

 
It goes on to acknowledge that “Concerns are sometimes expressed about the compatibility of 
councillors meeting developers and interest groups and then taking decisions on an impartial 
basis.”  and then to summarise principles that should be observed to enable members to both 
“participate in and lead the system”.  It comments that 
 
“As a community leader and local representative you (the member) will want to be involved in 
public meetings and pre-application discussions” and suggests that “Councillors should 
involve themselves in discussions with developers, their constituents and others about 
planning matters.” 
 
The leaflet sets out useful “do” and “don’t” hints for Councillors. 

 

• An LGA publication “Member engagement in planning matters” also suggests that while much 
of the available guidance on pre-application discussions refers to the role of officers – 
“Members have a crucial role to play at this stage in offering vision and leadership…” 

 
The publication comments that: 

 
“While many Councils’ codes of conduct specifically advise against pre-application 
discussions between members and applicants, the LGA feels that, if conducted according to a 
clearly communicated and well structured format, discussions can be useful and effective 
ways to support the decision making process.” 
 
“Any discussions with developers or applicants should be part of structured arrangements 
agreed with officers” 

 
Issues for discussion 
 
If member involvement in pre-application discussions is to be promoted as a regular practice at 
the Vale, Officers believe four principal issues will need to be considered and addressed 
satisfactorily; 
 

Page 117



(i) The resourcing and organisational requirements of such an arrangement – in particular,  
impact on staff time 

(ii) The need to avoid delays to, and duplication of effort during, the planning process 
(iii) Balancing the need to maintain applicant’s commercial confidentiality with Members’ local 

leadership role; 
(iv) Maintaining the integrity of the decision making process and member impartiality. 
 
(i) Resource considerations 
 

- In 2006/7 the Vale dealt with around 1800 applications in total, and 57 “major” 
applications.  Although relatively minor applications can give rise to significant local 
concerns, it would be impossible to resource and produce a practical system which 
provided for member involvement in pre-application discussions at all levels of 
application.  Resourcing such involvement even for those applications  defined as “major” 
in DCLG terms (i.e. housing applications for 10+ dwellings) would not be possible at 
current levels of staffing if LGA and other guidance is to be followed.  (Such advice 
suggests that discussions should be part of formal and structured arrangements e.g. 
formal developer presentations should be arranged, comprehensive notes taken, records 
of attendance kept, attendance by officers of appropriate seniority required, member 
involvement recorded and explained in any subsequent Committee Report). 
 
To minimise the resource implications member involvement would need to be restricted to 
the most significant major applications (i.e. the largest residential and commercial 
schemes) with clear thresholds established, below which such involvement would not be 
provided for. 
 
There undoubtedly would be pressure from some members to set lower thresholds, 
however it would need to be made clear that this could not be resourced. 

 
(ii) The need to avoid process delays & duplication of effort 
 

Although Government BVPI performance targets are focussed on speed of handling 
applications once they have been lodged with the Council, advice and best practice 
across the profession stresses the need for speed and efficiency throughout the whole of 
the application process, right from pre-application through to the issue of the decision and 
the discharge of conditions.  The 2007 Planning White Paper and its companion 
documents continue to focus on the need to achieve yet greater efficiencies in the 
operation of the system and on the requirement to streamline processes and remove and 
avoid delays.  Of particular relevance to the issue of member pre-application involvement 
is the White Paper’s proposal that “Planning Performance Agreements” (PPA’s) be 
introduced as a means of managing large scale applications.  Such agreements would 
include both the pre-application and post submission phases and would incorporate a 
number of core components including; a charter which would set out the LPA’s 
expectations for community involvement and member engagement; a project plan which 
would identify key application milestones and fix meeting schedules and dates at which 
reports would be required; and a key issues list setting out the issues parties expect to 
encounter as an application progresses.  Nevertheless, PPA’s are seen by the 
Government not only as a tool leading to better planning decisions and stakeholder 
engagement, but also as a means of making the process more efficient and timely.  (The 
White Paper consultation broaches the possibility of including financial penalties in PPA’s 

Page 118



which would be incurred either by the applicant or the local authority for failure to deliver 
the PPA to the agreed timetable). 
 
Current Vale procedure for dealing with the most major development proposals is for a 
multi-disciplinary officer “development team” to be set up to process the proposals right 
through the pre-application to the application decision stages.  (The team often includes 
officers from outside organisations, in particular County Council officers, to address 
issues such as highway and other infrastructure requirements).  The system is working 
well and efficiently and enables officers from the various disciplines to keep abreast of 
and influence the evolution of the proposals (including at the pre-application stage) and is 
helpful to the developers who are able to discuss issues (some of which may cut across 
disciplines) at single meetings.  The composition of the team at particular meetings can 
and is varied depending on the issues to be discussed. 
 
Officers would be concerned to avoid duplication of this effort and delays to the process 
and also to avoid the possibility of contradictory messages being sent to (or received 
from) developers which might occur if a parallel arrangement to involve members in 
discussions at the pre-application stage was established.   
 

 
(iii) Balancing the need to maintain an applicant’s commercial confidentiality with the role of 

members in representing and providing leadership on behalf of their communities: 
 
 Members will be well aware of the duties on officers & Councillors to maintain commercial 

confidentiality.  It is often the case, particularly at the pre-application stage, that 
developers have yet to acquire full ownership of sites they are proposing to develop.  
They may have an option to purchase, or be in competition (or negotiating partnership 
arrangements) with rival companies to bring forward a development scheme.  The 
progress and outcome of pre-application discussions can have fundamental effects on 
such commercial arrangements and developers are rightly concerned to ensure their 
confidentiality is respected.   

 
 This poses a particular problem for Members who may wish to involve themselves in pre-

application discussions in order to represent their local communities and provide 
leadership for those communities.  It is not clear how the two responsibilities can be 
fulfilled as representing and leading on behalf of a local community inevitably would 
necessitate sounding out local views and opinions on pre-application proposals and 
keeping local people informed.  Even if a mechanism and safeguards can be put in place 
and a developer’s interest in a site can be made public, it may not always be clear which 
aspects of their proposal should remain confidential.  Issues such as consideration of 
alternative density options, if made public at the wrong time, can lead to an unnecessary 
or premature response from the local community. 

 
(iv) Maintaining the integrity of the decision making process and member impartiality: 
 
 The recent LGA guide to Member engagement in planning matters makes it clear that in 

relation to the consideration of planning applications (and to issues of planning policy 
development) “Members need to be aware of their obligation to an impartial approach.  
An objective consideration of material facts at the planning committee is the correct place 
for members to make their views, based on an impartial consideration of the evidence at 

Page 119



the time.  Expressing a view outside this arena comprises a prejudicial interest and 
debars a member from involvement in the determination process.”  The guide goes on to 
say: 

 
 - “However, this does not rule out a range of opportunities for members to follow the 

progress of applications, particularly where contentious or substantial”, but also that 
 
 - “The determination of planning applications is a quasi judicial process and when 

the boundaries between discussions and negotiations become blurred, members lay 
themselves open to criticisms of ‘fettered discretion’ and partiality”. 

 
 The guide advises that member involvement in pre-application discussions needs to take 

place within a legitimate and robust framework “with a cautious awareness of the fine line 
between an objective interest and a prejudicial one.” 

 
 In this context, the LGA has offered guidance notes to assist in the development of local 

procedures to deal with the issue.  The guidance (some of which is echoed in the leaflet 
“Positive engagement – a guide for planning councillors” referred to earlier) suggests the 
following: 

 

• Any discussion with developers or applicants should be part of structured 
arrangements agreed with officers.  Councils should make, clarify and communicate 
the role of members and the limits of engagement with applicants in framing local 
member codes of conduct.  (A simple mechanism might be a guide to applicants 
outlining the scope of pre-application meetings and the remit of the members). 

• Members need to be aware of the distinction between giving and receiving information 
and engaging in “negotiations” in their discussions with the applicants. 

• Presentations by applicants should be limited to the development proposed and 
questions should be related to factual matters, on the understanding that the purpose 
of the discussions is to improve understanding. 

• Members should maintain an impartial listening role and avoid expressing an opinion 
or giving advice beyond outlining adopted local policies. 

• It should be made clear that views expressed are not part of the determination 
process.. (although it must be said that the above bullet points would suggest that in 
general, “views” from Members should not have been expressed in the first instance). 

• Discussions should be structured and always involve officers of appropriate seniority, 
and for major or contentious applications, Member involvement should be authorised 
by the main Committee and involvement subsequently recorded in any Committee 
Report. 

• A written note of discussion proceedings should be kept; including an attendance 
record and if the applicant requests the views of the authority these should be 
communicated in writing with officers making it clear that views expressed prior to 
formal determination of an application are preliminary. 

• Where discussions are likely to touch on commercially sensitive matters Councils 
should set out in advance how they intend to deal with such matters. 

• Members should not seek to influence officers or pressure officers to support a 
particular course of action. 

 

Page 120



The guidance would seem to point to the need for clear and formalised arrangements to 
manage the process of member involvement and avoid an ad hoc, inconsistent approach 
which could put in doubt the integrity of the Council’s decision making.  Any formal 
arrangements would need to recognise the resource and potential process delay 
consequences outlined in points (i) and (ii) above. 
 
Officers are aware that a small number of Councils have sought to address the issue of 
Member involvement at pre-application stage for their most significant development 
proposals through the establishment of Member Forums, on similar lines to the Grove 
Development Forum set up by this Council.  There is no consistent format for such 
bodies, but if Members are minded to follow this route the issues raised above need to be 
considered and the following questions addressed in that context:   
 

• How “formal” should the Forum meetings be? 

• How should the decision to set up a Forum be made and by whom? 

• Should there be an agreed scheme through which Forum membership is decided? 
Should membership of each Forum be open to all members of the Council? Chair & 
Vice-Chair of the Development Control Committee, Opposition Planning Spokesman & 
Local Members only?  All local members for the Town (e.g. Abingdon or Wantage) if 
the application is significant, or just the relevant Ward Members? 

• How frequently should the Forum meet, how would frequency be decided.   

• Who would service the meeting? Should a formal note be taken and recorded by the 
Democratic Services Team? How will duplication of the existing officer development 
team meetings be avoided? 

• How will issues of commercial confidentiality be dealt with and balanced against 
Members’ local leadership role? 

• Could/should the meetings be held in public? 

• Should clear thresholds be set down, above which Forums could be set up and below 
which it would be understood that Forums would not be set up? 

• How will the establishment of the Forum mechanism be reflected in the Members’ 
Planning Code of Conduct? Would the principle need approval from the Council’s 
Standards Committee? 

 
As suggested above the Grove Development Forum might be seen as a model for how a 
separate and parallel Forum for involving members in the pre-application (and post 
application) stages of a major development proposal can work.  However, it should be 
acknowledged that the Grove Forum is operating successfully in response to a particular 
set of circumstances: 
 
- The development is exceptional in terms of its scale and impact and is being taken 
forward within a clear context and series of requirements set by the adopted local plan 
and comprehensive, adopted supplementary planning guidance.  The developer is 
therefore less concerned about issues of commercial confidentiality and the “rules and 
requirements of the game” are relatively clear and open.  This will not be the case with 
most other development proposals, particularly unexpected “windfall” schemes. 
 
- With the exception of the first 2 meetings (which were focussed around preparation 
of the Vale’s SPG) the Forum has been entirely funded by the developers, who have 
engaged an external facilitator to organise meetings, arrange workshop sessions and 

Page 121



document and record outcomes.  This has been a major task which could not have been 
resourced in-house. 

 

Page 122



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL   Report No. 186/07 
          Wards affected: All 
 

REPORT OF THE DEPUTY DIRECTOR (PLANNING AND COMMUNITY STRATEGY) 
TO THE EXECUTIVE 

4 APRIL 2008 
 

Decriminalised Parking Enforcement  
(to be known as Civil Parking Enforcement from the 1 April 2008) 

 
 

1.0 Introduction and Report Summary 
 
1.1 Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) in 2005, resolved to introduce Decriminalised 

Parking Enforcement (DPE) throughout Oxfordshire and accordingly, in early 2006 
started negotiations with the four rural District Councils with a view to establishing a 
single enforcement authority in each district area, with District Council’s undertaking 
enforcement under an agency agreement with OCC.  

 
1.2 The Executive received a report no 246/05 in March 2006 setting out the principles of 

DPE and authorised officers to commence negotiations with OCC. The purpose of this 
report is to update Members on the progress of the project. 

 
1.3 The Contact Officer for this report is Gordon Willcox, Section Head (Transportation) 

telephone 01235 540390. 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 

That the Executive: 
 
2.1 note the progress of this project; 
 
2.2 reaffirm its commitment to the principle of Civil Parking Enforcement and its 

willingness to undertake on-street enforcement in the Vale on behalf of OCC together 
with off-street enforcement subject to reaching agreement with OCC on all operational, 
administrative and financial matters, given that any financial arrangements must 
accord with the Council’s medium term financial plan. 

 
3.0 Relationship with the Council’s Vision, Strategies and Policies 
 
3.1 This report supports the Council’s Vision Strands A,D, E and G. 
 
3.2 This report does not contradict any existing Strategies or Policies. 
 
4.0 Background 
 
4.1 The Department for Transport (DfT) have a stated objective that DPE should bring 

together the control and enforcement of both on-street and off-street parking in the 
interest of public understanding. Historically, parking enforcement has been controlled 
by two tiers of local government with County Councils responsible for Traffic 
Regulation Orders, and the police or traffic wardens responsible for enforcement; and 
District Councils responsible for the management and enforcement of off-street 
parking. The two tier situation often leads to confusion for the public. In the Vale this 
issue is further complicated by the presence of an agency agreement between OCC 

Agenda Item 18

Page 123



and Abingdon Town Council for the warden enforcement of on-street pay and display, 
and residents’ parking schemes in Abingdon, which results in there currently being 
three organisations responsible for parking enforcement in the town. OCC currently 
operates DPE in Oxford city  however, this scheme does not include the off-street car 
parks, which remain the responsibility of Oxford City Council. The boundary of the 
Oxford city DPE scheme also extend to cover the streets in North Hinksey. 

 
4.2 Members will be aware of the pressures on police resources. Parking enforcement has 

been removed from the “core activities” prescribed by the Home Office for the police 
force with attendant reductions in resource allocation. The County Council have been 
advised by the Thames Valley Police Authority that the pressures on police budgets 
and other priorities have increased the likelihood of Thames Valley Police diverting 
resources even further from enforcement. 

 
4.3 The DfT has addressed this situation through decriminalised parking legislation 

whereby all on-street parking enforcement can be transferred from the Police to Local 
Highway Authorities. It is the DfT’s clear objective that both on-street and off-street 
parking should be treated in the same way, and seen to be under the umbrella of a 
single management/enforcement regime, in the interest of better public understanding.  

 
4.4 Under current arrangements, for the OCC (outside Oxford city) and the four District 

Councils non compliance with either on-street Traffic Orders or off-street Parking 
Orders, enforcement is a criminal sanction. When an offence is committed and the 
driver fails to pay the normal fine, the prosecuting authority has to prove its case to the 
Magistrates beyond reasonable doubt. Where Magistrates uphold a prosecution, the 
parking fine no longer comes to the appropriate Council, but is accrued to the 
Exchequer. 

 
4.5 In future, a single authority will have responsibility for enforcing parking controls.  A 

Civil Enforcement Officer will place a penalty charge notice (PCN) on a vehicle that 
contravenes parking restrictions (both on and off-street).  A PCN has the effect of 
giving notice that a sum of money is owed.  A PCN can, in appropriate cases authorise 
the clamping and towing away of vehicles. 

 
4.6 The penalty charges are debts, due to the local authority and enforceable through a 

streamlined version of the normal debt recovery processes in the civil courts.  The 
process for English authorities is centralised and involves the electronic transfer of 
data to the Northampton County Court. Motorists wishing to contest liability for a 
penalty charge may make representations to the local authority and, if these are 
rejected, they may have grounds to appeal to independent adjudicators, whose 
decision is final (i.e. there is no right of further appeal through the courts).  The 
standard of proof that applies in such cases is the lower civil standard - the case has 
to be proved on the balance of probabilities. 

 
4.7 If no representations are made, or if the outcome of an appeal is that the notice still 

applies, the authority to whom the debt is owed can recover the debt through the 
county court. The local traffic authority retains the proceeds from the penalty charges, 
which are used to finance the enforcement and adjudication systems.   
 

4.8 The DfT believe that there are significant advantages for local authorities having traffic 
and parking enforcement under their control, specifically: 

 

• Local authorities will be able to ensure that their parking policies are 
implemented effectively, with consequent benefits through improved traffic flow, 

Page 124



better management of overall traffic levels, fewer accidents, a fairer distribution 
of available parking places and a more pleasant environment. 

• The integration of enforcement and parking policy responsibilities should enable 
better monitoring of the effectiveness and value of parking controls, so that 
parking provision becomes more responsive to public needs. 

• Local authorities will be able to use the revenue they receive from penalty 
charges to fund their enforcement activities. Any surpluses can be used to 
improve parking facilities or fund other related transport/environmental 
schemes. 

 
4.9 In March 2006 the Executive confirmed it’s support for DPE and requested the then 

Assistant Director (Planning) to commence detailed discussions with OCC. Members 
from the other District Councils gave similar support for this project and from the 
amalgamation of resolutions, district officers were able to establish a number of 
common principles and objectives to guide their joint negotiations with OCC. 

 

• The support, in-principle, for DPE subject to agreement with OCC on all 
financial, operational and administrative details. 

• The willingness by Districts to assume the responsibility to manage on-street 
enforcement, subject to it being at no cost to the District. 

• That the income from the Districts’ off-street parking account be ring-fenced 
and excluded from any negotiations. 

• The willingness to explore opportunities for joint working particularly in the 
areas of administration. 

• The agreement with OCC on how any surpluses will be used. 
 

5.0 Progress March 2006 – April 2007 
 
5.1 OCC initially set themselves a project timetable of 2 years, working towards the 

implementation of DPE in April 2008. The project was managed by an OCC Project 
Team which included District officers. The four Districts jointly appointed specialist 
parking consultants RTA Associates to advise them on the project, and accordingly 
work started on a number of elements: 

 

• A review of all existing Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO’s) by survey. 

• Computerised mapping of all TRO’s. 

• Agreeing the appropriate IT system. 

• Preparing a draft Agency Agreement. 

• Joint parking policies. 

• Joint enforcement policies. 

• Joint working opportunities. 

• Building and agreeing a financial model. 
 
5.2 How DPE is able to be financially managed, both district by district and as a singe 

county entity was clearly one of the most important issues to be resolved. OCC 
required that from year two, taken across the four Districts, DPE would be at least cost 
neutral. This objective concurs with the broad financial requirements set by the DfT in 
considering applications from Highway Authorities for DPE powers. OCC are 
committed to fund all set up costs and underwrite any operational deficits incurred in 
year one. It is worth noting that, from the outset, RTA Associates were of the view that 
it would be difficult to achieve a cost neutral position in Oxfordshire for a scheme 
which encompasses only the four rural districts and excluded Oxford City. 

  

Page 125



5.3 Various financial models for each of the four Districts were built and then progressively 
modified to test various scenarios which might reduce costs without compromising the 
effectiveness of the enforcement. By April 2007 the District Council’s were able to 
provide OCC with their optimum financial model, a summary of which is shown below. 

 
 April 2007 Model Summary 

  
  

Capital 
start up 
costs 

Revenue 
start up 
expenses 

Year 1 
revenue       
deficit 

Year 2 & on-
going revenue 
deficit 

Vale    £18,469     £45,406      £97,666      £11,484 
     
Total of 
the 4 
Districts 

 £126,154   £227,073    £555,923    £205,574 

 
5.4 The year 2 (and on-going) figures reflect “marginal costs”, i.e. the additional cost of 

providing the service (not the total cost of the service) and reflect on-street and off-
street enforcement as a single operation. The main elements which are contributing to 
the year 2 revenue costs are: 

 

• Cost of on-street enforcement. 

• Income from on-street enforcement. 

• Economies to off-street administration through joint working. 

• Loss of off-street income due to reduction in penalty charge level. 
 
5.5 For the Vale, DPE would impose a level of penalty fines at £60/£40 which is a 

reduction from the current Vale off-street charge at £80/£50. This change results in a 
reduction of £27K in income, which tips the year 2 figure for the Vale, into an £11K 
deficit. 

 
5.6 In respect to the other Districts, the Vale’s year 2 figure compares well, with one 

District showing a deficit of £5K and the other two Districts showing deficits over £90K 
 

6.0 Progress April 2007 – to date 
 
6.1 The development of the County/District DPE project had initially been progressed at 

operational level. Because of the emerging negative outputs from the financial model, 
OCC took the view that a more strategic overview of the project was necessary in 
order to consider what options might be available to enable the project to be taken 
forward. 

 
 First meeting of Strategic Directors 
 
6.2 Strategic Directors met with OCC in May 2007. Whilst reaffirming their commitment to 

the project, each Director made it clear that Districts would not be prepared to expose 
themselves to financial risk. It was agreed that: 

 

• “Heads of Terms” should be developed to establish the common ground. 

• A further review of the financial model would take place, in particular to look 
again at staffing levels. 

• RTA Associates would be appointed to work on behalf of both OCC and 
Districts. 

Page 126



• RTA would investigate opportunities to raise additional on-street income, eg 
more on-street pay and display parking. 

• The start date for the project would be delayed until April 2009. 
Heads of Terms 

 
6.3 Based on a series of meetings with Districts, RTA have produced draft Heads of 

Terms which OCC and Strategic directors will need to consider, in order to develop a 
basis from which this project can be moved on. The principal terms proposed are: 

 
a) OCC/DC would agree an annual budget for on-street enforcement. 
b) OCC fund agreed deficits in the annual budget. 
c) OCC to underwrite all deficits for first year of operation. 
d) DC fund non-agreed deficits in the annual budget. 
e) Surpluses in on-street initially go to off-set on-street deficits elsewhere. 
f) Other surpluses ring fenced by OCC, and spent as agreed by a Partnership Board 
g) That there should be a joint processing of penalty notices for the four authorities by 

one of the District Councils. 
h) Each DC to handle its own representations and appeals. 
i) Each DC to have on-line connection to the central processing database. 
j) Each DC to manage own parking permits. 
k) OCC to retain responsibility for TRO’s, signs and lines. 

 
 Review of the Financial Model 
 
6.4 In an attempt to reduce cost, further refinements have been built into the latest model. 

The principal change relates to the number of deployed patrolling staff (and therefore 
administrative staff, as a result of fewer parking tickets). The previous model provided 
for an additional 6.5 fte patrollers, on-street, across the Vale. The latest model reduces 
this number to 4.0 fte patrollers which officers believe is the lowest number of 
patrollers needed to make the scheme still worth while. At this level, the following is an 
example of the on-street patrolling which could be achieved in the Vale, over a typical 
7 day operational week. 

   
Location Patrolling days 
Abingdon         9.5 
Wantage         7.0 
Faringdon         1.5 

Botley         1.5 
Villages         0.5 
Total    20.0 (4fte) 

 
6.5 In July 2007 the financial model took on a further burden when the Government 

announced its guidance notes for the new Traffic Management Act (TMA). From the 1 
April 2008, DPE under the Road Traffic Act 1994 will be superseded by the Traffic 
Management Act 2004 (TMA). The enforcement of traffic regulations and parking 
under the TMA will be called “Civil Parking Enforcement” (CPE).  

 
6.6 The TMA brings forward a number of changes to the scheme and also creates some 

new contraventions. However, there are two changes which will be fundamental to the 
on-going negotiations with OCC:  

 

• Firstly, the DfT no longer requires Highway Authorities to show that CPE will be 
self financing (as was the case with DPE) and secondly,  

Page 127



• the legislation allows a highway authority to choose between 2 tiers of charges 
where, within each tier there will be a “higher” and “lower” grade of 
contravention. 

 
6.7 Assuming that OCC opt to operate the upper level of charges, which is most likely, the 

penalty for higher contraventions (such as parking on double yellow lines) would 
attract a £70/£35 penalty, whilst lower contraventions (as will occur in off-street car 
parks) would attract a £50/£25 penalty. As a result, moving from an existing level of 
£80/£50 to a new level of £50/£25 will impose a loss to the Vale of off-street income in 
the region of £60K. Note where a penalty is shown with a / (eg £80/£50) this means 
the full and the discounted penalty level for prompt payment. 

 
6.8 The latest model therefore reflects both the reduced staffing level and the new TMA 

penalty levels and a summary of the latest model is shown below. 
 
 January 2008 Model Summary 

  Capital start 
up costs 

Revenue 
start up 
expenses 

Year 1 
deficit 

Year 2 & on-going 
revenue deficit 

Vale    £32,202    £45,630    £84,169       £75,428 

     
Total of 
the 
4 Districts 

 £142,900  £192,821  £338,964     £274,764 

 
6.9 Members will note that most of the Vale’s year 2 deficit is attributable to the £60K loss 

of income due to the enforced change in the level of penalty charge. Without the 
change, the Vale’s deficit would have been £15K 

 
6.10 The overall deficit has now increased by some £70K from the April 2007 model with 

the Vale’s year 2 deficit of £75K comparing with deficits of £32K, £69K and £98K in 
the other three Districts  

  
Second meeting of Strategic Directors 

 
6.11 Strategic Directors next met with OCC in January 2008 to discuss the framework of 

the Heads of Terms agreement and to receive the outcomes of the new modelling 
work. Whilst progress had been made with reducing staffing levels, the impact of the 
TMA penalty levels has resulted in increasing the overall year 2 deficit from £205K to 
£274K. 

 
6.12 Strategic Directors reminded OCC that income from off-street parking plays an 

important part in their authorities medium-term financial planning and that districts 
would not be prepared to bear any losses in this income stream and would be looking 
to OCC to underwrite any reduction resulting from the enforced TMA penalty levels. 

 
6.13 Strategic Directors questioned whether, given the fundamental changes in the 

structure of the project, OCC could take CPE forward without Districts and their off-
street parking operations. RTA advised that, whilst there is no legislation compelling 
Districts Council’s, the DfT have indicated strongly their desire to have unified county-
wide parking arrangements, and there is currently no precedent where district 
operations have been excluded (given that the arrangements in Oxford city predate 
DPE legislation).  

 

Page 128



6.14 The following course of action was agreed: 
 

• RTA to further review the financial models working with both district officers and 
District/OCC accountants. 

• RTA/OCC to prepare a financial model for a single county-wide parking. 
authority which would centralise all enforcement and administration. 

• District Leaders/Portfolio holders to be invited to a presentation to ensure “one-
level-understanding” of the latest position. 

• OCC will need to prepare an offer for districts to consider, which would form the 
basis of moving this project forward. 

 
 

RODGER HOOD 
Assistant Director (Planning) 

 
TIM SADLER 

Strategic Director 
 
 
 
Background Papers: 
 

• Report no.246/05, Decriminalised Parking, to the Executive 3 March 2006 

• Traffic Management Act 2004 

Page 129


	Agenda
	Map and Vision
	8 Referrals from the Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Other Committees
	9 Financial Monitoring: Virements and Permanent Budget Adjustments
	10 Forward Plan
	11 Community Grants
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	13 Corporate Governance - Third Quarter 2007/08
	14 Best Value Performance Indicator Report
	15 Local Area Agreement 2
	Appendix

	16 Draft South West Spatial Strategy Œ Panel Report December 2007
	Appendices

	17 Planning Code of Conduct
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	18 Decriminalised Parking Enforcement

